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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members,
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Your Directors are pleased to present the Fourteenth Annual Report on the business and
operations of your Company together with the audited annual accounts for the financial year

ended March 31, 2020.

@ Financial Performance:

A summary of the Financial Performance of the Company for the Financial Year
2019-2020 as compared to previous financial year is given below:

(Rs. in Mn.)
Particulars FY 2019- FY 2018-
2020 2019
Gross Income : 3,480 3,203
Profit/(loss) before interest, depreciation 2,817 2,491
and taxation
Financial charges : 1,797 1,610
Depreciation 93 81
Profit/(Loss) before Tax : 759 668
Provision for tax: :
Current Tax : 232 163
Deferred Tax 161 28
Income Tax relating to previous year 1.8 6.3
Profit / (Loss) after Tax : 364 471
Transfer to Reserve Fund under Section : 73 87
45-1C of the RBI Act, 1934
Balance Carried forward 1,328 1,037

These standalone or separate financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as “Ind AS”) as
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time.

The Company’s financial statements upto and for the year ended 31 March 2018
were prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in
India (IGAAP) under the historical cost convention as a going concern and on
accrual basis, unless otherwise stated, and in accordance with the provisions of the
Act, the Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 (as amended), prudential norms for
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income recognition, assets classification and provisioning for non-performing
assets as well as contingency provision for standard assets as prescribed by The
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) for NBFCs and the guidelines issued by Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) to the extent applicable, collectively referred as
“Previous GAAP”.

These are the Company’s first standalone or separate financial statements prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). The Company has
applied Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards for
transition from Previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Dividend:

Your Directors have not recommended payment of dividend for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 since it is proposed to retain the same in the business.

Brief Description of the Company’s state of affairs during the vear and Review
of Operations of the Company:

The Company continued to show steady growth across all business verticals. While
the industry is grappling with some challenges around availability of liquidity and
increased cost of borrowing, the Company has been able to maintain an upward
trajectory.

The Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020 stands at INR 26,701 mn. This is 3% lower
than last year. There was a planned slowdown in the fresh Commercial vehicle
disbursements, hence the overall Balance Sheet size has come down. Loan Against
Property business grew by 6% to end at INR 16,475mn while the Finance Lease
business grew by 8% to end the year at INR 4,594 mn.

The revenue for the year 2019-20 stood at INR 3,480mn which is 8.6% higher than
last year. Considering the tough market condition over the year and coupled with
COVID 19 hitting the business in Mar-20, the management had adopted a cautious
approach towards business. This conservative and cautious approach would continue

over the next few quarters as well before the economy comes out of the impact of
COVID 19.

The Company is backed by a very strong and supportive shareholder. The parental
support has been demonstrated through corporate guarantees, parent loans, global
committed lines and any other means. The active support and confidence from the
shareholder will propel the Company’s growth despite competitive pressures across
business lines and extremely turbulent environmental conditions

The liquidity position of the Company continued to be comfortable with the sanction
of fresh credit lines during the FY 2019-20 from Mizuho Bank, SMBC, Federal
Bank, HDFC Bank, ANZ and Bank of America, with a revalidation of AAA rating
of our Long Term Debt and A1+ of Short Term Debt. The Cost of Borrowings during
the year were competitive as compared to the market rates.



av)

V)

(VD

(VID)

Capital Adequacy Ratio:

Your Company is well capitalized and has a capital adequacy ratio of 20.27% as at
March 31, 2020 as against the minimum regulatory requirement of 15% for non-
deposit accepting NBFCs.

Credit Rating:

The India Ratings & Research Private Limited (FITCH) have assigned ratings vide
its letter dated June 12, 2020 for the various facilities availed by the Company,
details of which are given below:

- . Amount
Facility Rating (Rs. in
mn)
Short Term IND A1+ 9,758
Long Term IND AAA 13,739
Non-Convertible Debenture IND AAA 4,000
Total 27,497

Borrowings:

Your Company has diversified funding sources from Public Sector Banks, Private
Sector Banks, Foreign Banks and Financial Institutions etc. Funds were raised by
way of term loans, secured redeemable non-convertible debentures (NCDs) and
Masala Bond.

During the year, your Company raised Rs.8,500 million through term loans from
Banks (including Parent Loan Rs.1,000 million), Interest payment or principal
repayment of the term loans due as on March 31, 2020 has been paid.

The Company has not received any grievances from the debenture holders. The
assets of the Company which are available by way of security are sufficient to
discharge the claims of the debenture holders as and when they become due.

The NCDs are listed on Wholesale Debt Market (WDM) of the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited. The Directors of your Company state that there were no
material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year March 31, 2020 to which
the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

Share Capital:

(N Authorised Share Capital: The Authorized Share Capital of the Company is
Rs. 1,500,000,000 (One Billion Five Hundred Million Only) divided into
150,000,000 (One Hundred Fifty Million Only) Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
each.
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) Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital : The Issued Subscribed and
Paid up Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 1,009,359,010/- (Rupees one
Billion, Nine Million, Three Hundred Fifty Nine Thousand Ten) divided into
100,935,901/- (One Hundred Million, Nine Hundred Thirty-five Thousand
Nine Hundred One) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.

Deposits :

The Company being registered as Non-deposit taking Non-Banking Financial
Company with RBI has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year
under review and shall not accept any deposits from the public without obtaining
prior approval of the RBI.

Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the
Financial Statements:

In terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), Audit Committee’s
terms of reference, amongst others, includes evaluation of Internal Financial Control
(IFC) and Risk Management Systems. An evaluation of the Company’s Internal
Financial Control (IFC) is a detailed process to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles During the year under review, a detailed exercise was carried by Mr.
Rishikesh Agarwal, an external expert who evaluated the entity level controls;
business process level controls; testing, reporting and monitoring and Risk
Management Systems of the Company so as to evaluate operating effectiveness of
entity level controls on financial reporting process and put in place suitable
remediation plan / compensatory control to minimise or eliminate risk of any nature.

The report provided by Mr. Rishikesh Agarwal did not indicate any material issues
which required attention of the Audit Committee and Statutory Auditors.

Registration as Systematically Important Non-Deposit NBFC:

The Company is a registered Non-Banking Finance Company—Non Deposit —
Systemically Important Company (NBFC-ND-SI) pursuant to the receipt of
Certificate of Registration No. N-13.01981 from the Reserve Bank of India (RBI)
dated December 8, 2010, under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Further, your Company always aims to operate in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations and employs its best efforts towards achieving the same.

Auditors:

(1 Statutory Auditors and Statutory Audit Report: Pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 139 and 141 of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s. BS R & Co. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the
Company in the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on July 29,
2016 to hold office from the conclusion of tenth Annual General Meeting
(AGM) till the conclusion of the fifteenth AGM of the Company. They
continue to be the Statutory Auditors of the Company.
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The observations made by the Auditors’ in their report for the financial year
ended March 31, 2020 are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any
further comments under section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer
made by the Statutory Auditor in their report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2020.

Secretarial Auditor and Secretarial Audit Report: Pursuant to the provisions
of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors at its
meeting held on November 28, 2019 had appointed M/s. BNP & Associates,
Practicing Company Secretaries, as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company
to conduct the secretarial audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2019
- 20.

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimer
made by the Secretarial Auditor in their report for the financial year ended
March 31, 2020. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor is annexed as
‘Annexure-A’.

(XII) Statutory Disclosures:

(1

2

3)

4)

)

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) read with
Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules,
2014, extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT- 9 is annexed as
‘Annexure-B’.

Disclosure as per Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to
individuals employed throughout the year and in receipt of remuneration of
not less than Rs.1,02,00,000/- ( Rupees One Crore and two lakh) per annum
or Rs 8,50,000/- (Rupees Eight lakh and fifty thousand) per month is given
in ‘Annexure-C.

Disclosures in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 are given in ‘Annexure-D’.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(h) read with Rule 8(2)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, particulars of the contracts or
arrangements with related parties referred to in section 188(1) in Form AOC-
2 is annexed as ‘Annexure-E’.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3) (e), the Company’s policy on
director’s appointment and remuneration including criteria for determining
qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other
matters provided under Section 178(3) is annexed as ‘Annexure-F’.

(XIII) Corporate Governance:

The report on Corporate Governance for the Company is annexed as ‘Annexure-G’
and forms an integral part of this Annual Report.



(XIV) Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Qutgo:

(1

2)

3)

Conservation of Energy:

The requirements of disclosure with regard to Conservation of Energy in
terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applicable to the Company since it does not
own any manufacturing facility.

However, the Company makes all efforts towards conservation of energy,
protection of environment and ensuring safety.

Technology Absorption:

Not Applicable

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Qutgo:

There is foreign exchange outgo of Rs. 183.41 mn during the financial year
under review.

(XV) Details of Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Company

(XVI) Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP):

(1

2)

On recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, the Board of Directors, at its meeting held on February 26, 2020,
have re-appointed Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN: 06967617) and Mr. Abhay
Kakkar (DIN 06659327) as Additional Directors (Independent Non-
executive Directors) of the Company with effect from March 09, 2020 till
the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting, in terms of Sections
149, 152 and 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and subject to the
approval of the members in the ensuing General Meeting, for appointment as
Independent Directors for a term of five consecutive years effective March
09, 2020.

In terms of the RBI Directions applicable to NBFC-ND-SI, as amended from
time to time, Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN: 06967617) and Mr. Abhay Kakkar
(DIN 06659327) fulfils the fit and proper criteria for reappointment as
Director of the Company

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir (DIN 00083116), Managing Director, Mr. Vivek
Wadhera, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Meeta Sanghvi (ICSI Membership
no. A21168), Company Secretary and Compliance Officer are the Key
Managerial Personnel of the Company.



(XVII) Retire by Rotation :

In accordance with Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi (DIN 03535391) will retire at the ensuing
Annual General Meeting of the Company and being eligible offers himself for re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Board recommends his re-
appointment.

(XVIII) Declaration from Independent Directors and statement on compliance of code

(XIX)

of conduct

The Company has received declaration from Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN: 06967617),
Mr. Abhay Kakkar (DIN: 06659327) and Mr. Rajeev Lochan Seth (DIN:
00111866), Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with
the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of Companies Act,
2013. No transaction was entered with Independent directors in the year which
could have any material pecuniary relationship with them. Apart from sitting fees
no other remuneration was given to the above Independent Directors. The
Independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent Directors
prescribed in Schedule IV to the Act.

Risk Management and Portfolio quality:

Risk Management is an on-going process. The Board has defined the roles and
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee and has delegated the
monitoring and reviewing of the Risk Management Plan to the Committee.

The Company is exposed to Credit Risk, Economy Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Asset
Liability Mismatch Risk, Cash Management Risk etc. The expertise in lending
operations acquired by the Company over past few years has helped to mitigate
credit risk. The Company ensures that the short term and long term resources of
funds are favourably matched with deployment. To avoid any asset liability
mismatch risk, the Company proposes to long term funding instruments such as
Debentures. The Company has continued to enjoy trust and support from its banks
and financial institutions, due to its impeccable record in servicing debts on time.

The Company has also adopted stringent checks and internal controls across all
branches. Risk function is an independent department without any business
overlays. The Company has implemented necessary control measures to arrest the
operational risk arising from manual processes which are not supported by IT
systems. The Company mitigates its interest rate risk through innovative resource
mobilization technique, prudent fund management etc. Superior credit rating of
company’s financial instruments enables it to raise funds at competitive rates. The
Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committee regularly review the interest
rate risk and liquidity risk.

The risk function is also supervised by the Audit Committee of the Board from time
to time. The Risk Committee reviews the asset quality and product policy programs
and the same are duly approved before any new product launches and are reviewed
regularly. The asset quality of the Company continues to remain healthy.
The ratio of gross non-performing assets to gross advances and net non -performing
assets to net advances as of March 31, 2020 stood at 5.52% and 5.23% respectively.
The specific loan loss provisions that the Company has made for its non-performing
assets continue to be more conservative than those prescribed by the regulator.
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Vigil Mechanism:

The Company has adopted Whistle Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism policy) with a
view to provide a mechanism for directors and employees of the Company to report
genuine concerns. The provisions of this policy are in line with the provisions of the
Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013. The functioning of Vigil
Mechanism is reviewed by the Audit Committee from time to time. The Policy has
been uploaded on the website at the link https://www.orixindia.com/pdf/OLFS-
policy/corporate-governance/policy/Whistleblower-OLFS.pdf

The Company conducts regular workshops and training sessions to inform and
educate the employees about Whistle Blower Policy. During the year 2019-2020
there were three complaints reported in the form of whistle blower under the Whistle
Blower Policy. All the reported incidents were dealt and disposed-off by the Audit
Committee in accordance with the Whistle Blower Policy of the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) :

Your Company’s Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities are guided and
monitored by its CSR Committee. The CSR Policy of the Company provides a broad
set of guidelines including intervention areas. The Company believes CSR is a way
of creating shared value and contributing to social and environmental good.
Company’s strategy is to integrate its activities in community development, social
responsibility and environmental responsibility.

As part of its initiatives under CSR, the Company has initiated partnerships with
implementing agencies for projects in the areas of Promoting education and
employment enhancing vocation skills amongst women, healthcare, education.
Environment sustainability and for benefits to armed forces widows and their
dependents. These projects are in accordance with Schedule VII of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The Company believes in achieving its CSR objectives through sustained
intervention by partnering implementing agencies with strong credentials in the
areas the Company seeks to make a difference.

The Company has been circumspect in initiating projects and partnering with
the agencies concerned. The endeavor in the current financial year has been
building relationships with credible implementing agencies and effective
implementation of projects initiated.

The Company, however, believes that it is well positioned to build on the
foundations put in place in the current year to broaden and accelerate its CSR
interventions in the ensuing years. The company carried out various philanthropic
and environmental Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) initiatives throughout the
year. Employee volunteering was also encouraged in the community projects.

The annual disclosure on CSR activities is annexed herewith as “Annexure-H”.



(XXII) Internal Audit and Compliance:

(1

2)

Internal Audit:

The Company conducts its internal audit functions within the parameters of
regulatory framework which is well commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of operations. The internal controls are reviewed and enhanced
periodically.

The Internal Audit Department continuously monitors compliance to internal
processes across the operations to ensure that all assets are safe guarded and
protected against loss from unauthorised use or disposition, that transactions
are authorised, recorded and reported correctly and that operations are
conducted in an efficient and cost effective manner.

The Internal Audit activities are designed to ensure reporting efficiency and
compliance with the regulations. The Internal Audit Reports are discussed at
length during the Audit Committee meetings, which also reviews the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls. The Company has
framed the scope and plan of Internal Audit to effectively monitor and
supervise the internal audit function in accordance with the statutory
requirements.

Compliance:

The Company has set up Compliance Department which is independent of
Internal Audit Functions. The Compliance Functions have a preventive,
advisory and supervisory role, with particular emphasis on:

(a) Facilitating the effective identification of risk of violation of relevant
external requirements, such as compliance with laws and regulations,
as well as providing advice on risk reduction measures

(b) Developing and facilitating the implementation of internal controls
that will provide the organisation with protection from Compliance
Risk

() Monitoring and reporting on the effectiveness of control measures

(d) Providing the business with advice about acceptable behaviour and
practices in relation to the interpretation of external laws and internal
rules

(e) Monitoring relevant regulatory developments within the compliance
function’s areas of responsibility

) Ensuring awareness and training

This function is evolving within the organisation and executives of this
department are closely working with ultimate holding company (ORIX
Corporation) Global General Counsel’s Office, which is responsible for
supervising the Compliance functions of the Company, so as to adopt best
ethical business practice and behaviour within the organisation. Moreover,
Annual Compliance Plan has been drawn up and submitted to the Audit
Committee so that concentrated efforts can be made in specific direction for
ensuring that directives of ORIX Corporation are followed

The Audit Committee reviews the performance of the internal audit and
compliance functions, the effectiveness of controls and compliance with



regulatory guidelines and gives such directions to the Management as
necessary / considered appropriate.

(XXIII) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments:

(XXIV)

The provisions of Section 186 of the Act pertaining to granting of loans to any
persons or bodies corporate and giving of guarantees or providing security in
connection with loans to any other bodies corporate or persons are not applicable
to the Company, since the Company is Non-Banking Finance Company.

Significant and Material Orders Passed by the Regulators or Courts:

There has been no significant and material order passed by the Regulators or Courts
that would impact the going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.

(XXYV) Policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment:

(XXVI)

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has
adopted a Policy on prevention, prohibition and redressal of sexual harassment at
workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder for prevention and redressal of complaints of sexual harassment at
workplace. During the year under review, there was no sexual harassment cases
reported to the Company. Internal Committees under Prevention of Sexual
Harassment Act were constituted across locations of the Company.

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF)

During the year under review, there were no amount which were required to be
transferred to Investor Education and Protection Fund as per provisions of Section
125 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(XXVII) Directors’ Responsibility Statement :

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and
explanations obtained by them, Your Directors make the following statements in
terms of Section 134(3) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(1)  that in preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended March
31, 2020, the applicable accounting standards have been followed;

(2) that appropriate accounting policies have been selected & applied
consistently & judgments and estimates made are reasonable & prudent so as
to give a true & fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of
the financial year ended March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the Company
for the said year;

(3) that proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(4) that the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;
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the Company has an established internal financial control framework
including internal controls over financial reporting, operating controls and
for the prevention and detection of frauds and errors. The framework is
reviewed periodically by Management and tested by the internal audit team
appointed by the Management to conduct the internal audit. Based on the
periodical testing, the framework is strengthened from time to time to ensure
the adequacy and effectiveness of internal financial controls; and

that the proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such system were adequate and operating
effectively.

(XXVIII) Frauds reported by the Auditor

No fraud has been reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section

143.

(XXIX) Secretarial Standards issued by ICSI:

Pursuant to the provisions of section 118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,
compliance with Secretarial Standards relating to General and Board Meeting
specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) as approved
by the Central Government have become mandatory from July 1, 2015. The
Company is adhering to the standards issued by the ICSI, including any
amendment or modification as may be notified by them from time to time.

(XXX) Management Discussion and Analysis for F.Y:2019- 2020:

Management Discussion and Analysis Report is as under:

(1

Industry Structure and Developments — The Company maintained a steady
growth trajectory from April-2019 to February- 2020, before the impact
of COVID 19 in March 2020. With an enviable client list in the Finance
lease business and steadily growing Loan against Property book, despite
the environmental challenges, the Company has done well. COVID 19 has
had a significant impact across industries and the business of the Company
has also been impacted. With the GDP forecasts looking gloomy, there
would be some impact on the new originations and retail asset quality in
the coming quarters. Some of the initiatives taken by the government
would help mitigate the impact on the economy but it would take some
time for the company to get back to normal or a pre COVID scenario

The RBI, on 27" March, 2020 announced a moratorium on working
capital and term loans given by financial institutions to their borrowers.
As a result of this, the collection on Loan against property and
Commercial vehicle business will get impacted. On the Finance lease
side, FY 2019-2020 has been strong but with COVID 19, the car sales in
April-June 2020 have not been encouraging and that might impact the
future business. The collections in this business has been very good over
the last year and post COVID also and that’s a strong validation of the
credit worthiness of the clients.
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Opportunities — Despite the tough external environment, the Company is
very well placed to navigate through these turbulent times. The Company
continues to be AAA rated and that would help in fund raising at
competitive pricing. Hence the Company is well equipped to handle
liquidity and interest rate risk.

Also, the diversification of the portfolio into retail and corporate book has
helped the Company significantly. While there has been impact on the
collections for the retail portfolio, the corporate portfolio of Finance Lease
continues to perform very well and collections haven’t been impacted in
the leasing business. The underlying philosophy for the organization has
been controlled growth and the results have been very encouraging thus
far.

The Company will continue to follow the cautious approach for the next
few quarters. The liquidity position continues to be comfortable and the
shareholder has shown the willingness and ability to help in case of need.

Threats - The biggest challenge in the current market is the impact of
COVID 19. While the Company is working diligently to assess and
mitigate the impact, the real quantum and timing of this on liquidity and
portfolio quality is yet to be seen. The Company also recognizes the threat
that COVID 19 poses to the health and safety of its employees. Hence,
timely and necessary actions were taken to ensure the health and safety of
the employees and additional steps continue to be taken on an ongoing
basis, as the situation warrants.

Segment—wise or product-wise performance of the Company during last
6 vears is as below::

Rs in Mn
SME 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020
Disbursement 98 916 | 3,231 | 7.338 | 9,158 | 4,385
Balance Sheet
Size 98 949 | 3,538 | 9,821 | 15,539 | 16,475
Revenue 1 61 236 758 | 1,551 | 1,977
FL 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020
Disbursement 1,480 | 2,075 | 2,074 | 2,001 | 3,322 | 3,154
Balance Sheet
Size 2,387 | 2,994 | 3451 | 3,351 | 4,238 4,594




)

(6)

Revenue 352 412 460 445 528 656

Cv 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 | 2020

Disbursement 1,567 | 2,775 | 2,621 | 4,236 | 2,936 275

Balance Sheet 3,591
Size 1,815 3,403 4,398 6,297 5,822
Revenue 199 366 543 687 881 624

Note: From FY: 2015 to FY 2018 number are as per IGAAP and from
FY 2019 to FY 2020 number are as per IND AS

Outlook — The company has maintained a strong performance trajectory
over the past few years, the same has however been impacted due to
COVID 19. The company expects the impact to stay over the short to
medium term. Basis the strong business model, a healthy client base, a
100% secured lending book, comfortable liquidity position and
shareholder support, the company is confident that it would tide over this
crisis as well. The Company believes that it is well placed vis a vis its
competition to be able to capitalise on some of the opportunities that
would come its way once the economy starts opening up in the near future.

Risks and Concerns: Following are the key risks and mitigants of the
Company:

(a)  Credit Risk- The biggest risk for any financing business is the credit
risk that can be a result of poor underwriting/policy or market
downturn. The Company has been extra cautious and conservative
in developing the credit policy and processes. The client selection
process is fairly stringent and the Company believes that it is well
equipped to evaluate credit worthiness of the clients. The credit role
is independent of any sourcing/business roles.

(b) Liquidity Risk - While liquidity is a key risk for any organization,
the Company has worked on various fronts to mitigate these
risks. The Company continues to enjoy an AAA rating for
long term debt and Al+ for short term debt from credit rating
agency, it maintains a robust financial position and has a sound
parent backing. The Company also has diverse funding options and
continues to leverage on strong parent, robust financial performance
and highest credit rating.
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Material developments in Human Resources / Industrial Relations front,

including number of people emplovyed:

As on March 31, 2020 there were 204 employees on the rolls of your
Company. Listed below are some of key initiatives on development of
Human Resources front :

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

Training and Development: Provision of a variety of Training &
Development opportunities in FY. 2019-2020 which were aimed at
building employee capacity to deliver services, meet strategic
needs, and align with the Company’s values, strategic plan, and
overall mission.

Star Awards Program: The Company continued with Star Awards
Program quarterly for recognition of performance excellence and to
instill enhancement in motivation levels at the Staff levels. The
focus is to encourage those additional efforts taken by employees to
create value addition in the service they provide to the organization/
customers.

Employee Engagement and Welfare: Activities were carried out
regularly to provide a healthy and stress-free environment to the
employee base. These activities fostered teamwork and stronger
bonds and helped in increasing the happiness and pride quotient.
We conduct several of these activities in the form of festival
celebrations, fun contests, mindfulness activities, and outdoor
picnics, etc. There were several welfare activities conducted to help
build comfort and pride in the environment-

Health camps by hospitals and Yoga days

Medical insurance for self and family and distress situation
support

Term insurance — Critical illness and Accident

OMG - ORIX Mentorship Program: The ORIX Mentorship
Program or OMG was started with the purpose to tap into the
existing knowledge, skills, and experience of senior high
performing employees and transfer these skills to less experienced
but high potential employees to enhance their careers. Under this
program, identified employees are assigned to a senior leader where
they receive advice, counsel, or guidance pertaining to their career
aspirations over a defined period of time. The said program helped
in integrating expert knowledge transfer through ongoing sessions
and assessments to help build leaders of tomorrow for the company.

OSE - ORIX Skill Exchange (To facilitate give & take): This
practice was introduced for peer-to-peer training sessions. The
program has offered new skills and knowledge exchange from
colleagues within the organization. This program has improved the
expertise of participants. It has created an inspiring positive
influence, spurring others on, encouraging greater productivity, and
helped create an agile workforce.



(XXXI) General:
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(h)

(@)

Coach / Coachee — “Guru Kool” involving Guiding Hands &
Learning Hands : This program was introduced with the aim to
facilitate organisation’s value of inspiring the employees to get
engaged, learn and exchange their thoughts with the senior leaders
at the decision-making level in a one on one session.

Essentially, the program works as a platform for the employees to
gain new skills at the workplace and is helping tremendously in
building their own pride and satisfaction at the workplace by
directly in session with the senior leaders.

IAM ORIX 2.0: A program launched by the Managing Director to
encourage ideation and innovation across hierarchies. The ideas and
suggestions and inputs were invited for new business opportunities,
process improvements, and better ways of doing the same thing,
Ideas and suggestions from all levels for improvement of processes,
revenues are encouraged and rewarded. IDEAS to MD is one such
mailbox were all suggestions from received by MD himself along
with his task force. The same was revitalized as IAMORIX2.0
subsequently where employees contribute and get recognized for
their suggestions.

Coffee with Sandeep : To inspire open conversations and have a
direct connection, sessions over Coffee with the Managing Director
(skip-level meetings) were offered to provide employees channels
to speak up. The Managing Director made himself accessible for
dedicated sessions, where employees can feel free to share their
perspective on the business or environment.

Investment in Infrastructure: The Company makes every effort
in creating and providing a clean and hygienic infrastructure
environment and facilities to drive positivity. This also included
recreation facilities where employees can play games to refresh,
work on their fitness, or simply relax during free moments.

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the
following items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under

review:

(1) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or
otherwise.

(2)  Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company.

(3) No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or
Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations

in future.

(4) No change in nature of business.



(5) There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company between the end of financial year (March 31, 2020)
and the date of the Report.

(XXXII) Acknowledgements:

We are grateful to the Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Reserve
Bank of India, Stock Exchange, Bankers, Investors, rating agency, customers and
all other business associates for their valuable guidance and support and wish to
express our sincere appreciation for their continued co-operation and assistance.
Financial Institutions and other lenders, Customers, Employees and other
Stakeholders remained sound during the year under review. We look forward to
their continued support and encouragement.

Your Directors express their deep sense of appreciation for all the employees whose
commitment, co-operation, active participation, dedication and professionalism has
made the organization’s growth possible.
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FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members of,

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Plot No. 94, Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate,
Andheri-Kurla Road,

Andheri East,

Mumbai-400059

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India
Limited having CIN U74900MH2006PLC163937 (hereinafter called the ‘Company’) for the
financial year ended on 315t March 2020 (the “audit period”).

We conducted the Secretarial Audit in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the Company’s corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

We are issuing this report based on:

(i) Our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books, soft copy of
various records, scanned copies of minutes of Board and Committees and
Statutory Registers, forms and returns filed and other records sent over mail and
maintained by the Company;

(ii) Compliance certificates confirming compliance with all laws applicable to the
Company given by the Key Managerial Personnel / Senior Managerial Personnel
of the Company and taken on record by the Audit Committee / Board of Directors;
and

(iii) Representations made, documents shown and information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during our conduct
of Secretarial Audit

We hereby report that, in our opinion, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
on 318t March 2020, the Company has:

(i) Complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder; and
(i) Board processes and compliance mechanism in place

to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter.

The members are requested to read this report along with our letter of even date annexed to
this report as Annexure-A.

1. Compliance with specific statutory provisions
1
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We further report that:

1.1. We have examined the books, papers, minutes books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company during the year according to the
applicable provisions / clauses of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder;

(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder to the extent of External Commercial Borrowing;

(iv) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 and the rules made
thereunder;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable
for debt listing :

(@)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (LODR);

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities Regulations,2008; and

(c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015.

(d)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(vi) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (Secretarial Standards).

(vii) We have also examined, on test check basis, the relevant documents and
records maintained by the Company with respect to Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934 its Master Directions and notifications to the extent applicable to
the Company.

1.2. During the period under review:
(i) The Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines and Secretarial Standards as mentioned
above.

(i) Generally complied with the applicable provisions / clauses of:

2
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(@) The Act and Rules mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (i)

(b) FEMA to the extent of External Commercial Borrowings
mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (iii) and

(c) (i) The Secretarial Standards on meetings of Board of Directors
(SS-1) mentioned under paragraph 1.1 (vi) above to the extent
applicable to Board meetings and its Committees, held during the
review period except for some meetings for which draft minutes
were circulated to all the Directors beyond the prescribed time limit
of 15 days from the date of conclusion of the meeting and hence
these minutes were entered in the minutes book beyond the
prescribed time limit of 30 days as provided in the Secretarial
Standard-1. The compliance of the provisions of the Rules made
under the Act with regard to the Board meetings held through
video conferencing were verified based on the minutes of the
meeting provided by the Company.

(i) The Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) in
respect of the 13" Annual General Meeting held on 27" June
2019.

(d) During the year under review, the Company had received three
complaints against few employees of the Company under the
Whistle Blower Policy of the Company for mis-conduct in their
employment /violation of Company's Policy. As on March 31,
2020, the investigation of all complaints had been completed and
reported to the Audit Committee of the Company. The Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company had been
periodically informed on the status of the investigation and the
outcome of the complaints. The status is all three complaints are
resolved and matter is closed . However , in case any such
complaint arise in future , for its quick resolution as well as system
improvement the Company has sought Labour Law Expert
opinion, which is awaited.

1.3. We are informed that, during / in respect of the year, the Company was not
required to initiate any compliance related action in respect of the following laws
/ rules / regulations / standards and was consequently not required to maintain
any books, papers, minute books or other records or file any forms/ returns
thereunder:

(i) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Overseas Direct Investment and Foreign
Direct Investment;

(i) The following Requlations and Guidelines prescribed under the SEBI Act:-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009;

3
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c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018; and

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition
of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.

2. Board processes:
We further report that:
2.1 The Board of Directors of the Company as on 315t March 2020 comprised of:

(i) A Managing Director;

(ii) Five Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors; and

(iii) Three Non-Executive Independent Directors (includes two additional directors
(Independent), Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN:- 06967617) and Mr. Abhay Kakkar
(DIN:- 06659327), re-appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive
Independent) by the Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting dated
26" February 2020 with effect from 09" March 2020 for the second term of
five years, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the ensuing General
Meeting.

2.2 The processes relating to the following changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors during the year were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the
Act and LODR:

(i Re-appointment of Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe (DIN:- 07763966) as a director
liable to retire by rotation and re-appointed at 13" Annual General Meeting
held on 27" June 2019.

(i) Mr. Ryohei Suzuki (DIN:- 08218888), who was appointed as an Additional
Director (Non-Executive Non-Independent) by the Board of Directors on
19" September 2018, the same was regularised at the 13" Annual General
Meeting held on 27" June 2019.

(iii) Re-appointment of Mr. Nagesh Dubey (DIN:- 06967617) and Mr. Abhay
Kakkar (DIN:- 06659327) as an Additional Directors (Non-Executive
Independent Directors) by the Board of Directors of the Company at its
meeting dated 26" February 2020, subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the ensuing General Meeting.

2.3 Adequate notice was given to all the directors to enable them to plan their schedule
for the Board meeting, except for one meeting which was convened at a shorter
notice to transact urgent business.

2.4 Notice of the Board meetings was sent to the directors at least seven days in
advance except for the one meeting convened at a shorter notice, at which more
than one independent director was present as required under Section 173 (3) of
the Act and SS-1.
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2.5 Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent to the directors at least seven
days before the Board meetings, other than for the one meeting convened at a
shorter notice.

2.6 Agenda and detailed notes on agenda for the following items were either circulated
separately less than seven days before or at the Board meetings and consent of
the Board for so circulating them was duly obtained as required under SS-1

(i) Supplementary agenda notes and annexures in respect of unpublished
price sensitive information such as audited financial statement / results,
unaudited financial results and connected papers; and

(ii) Additional subjects/ information/ presentations and supplementary notes

2.7 A system exists for directors to seek and obtain further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for their meaningful
participation at the meeting.

2.8 We note from the minutes verified that, at the Board meetings held during the year:

(i) Majority decisions were carried through; and

(i) No dissenting views were expressed by any Board member on any of the
subject matters discussed, that were required to be captured and recoded as
part of the minutes.

3. Compliance Mechanism

There are reasonably adequate systems and processes in the Company,
commensurate with the size and operations, to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

4. Specific events / actions

During the year under review, the Company redeemed 3,200 Non-Convertible
Debentures, aggregating to an amount of Rs. 320 Crore, in various tranches on their
respective maturity date/s.

Venkataram g signed by

Venkataraman Krishnan

) Date: 2020.07.07
an Krishnan ; 324149 405'30'

Venkataraman Krishnan
Associate Partner
ACS No.:-8897/ COP No.:- 12459
For BNP & Associates
Company Secretaries
[Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400]
[PR No.:-637 / 2019]
UDIN:- A008897B000420981
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 07.07.2020
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Annexure A to the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended
31st March 2020
To,
The Members,
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. The Company’s management is responsible for maintenance of secretarial records and
compliance with the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and
standards. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the secretarial records produced for
our audit.

2. We have followed such audit practices and processes as we considered appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records.

3. We have considered compliance related actions taken by the company based on
independent legal /professional opinion obtained as being in compliance with law.

4. We have verified the secretarial records furnished to us on a test basis to see whether the
correct facts are reflected therein. We also examined the compliance procedures followed by
the company on a test basis. We believe that the processes and practices we followed,
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

5. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

6. We have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events, wherever required.

7. Our Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

Venkatarama yecmmn ki

H Date: 2020.07.07 13:27:02
n Krishnan 555

Venkataraman Krishnan
Associate Partner
ACS No.:-8897/ COP No.:- 12459
For BNP & Associates
Company Secretaries
[Firm Regn. No. P2014MH037400]
[PR No.:-637 / 2019]
UDIN:- A008897B000420981
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 07.07.2020
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Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration)

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial vear ended on 31.03.2020

Rules, 2014

Registration & Other details:

(1) | CIN U74900MH2006PLC163937
(2) | Registration Date August 21, 2006
(3) | Name of the Company ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
(4) | Category/Sub-category of the Company Company limited by shares (Public Limited)
Indian Non- Government company
(Non-Deposit Taking -Non-Banking Financial Company)
(5) | Address of the Registered office & contact Plot No. 94, Marol Co-operative Industrial Estate, Andheri-
details Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai — 400059;
Tel.: +91 (22)6707 0100; Fax: +91 22 2852 8549;
Email: info@orixindia.com; Website: www.orixindia.com
(6) | Whether listed company Equity Shares not listed, however, Non-Convertible
Debentures are listed on National Stock Exchange of India
Limited
(7) | Name, Address & contact details of the Registrar | Link Intime India Private Limited

& Transfer Agent, if any.

C-101, 24/7, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg, Gandhi Nagar,
Vikhroli West, Mumbai, Maharashtra 400083

Toll free no. (India): 1800 1020 878

Telephone: 022 - 4918 6270

Fax: 022 - 4918 6060

email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in

Website: https://www.linkintime.co.in

Annexure - B



I1. Principal Business Activities of the Company:
Sr. Name and Description of main products / NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
No. services Product/service the company
(1) | Non-Banking Financial Services (Lending) 649 100

M1 Particulars of Holding, Subsidiary and Associate Companies:
Sr.No. Name & Address of the CIN / GLN Holding / Subsidiary / % of Applicable
Company Associate Shares held Section
(1) ORIX Auto Infrastructure U63032MH1995PLC086014 Holding 100 2(46)

Services Ltd.

Add: Plot No. 94, Marol Co-
operative Industrial Estate,
Andheri-Kurla Road, Andheri
(East), Mumbai — 400059;




Iv. Share Holding Pattern (Equity Share Capital breakup as percentage of total equity):

A. Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

No. of Shares held at the end of the year

Change during
the year

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

Demat

Physical

Total

% of Total
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

(a)Individual/ HUF

(b) Central Govt

(c) State Govt(s)

(d) Bodies Corp.:
ORIX Auto Infrastructure
Services Ltd. (OAIS)

100,935,831

100,935,831

100

100,935,831

100,935,831

(¢)Banks / FI

(f) Any other

Sub Total A(1)

100,935,831

100,935,831

100

100,935,831

100,935,831

100

(2) Foreign

(a) Individual (NRIs /Foreign
Individuals)

(b) Other Individuals

(¢) Bodies Corp.

(d) Banks/FI

(e) Any other

Sub total A(2)

Total shareholding of Promoter (A)

100,935,831

100,935,831

100

100,935,831

100,935,831

100




B. Public Shareholding

1. Institutions

(2)Mutual Funds

(b)Banks / FI

(¢)Central Govt

(d) State Govt(s)

() Venture Capital Funds

(f) Insurance Companies

(g)FIls

(h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

(i) Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non-Institutions

(a) Bodies Corp.

(1). Indian

(i1). Overseas

(b) Individuals

(1). Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
upto Rs. 1 lakh

70

70

0.000

70

70

0.000

(i1). Individual shareholders
holding nominal share capital
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

(c) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians

Overseas Corporate Bodies




Foreign Nationals

Clearing Members

Trusts

Foreign Bodies - DR

B.

Sub-total (B)(2):- 70 - 70 0.000 70 70 0.000
Total Public Shareholding
B)=B)()+ (B)(2) 100,935,901 - 70 0.000 70 70 0.000
C. Shares held by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs - - - - - - -
Grand Total (A+B+C) 100,935,901 - 100,935,901 100 | 100,935,901 100,935,901 100
Shareholding of Promoter :
- P— . o .
SN Shareholder’s Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year ) change. in
shareholding
Name .
during the year
No. of % of total % of Shares No. of Shares % of total %of Shares
Shares Shares of the Pledged / Shares of the Pledged /
company encumbered to company encumbered to
total shares total shares
1 ORIX Auto 100,935,831 100 Nil 100,935,831 100 Nil 0

Infrastructure
Services
Limited




C. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding

SN Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the year
year
No. of % of total shares of the No. of Shares % of total shares of the
Shares Company Company
At the beginning of the year 100,935,831 100 100,935,831 100
Addition - - - - -
At the end of the year 100,935,831 100 100,935,831 100

D. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: None
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): Not Applicable

SN For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the
Shareholders year year
No. of shares | % of total shares of the | No. of shares | % of total shares of the
company company

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the

/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment

At the end of the year




E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and each | Shareholding at the beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the
Key Managerial Personnel year year

No. of % of total shares of the | No. of shares | % of total shares of the
shares company company

1. | Mr. Sandeep Gambhir jointly with ORIX
Auto Infrastructure Services Ltd

At the beginning of the year

10 0.00 10 0.00
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment - - - -
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year 10 0.00 10 0.00

2. | Mr. Vivek Wadhera jointly with ORIX
Auto Infrastructure Services Ltd

At the beginning of the year
10 0.00 10 0.00

Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment - - - -
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.)

At the end of the year 10 0.00 10 0.00




V.

Indebtedness -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for pay

(Amount in Rs.)

Secured Loans
excluding deposits

Unsecured Loans

Deposits

Total Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the
financial year

i) Principal Amount

6,22,35,91,779.00

14,85,12,56,978.00

21,07,48,48,757.00

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

25,72,88,906.00

4,00,73,844.00

29,73,62,750.00

6,48,08,80,685.00 14,89,13,30,822.00 21,37,22,11,507.00
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the
financial year
216.00 10,92,03,78,448.00 10,92,03,78,664.00

Addition

* Reduction

(4,36,86,59,023.00)

(7,58,95,38,790.00)

(11,95,81,97,813.00)

Net Change

(4,36,86,58,807.00)

3,33,08,39,658.00

(1,03,78,19,149.00 )




Indebtedness at the end of the financial
year

1) Principal Amount

2,01,98,10,809.00

18,16,45,85,450.00

20,18,43,96,259.00

i1) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

9,24,11,068.00

5,75,85,030.00

14,99,96,098.00

Total (i-+ii+iii)

2,11,22,21,877.00

18,22,21,70,480.00

20,33,43,92,357.00

VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

SN. Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Managing Director

Total Amount

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

1 Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section
17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961




2 Stock Option
3 Sweat Equity
4 Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify...
5 Others, please specify
Total (A) 0
Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013 Not Applicable

B. Remuneration to Other Directors

SN. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total Amount
1 Independent Directors Mr. Nagesh Mr. Abhay Mr. Rajeev
Dubey Kakkar Seth Lochan
Fee for attending Board and Committee 3,40,000 4,00,000 2,00,000 9,40,000
meetings
Commission
Others, please specify
Total (1) 3,40,000 4,00,000 2,00,000 9,40,000




Other Non-Executive Directors

Not Applicable

Fee for attending board committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

9,40,000/-

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

prescribed.

Overall Ceiling as per the Companies Act, 2013 for sitting fees is
Rupees One Lakh per Board Meeting or a Committee Meeting
thereof. The total Managerial Remuneration is within the ceiling

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Income-tax Act, 1961

Sr Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
No.
Company Secretary CFO Total
(Ms. Meeta Sanghvi) (Mr. Vivek Wadhera)
1 Gross Salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained 17,58,481.00 - 17,58,481.00
in section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act,
1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 0 - -

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961




VIIL.

2 Stock Option - -
3 Sweat Equity - -
4 Commission - -
- as % of profit - -
Others, specify... -
5 Others, please specify

Total

17,58,481.00

17,58,481.00

PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: -

There were no penalties / punishment for the year ended March 31, 2020.




Annexure-C

Disclosures in terms of Section 197(12) read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

Name of | Remunerati | Nature | Qualificati | Date of | Age | Last The % of Relative
the on Received | of on and | Commenc Employm | Equity of any
Employe | (Amount in | Employ | Experienc | ement of ent held Shares Director
e and | Rs.) ment € Employm before held by or
Designat ent joining the Manager
ion the employees
Company

Full B.E., 04-04-2014 | 47 | Indiabulls | Nil Nil
Gaurav Time PGDBM, Housing
Bhatia 11,636,895/ | Employ | 24 Years of Finance

ment Experience Ltd




Annexure-D

Information as per Rule 5 (1) of Chapter XIII, the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014

(1

2

)

4)

)

(6)

(7

The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of
employees of the Company for the financial year is Nil.

There was no increase in remuneration of Directors, Chief Financial Officer or
Manager in the Financial Year 2019-2020. There was 9% increase in remuneration
of Company Secretary in the said Financial Year.

During the year under review, there was 4% increase in the median remuneration of
the employees of your Company.

As on March 31, 2020 there were 204 permanent employees on the rolls of your
Company.

During the year under review, the net income of your Company grew and the
hike was in consonance with the wage hike given by the Industry. Further, in
comparison to the growth of the Company, the average increase in remuneration paid
to Managerial Personnel and the average increase in remuneration for rest of the
employees depending on individual and business unit performance.

The key parameters for variable compensation for directors are growth in volume
of the Business of the Company, profit growth, portfolio quality, and enhancement
of customer base over the previous year.

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy adopted
by the Company.



Annexure-E

Related Party Transaction Disclosure as per Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013

Form No. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub - section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub - section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms-length transactions under third proviso

thereto
(1) Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
) Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
(a) | Name(s) of the related party and ORIX Corporation, Japan -Ultimate
nature of relationship holding Company
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services
Limited - Holding company
(b) | Nature of
contracts/arrangements/transactions | Normal business transactions (Mentioned
in the notes forming part of the financial
statements at Note no. 37).
(c) | Amount As mentioned in the notes forming part
of the financial statements at Note no. 37
(d) | Duration of the
contracts/arrangements/ Usually annual, however depends on the
transactions nature of transaction.
(e) | Salient terms of the contracts or
arrangements or transactions Maintained at arm’s length similar to
including the value, if any third party contracts. Value of such
transactions during the financial year is
mentioned in the notes forming part of
the financial statements at Note no. 37.
(f) | Justification for entering into such | Competitive pricing and value of
contracts or arrangements or services
transactions rendered.
(g) | Date(s) of approval by the Board, |N.A.
if any
(h) | Amount paid as advances, if any N.A.

Note: No advance is payable in respect of any of the above transactions.



Annexure-F

Details of Nomination and Remuneration Policy as per Section 178 of the Companies

Act, 2013:

(D) Appointment / Nomination criteria and qualifications:

(1

2)

Director and KMP:

(a) Criteria: The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity,
expertise and experience of the person for appointment as a Director
and KMP and recommend to the Board for his / her appointment.

(b) Qualification: A person should possess adequate qualification for the
position he / she is considered for appointment. The Committee has
the discretion to decide whether qualification, expertise and
experience possessed by a person are sufficient / satisfactory for the
concerned position.

Senior Management Personnel: The Managing Director in consultation
with Human Resource Department shall identify and appoint SMP based on
their qualification, expertise and experience for the concerned position or
level.

(II) Term/Tenure:

(1

2)

Managing Director/Whole-time Director:

(a) The Company may appoint or re-appoint any person as its Managing
Director/Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at
a time.

(b) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any

person as Managing Director/Whole-time Director/ who has attained
the age of seventy years. Provided that the term of the person holding
this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of shareholders by passing a special resolution based on
the explanatory statement annexed to the notice for such motion
indicating the justification for extension of appointment beyond
seventy years.

Independent Director:

(a) An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five
consecutive years on the Board of the Company and will be eligible
for re-appointment as per the criteria laid down by the Act and
Regulations as amended from time to time.

(b) No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two
consecutive terms of 5 years, but such Independent Director shall be
eligible for appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to
become an Independent Director.



(11T

Iv)

V)

Evaluation of Director, KMP and SMP:

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director
based on detailed performance parameters, as per applicable Regulations. The
performance parameters includes, but not limited to the following:

€8 Expertise;

2) Objectivity and Independence;

3) Guidance and support in context of life stage of the Company;
4 Understanding of the Company’s business;

%) Understanding and commitment to duties and responsibilities;

(6) Willingness to devote the time needed for effective contribution to Company;
(7) Participation in discussions in effective and constructive manner;

(8) Responsiveness in approach; and

9) Ability to encourage and motivate the management for continued
performance and success.

The performance evaluation of KMP (other than Managing Director/Whole
Time Director) and Senior Management Personnel shall be done as per the
prevailing Human Resource Policy and Human Resource process framework
implemented by the Company from time to time, in consultation with the
Managing Director of the Company.

Retirement:

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the
applicable provisions of the Act or under the Regulations and the prevailing HR
policy of the Company, as the case may be. The Board will have the discretion to
retain the Director and KMP in the same position / remuneration or otherwise even
after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company, subject to
compliance of Regulations, if any, and prevailing HR Policy of the Company, as the
case may be. Further, the Competent Authority as specified in the Employee Hand
Book of the Company will have the discretion to retain the SMP in the same
position/remuneration after attaining the retirement age.

Removal:

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act; or Regulations or
breach of Company’s prevailing HR policy of the Company, the Committee may
recommend to the Board with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director and
KMP. Senior Management Personnel may be removed from the employment of the
Company due to breach of Company’s HR Policy or code of conduct or other
employee related policies or performance related aspects. The decision of Managing
Director, Director representing ORIX Corporation i.e. Ultimate Holding Company
and HR Head shall be final in this regard.
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(VID)

Remuneration to Managing Director/Whole Time Director:

8 Fixed pay:

The Managing Director/Whole-time Director shall be eligible for a monthly
remuneration as may be approved by the Board on the recommendation of
the Committee. The breakup of the pay scale and quantum of perquisites
including, employer’s contribution to provident fund, pension scheme,
medical expenses, club fees etc. shall be decided and approved by the Board
on the recommendation of the Committee and approved by the shareholders
and Central Government, wherever required.

2) Minimum Remuneration:

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are
inadequate, the Company shall pay remuneration to its Managing Director/
Whole-time Director / in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of
the Companies Act, 2013 and with the approval of the Central Government
approval, if and to the extent required.

3) Other Provisions:

(a) The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Managing
Director/ Whole Time Director, will be determined by the Committee
and recommended to the Board for approval. The remuneration /
compensation / commission etc. shall be subject to the approval of
the shareholders of the Company and Central Government, wherever
required as per law.

(b) The remuneration and commission to be paid to the Managing
Director/Whole Time Director shall be in accordance with the
percentage / slabs / conditions as per the provisions of the Act, as
amended from time to time.

(©) Increments to the existing remuneration / compensation structure
shall be recommended by the Committee.

Insurance Premium:

Where any insurance is taken by the Company on behalf of its Managing Director,
SMP or KMPs for indemnitying them against any liability, the premium paid on such
insurance shall not be treated as part of the remuneration payable to any such
personnel.

The Company shall take Director and Officer Liability Insurance Policy on annual
basis.



(VIII)

(IX)

X)

Remuneration to Non- Executive / Independent Director:

(1) Sitting Fees:

The Non- Executive / Independent Director may receive remuneration by
way of fees for attending meetings of Board or Committee(s) thereof and in
line with the applicable provisions of the Act.

) Commission:
Commission may be paid within the monetary limit approved by
shareholders, subject to the limits/ slabs and conditions mentioned in the

Articles of Association of the Company and as per the Act, as amended from
time to time.

Remuneration of KMP and SMP:

The remuneration determined for the KMP and SMP shall be in line with the
Company’s philosophy to provide fair compensation to key— executive officers based
on their performance and contribution to the Company and to provide incentives that
attract and retain key executives, instill a long term commitment to the Company,
and develop a pride and sense of Company ownership, all in a manner consistent
with shareholder interests.

The remuneration of KMP and SMP shall be decided by Managing Director of the
Company in consultation with the HR department.

Remuneration of other emplovees:

Apart from Directors, KMP and SMP, the remuneration of rest of the employees
will be determined on the basis of the role and position of the individual employee,
including professional experience, responsibility, job complexity and local market
conditions in competitive environment.

The Company considers it essential to incentivize the workforce to ensure adequate
and reasonable compensation to the staff. The Human Resources Department shall
ensure that the level of remuneration motivates and rewards high performers who
perform according to set expectations in their respective domain.

The various remuneration components, basic salary, allowances and perquisites may
be combined to ensure an appropriate and balanced remuneration package.

The annual increments to the remuneration paid to employees shall be determined
based on the annual appraisal carried out by Head of various Departments and as
per the HR Policy and Process of the Company as may be applicable from time to
time.
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Annexure - G

Corporate Governance disclosures as per Section 134 of the Companies Act. 2013

Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance:

The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is aimed at assisting the
management of the Company in the efficient conduct of its business and meeting its
obligations to stakeholders and is guided by a strong emphasis on transparency,
accountability and integrity. Your Company has adopted a Board approved Internal
Guidelines on Corporate Governance which has helped the Company in attaining its
objectives/goals, since it encompasses every sphere of operations, management,
action plans, internal controls, performance measurement and regulatory disclosure.
The said Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance has been uploaded on the
Company’s website which was approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting
held on November 9, 2016

During the year under review, Code of Practices and Procedure for Fair Disclosure
of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information was approved and implemented.

Board of Directors:

During the year the Board met at regular intervals to discuss and decide on various
business and policy matters of the Company. The meetings of the Board of Directors
during the Financial Year 2019 — 20 were held on, May 27, 2019, September 24,
2019, November 28, 2019 and February 26, 2020. The time gap between any two
meetings was less than 120 days and at least one meeting was held in every quarter.

The present strength of Board of Directors is Nine (9) Directors. The Board
comprises of Nine (9) Non-Executive Directors including three (3) Independent
Directors. One of the Non-Executive Director is woman. The Non-Executive
Directors bring independent judgment in the Board’s deliberations and decisions.
None of the Directors of your Company are related to each other.

The Directors of the Company have wide experience in the field of finance, risk
management, banking and human resources.



The details of attendance of the Board of Directors as at March 31, 2020 are as under:

Sr.No. Name of Director No. of Board Last AGM
Meetings Attended
Attended
(1) Mr. Harukazu Yamaguchi, Director 1 No
and Chairman
2) Mr. Sandeep Gambhir, Managing 4 No
Director
3) Mr. Ryohei Suzuki, Director 4 No
4 Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe, Director 4 No
()] Mr. Abhay Kakkar, Additional 4 No
Director (Independent)
(6) Mr. Nagesh Dubey, Additional 4 Yes
Director (Independent)
(7) Mr. Ikuo Nakamura, Director 1 No
8 Mr. Rajeev Lochan Seth, Independent 4 No
Director
9 Ms. Gouri Sawant ,Woman Director 4 Yes

(IlT)y  Committees of the Board of Directors:

(H Composition:

Sr. No. Name of the Committee Composition of the Committee

(a) Audit Committee Mr. Nagesh Dubey —Chairman

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe

Mr. Abhay Kakkar

(b) Nomination and Remuneration | Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe- Chairman
Committee (NRC)

Mr. Abhay Kakkar

Mr. Nagesh Dubey

(©) Treasury and Asset Liability Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe- Chairman
Management Committee

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki

(d) Executive Committee Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe




Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki

(e)

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe- Chairman

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki

®

Residual Value Committee

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe- Chairman

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki

(2

Credit Committee

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki

(h)

Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR)
Committee

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe - Chairman

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Abhay Kakkar

Allocation and Allotment
Committee

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Nagesh Dubey

Mr. Abhay Kakkar

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki

1)

IT Strategy Committee

Mr. Abhay Kakkar (Chiarman)

Mr. Gurpreet Singh Saluja

Mr. Gaurav Bhatia

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Vivek Wadhera

Mr. Jay Gandhi

Mr. Rominder Singh

Mr. Sandeep Sinha

Mr. Dipankar Sen

(k)

IT Steering Committe

Mr. Abhay Kakkar (Chiarman)

Mr. Gurpreet Singh Saluja

Mr. Gaurav Bhatia

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir

Mr. Vivek Wadhera

Mr. Jay Gandhi

Mr. Rominder Singh

Mr. Sandeep Sinha

Mr. Dipankar Sen




@

Powers of the Commiittees:

(a)

Audit Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are:

M

Financial Reporting:

)

@

3)

“

)

To oversee the financial reporting process,
accounting controls and disclosure of financial
information to ensure that financial information
report is sufficient and credible;

To review Related Party Transaction (RPT) Policy of
the Company on a periodic basis and approve, in
terms of the RPT Policy, any Related Party
Transactions i.e. transactions of the Company of
material nature with Related Parties as defined under
section 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013 that may
have potential conflict with the interests of Company
at large including modification in such transactions;

To review audited / unaudited / limited review of the

annual and/or semi-annual financial statements

before submission to the Board focusing primarily

on:

(a) the application of significant accounting
policies and any changes to them;

(b) the methods used to account for significant
or unusual transactions;

() Compliance with accounting standards;
(d) Significant adjustments arising out of audit;
(e) Qualifications in draft audit report;

) Areas involving significant judgement,
estimation or uncertainty and the provisions
in the financial statements;

(2) Compliance with legal and regulatory and
financial reporting requirements; and

(h) To review Auditors’ Report on annual /
semi-annual financial statement before
submission to the Board;

To approve and ratify write offs amount upto the
limit specified in Approval Authority Matrix (AAM)
and report to the Board of Directors such write offs;

To recommend to Board for approval of write offs of
an amount exceeding the threshold limits of Audit
Committee, as specified in AAM, which requires
approval of the Board ;



D

Q)
O]

@®)

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

To note valuation of undertakings or assets of the
Company, wherever necessary;

Monitoring the end use of funds raised through
public offers and related matters;

Auditor (External Auditor) :

The Committee shall:

(1

2

3)

4)

€)

(6)

consider and make recommendations to the board, to
be put to shareholders for approval at the Annual
General Meeting, in relation to the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the Company's
Statutory Auditor (External Auditor);

review and monitor the External Auditor’s
independence and performance and effectiveness of
audit process

if an External Auditor resigns, investigate the issues
leading to this and decide whether any action is
required;

oversee the relationship with the external auditor. In
this context the Committee shall:

(a) approve their remuneration, including both
fees for audit and non-audit services, and
ensure that the level of feesis appropriate to
enable an effective and high-quality audit to
be conducted;

(b) approve their terms of engagement, including
any engagement letter issued at the start of each
audit.

(c) Holding discussions with Statutory Auditors
before the audit commences regarding nature
and scope of audit as well as post audit
discussions on any areas of concern;

satisfy itself that there are no relationships between
the auditor and the company (other than in the
ordinary course of business) which could adversely
affect the auditor's independence and objectivity;

evaluate the risks to the quality and effectiveness of
the financial reporting process in the light of the
external auditor's communications with  the
Committee;
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(7

®)

©)

(10)

Y

(12)

meet regularly with the external auditor (including
once at the planning stage before the audit and once
after the audit at the reporting stage) and, at least
once a year, meet with the external auditor without
management being present, to discuss the auditor's
remit and any issues arising from the audit

discuss with the external auditor the factors that
could affect audit quality and review and approve the
annual audit plan, ensuring it is consistent with the
scope of the audit engagement, having regard to the
seniority, expertise and experience of the audit team;

review the findings of the audit with the external
auditor. This shall include but not be limited to, the
following:

(a) a discussion of any major issues which arose
during the audit;

(b) key accounting and audit judgements;

©) the auditor's view of their interactions with
senior management; and

(d) levels of errors identified during the audit;

review the management letter and management's
response to  the auditor's findings and
recommendations.

review the effectiveness of the audit process,
including an assessment of the quality of the audit,
the handling of key judgements by the auditor, and
the auditor's response to questions from the
Committee.

Discusses problems and reservations arising from the
interim and/or the final audits (full or limited review)
and any matters the statutory auditor may wish to
discuss so as to ascertain quality and veracity of
Company’s accounts.

Internal Control :

(1

2

keep under review the company's internal financial
controls systems that identity, assess, manage and
monitor financial risks, and other internal control
and risk management systems including
information technology security and control; and

Understand the scope of internal and external
auditors’ review of internal control over financial
reporting and obtain reports from significant findings



(V)

3)

and recommendation, together with management’s
responses.

review and approve the statements to be included
in the annual report concerning internal control,
risk management

Internal Audit:

The Committee shall:

(1
2)

3)

“4)

)

(6)

(7

®)

approve the Internal Audit Charter.

approve the appointment or termination of the Head
of Internal Audit;

review and approve the role and mandate of internal
audit, monitor and review the effectiveness of its
work;

review and approve the annual internal audit plan
and scope to ensure it is aligned to the key risks of
the business, and receive regular reports on work
carried out;

ensure internal audit has unrestricted scope, the
necessary resources and access to information to enable
it to fulfil its mandate, ensure there is open
communication between different functions and that
the internal audit function evaluates the effectiveness
of these functions as part of its internal audit plan, and
ensure that the internal audit function is equipped to
perform in accordance with appropriate professional
standards for internal auditors;

meet regularly with the Internal Audit Head without
management being present, to discuss any issues
arising from the audit and also effectiveness of
the function

carry out an annual assessment of the effectiveness of
the internal audit function; and as part of this
assessment:
2
(a) determine whether it is satisfied that the
quality, experience and expertise of internal
audit is appropriate for the business; and

(b) review the actions taken by management to
implement the recommendations of internal
audit and to support the effective working
of the internal audit function;

monitor and assess the role and effectiveness of the



V)

(VD)

internal audit function in the overall context of the
company's risk management system and the work of
compliance, finance and the external auditor; and

9) consider whether an independent, third party review
of Information Technology (IT) Audit are
appropriate.

Tax Auditors :

The committee shall:

(1

2)

consider and make recommendations to the board, in
relation to the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the company's Tax Auditor;

review the findings of the audit with the Tax
Auditor. This shall include but not be limited to, the

following:

(a) discussion of any major issues which arose
during the audit; and

(b) review Tax Audit Report

(1

2)

3)

“4)

)

(6)

Review the effectiveness of the system for
monitoring compliance with laws and regulations
and the results of findings / investigation of
compliance department and follow-up (including
disciplinary  action) of any instances of
noncompliance.

Review the findings / observation of any inspection /
examinations carried out by regulatory agencies or
any notice received from regulatory authorities
concerning violation of any law.

Review the process for communicating the code of
conduct to company personnel, and for monitoring
compliance therewith.

Obtain regular updates from compliance head
regarding compliance matters.

review regular reports from the Compliance Officer
and keep under review the adequacy and
effectiveness of the company’s compliance function

Consider whether the controls established to prevent
fraud and illegal acts are adequate so as to ensure all
major cases of fraud/illegal acts are reported to Audit
Committee



(b)

(VII)

(VIII)

Whistleblowing and Fraud:

The Committee shall:

(1 review the company's procedures for detecting
fraud;
2) review the company's systems and controls for the

prevention of Bribery Anti-Corruption (ABAC) and
receive reports on non-compliance;

3) Review Whistle Blower reports under Whistle
Blower Policy and / or Vigil Mechanism

Litigation Review:

To review report of litigation against or by the Company
involving debt or claim above the threshold value as specified
in AAM.

Nomination _and _Remuneration Committee: The key

responsibilities of the Committee are:

(1

2)

)

4)

)

(6)

(7

Reviewing the current Board composition, its governance
framework and determine future requirements and making
recommendations to the Board for approval;

Examining the qualification, knowledge, skill sets, positive
attributes and experience of each director and their
effectiveness to the Board on a yearly basis;

Scrutinizing nominations for Independent/Non-
Executive/Executive Directors with reference to their
qualifications and  experience and  provide its
recommendation to the Board for
appointment/removal/filling of vacancies;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become Key
Managerial Personnel and recommendation to the Board for
their appointment and/or removal;

Formulate the Policy and recommend to the Board of
Directors relating to the remuneration for the Directors and

Key Managerial Personnel;

Formulate the Policy relating to the appointment and
remuneration of Senior Management Personnel; and

Ensure fit and proper criteria of Directors.



(c)

(d)

Treasury and Asset Liability Management Committee: The key
responsibilities of the Committee are:

(1) Pricing of products for both deposits and advances;

2) Fixing of desired maturity profile and mix of the incremental
assets and liabilities;

3) Collecting information about the prevailing interest rates
offered by other peer NBFC for the similar services/products;

4) Reviewing the results and progress in implementation of the
decisions made in the previous meeting;

%) To articulate the current interest rate view

(6) To develop a view on future direction of interest rate
movements and decide on funding mixes between fixed v/s.
floating rate funds, money market vs. capital market funding,
domestic vs. foreign currency funding, etc

(7 To approve borrowings from various Banks, Financial
Institutions and Companies upto such amount as the
Shareholders may authorise, from time to time, in the
ordinary course of business

(8) To raise money as and by way of Loan or Debentures
(Secured / Unsecured / Convertible / Non-Convertible) or
through Inter Corporate Deposit or Commercial Papers or
through any other resources as may be necessary either from
Domestic or International Market.

9) To approve purchase and / or sale and assignment of
receivables arising out of lease rentals and / or loan / hire
purchase instalments whether with or without underlying
assets.

Executive Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee
are:

(1 To note waiver of income/reversals approved by Chairman
and Director

2) To consider and approve opening of New Bank Accounts
(Current Account / Cash Credit Account / Over Draft
Account) and also approve change in various Authorised
Signatories and their respective empowerment for signing
cheques / various instruments for and on behalf of the
Company.

3) To review Principal and Agency Agreement approved by
Chairman and Director.



(e)

6]

€]

(h)

“4)

)

To approve general expenditure (for single purpose) over
Rs.10 mn.

To consider and approve closure of Bank Accounts.

Risk Management Committee: The key responsibilities of the

Committee are:

(1
2

3)
“4)

)

Risk planning;

Risk assessment & monitoring — Economy Review, Industry
Review, Portfolio Review, Rating;

Risk systems (MIS and IT system integration); and

Risk reporting — Keeping the Board informed at regular
intervals of credit, market and operational Risk Profile of the
Company.

To lay down internal Rules, Policies, Processes and
Regulations with regard to Credit and delegate it to the
executives of the Company.

Residual Value Committee: The key responsibilities of the

Committee are:

(1
2

3)

“4)

Setting up of Residual Value Policy;

Setting up / alteration of Residual Value of Vehicles and
Maintenance budget of Vehicles (Per KM Maintenance
Cost);

Delegate powers of the Committee to the Executives of the
Company with regard to reduction in Residual Value and Per
KM Maintenance Cost of the Vehicles within the limits as
approved by the Committee; and

Approve Residual Value for leasing of Commercial Vehicle.

Credit Committee: The Committee is entrusted with the powers of

the Board of Directors with regard to approval of Credit Proposals
of various finance businesses of the Company. All the approvals are
obtained through electronic process i.e. system by virtue of Approval
Matrix of the Company.

CSR Committee: The key responsibilities of the Committee are:

(1

2)

To formulate & Update a CSR Policy and seek
recommendation of the Board on the CSR activities to be
undertaken by the Company.

To suggest areas of intervention & approve projects for CSR
activities.



(1)

W)

€)

4)
)

Put monitoring mechanisms in place to track the progress of
each project.

Recommend the CSR expenditure to the Board for approval.

Meet on half yearly basis to review the progress made, or at
such intervals periods and may be required by the Company.

Allocation and Allotment Committee: The key responsibilities of

the Committee are:

(1

2
3)

“4)

To allocate shares, debentures and other securities not
exceeding the amount of issue approved by the Board of
Directors of the Company from time to time;

To approve allotment of securities from time to time;

To affix or authorize affixation of Common Seal of the
Company on the security certificates of the company; and

To do all such acts, things or deeds as may be necessary or
incidental to the exercise of the above powers.

IT Strategy Committee:

(1

2

3)

“4)

)

(6)

(7

To work in partnership with other Board committees and
Senior Management to provide input to them;

To carry out review and amend the IT strategies in line with
the corporate strategies, Board Policy reviews, cyber security
arrangements and any other matter related to IT Governance.
Its deliberations may be placed before the Board;

Approving IT strategy and policy documents and ensuring
that the management has put an effective strategic planning
process in place;

Ascertaining that management has implemented processes
and practices that ensure that the IT delivers value to the
business;

Ensuring IT investments represent a balance of risks and
benefits and that budgets are acceptable;

Monitoring the method that management uses to determine
the IT resources needed to achieve strategic goals and provide
high-level direction for sourcing and use of IT resources;

Ensuring proper balance of IT investments for sustaining
NBFC’s growth and becoming aware about exposure towards
IT risks and controls;



(k)

®)

©)

To institute an effective governance mechanism and risk
management process for all IT outsourced operations;

In respect of IT outsourced operations, if any shall include:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

x)

Instituting an appropriate governance mechanism for
outsourced processes, comprising of risk based policies
and procedures, to effectively identify, measure,
monitor and control risks associated with outsourcing
in an end to end manner;

Defining approval authorities for outsourcing
depending on nature of risks and materiality of
outsourcing;

Developing sound and responsive outsourcing risk
management policies and procedures commensurate
with the nature, scope, and complexity of outsourcing
arrangements;

Undertaking a periodic review of outsourcing strategies
and all existing material outsourcing arrangements;

Evaluating the risks and materiality of all prospective
outsourcing based on the framework developed by the
Board;

Periodically reviewing the effectiveness of policies and
procedures;

Communicating significant risks in outsourcing to the
NBFC’s Board on a periodic basis;

Ensuring an independent review and audit in
accordance with approved policies and procedures;

Ensuring that contingency plans have been developed
and tested adequately;

NBFC should ensure that their business continuity
preparedness is not adversely compromised on account
of outsourcing. NBFCs are expected to adopt sound
business continuity management practices as issued by
RBI and seek proactive assurance that the outsourced
service provider maintains readiness and preparedness
for business continuity on an ongoing basis.

IT Steering Committee:

(1

Operating at an executive level and focusing on:



e Priority setting,

e Resource Allocation and

e Project Tracking.

(2) To provide oversight and monitoring of the progress of the
project, including deliverables to be realized at each phase of
the project and milestones to be reached according to the
project timetable.

(3) Attendance of the Committees of Directors:

Committees| Audit [Nominat|TreasuryResidual| Risk [Corpor| IT IT |*Alloc|*Executi[*Credit
ion & |& Asset| Value |Manag| ate [Strate|Steerin| ation ve |Commi
Remune |Liability)Committ| ement | Social | gy g and |Committ| ttee
ration [Commit{ ee |Commi[Respon Allotm| ee
Committ| ee ttee |sibility ent
€e Commi
ttee
No of 5 2 9 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0
Meetings
Name of
Member
Mr. Nagesh 5 2 NA NA NA | NA | NA| NA 0 NA NA
Dubey
Mr. Abhay 5 2 NA NA NA | 1 1 1 0 NA INA
Kakkar
Mr. Sandeep [NA NA 9 1 1 1 1 1 0 0 0
Gambhir
Mr. Kiyokazu 4 1 3 1 - - NA | NA 0 0 0
Ishinabe
Mr. Ryohei | NA NA 9 1 1 NA NA| NA | 0 0 0
Suzuki
Mr. Vivek  |NA NA NA NA NA | NA - - NA NA NA
Wadhera
Mr. Gurpreet NA NA NA NA NA NA 1 1 NA NA NA
Singh
Mr. Sandeep |[NA NA NA NA NA NA 1 1 NA | NA NA
Sinha
Mr. Dipankar [NA NA NA NA NA | NA 1 1 NA | NA NA
Sen
Mr. Rominderf NA NA NA NA NA NA - - NA | NA NA
Singh
Mr. Jay NA NA NA NA NA NA 1 1 NA | NA NA
Gandhi
Mr. Gaurav |NA NA NA NA NA | NA 1 1 NA | NA NA
Bhatia

* These Committees did not meet during the year, however, approvals wherever
required were taken by way of Circular Resolution.



(IV) Meeting of Independent Directors:

V)

In accordance with Section 149(8) of the Act read with Schedule IV of the Act, the
Independent Directors met separately on March 16, 2020 to review the performance
of Non-Independent Directors, Chairperson of the Company, the Board as a whole
and the flow of information between the Board and the management.

Sitting fees was paid to all the Independent Directors of the Company for attending
the meetings of Board of Directors and Committee meeting, wherever they are
members. The Sitting fees have been approved to Rs. 50,000/- per Board Meeting
and Rs. 20,000/~ per meeting for Committee meetings with effect from May 24,
2018.

Board Performance Evaluation Mechanism:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) had approved a framework for
performance evaluation of the Board of Directors, its Committees and the individual
Board members. This performance evaluation framework was designed based on the
following:

€8 Expertise;

2) Objectivity and Independence;

3) Guidance and support in context of life stage of the Company;
4 Understanding of the Company’s business;

(5) Understanding and commitment to duties and responsibilities;

(6) Willingness to devote the time needed for effective contribution to Company;
@) Participation in discussion in effective and constructive manner;

(8) Responsive in approach; and

9 Ability to encourage and motivate the management for continued

performance and success.

As part of the framework, structured questionnaires were prepared after taking into
consideration the inputs received from the Directors and NRC. These questionnaires
cover various aspects of the Board’s functioning including composition and quality,
culture, roles and responsibilities, processes and functioning, execution and
performance to specific duties, obligations and governance. The questionnaires
consist of:

(a) ‘Peer Review’ form given by the directors, rating performance of all other
Directors.
(b) ‘Committee Evaluation’ form given by the NRC, rating performance of

individual committees.

(©) ‘Board Assessment’ form given by NRC, rating performance of the Board
as a whole.



The questionnaires were reviewed in the below manner:

(a) ‘Peer Review” were reviewed by the NRC and placed before the Board for
their noting.

(b) ‘Committee Evaluation’ and ‘Board Assessment’ were reviewed by the
NRC and placed before the Board for their noting.

Further, the Independent Directors of the Company, at their separate meeting had
reviewed the performance of Non-Independent (Non-Executive) Directors on the

questionnaires pertaining to ‘Peer Review’ and ‘Board Assessment’.

(VD) General Meetings:

Meeting Date and Venue Resolutions passed

Time
13™ — Annual | June 27, Mumbai (1)Adoption of Audited Accounts
General 2019 for the FY 2018-2019 along
Meeting with the, Director’s Report and

Auditor’s Report;

(2)Re-appointment of Mr.
Kiyokazu Ishinabe (DIN
07763966) as Director liable to
retire by rotation;

(3)Re-appointment of statutory
Auditors;

Special Business:

(4)Appointment of Mr. Ryohei
Suzuki (DIN 08218888) as

Director;
(VII) Shareholding pattern as at March 31, 2020:
Name of Shareholder No. of equity shares held
ORIX Auto Infrastructure Services Ltd. (OAIS) 100,935,831
Individual and OAIS 70
Total (Issued & Paid-up Shares) 100,935,901




(VII) Contracts or arrangements with Related Parties:

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered into/ by the Company during the
financial year under review with related parties were on arms’ length basis and in
the ordinary course of business of the Company. There have been no materially
significant related party transactions, pecuniary transactions or relationships between
the Company and its Promoter, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other
designated persons that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company.

The Board of Directors of your Company have approved the Related Party
Transactions Policy, which governs the following:

(N Identifying related party(ies), updating and maintaining the database of such
person/entities;

2) Ascertaining that the transaction entered with the related party(ies) is/are in
‘ordinary course of business of business’ and at ‘arm’s length basis’;

3) Identifying related party(ies) transaction;

4 Obtaining approvals before entering into any related party(ies) transaction;

4) Determining the disclosures / compliances to be adhered in relation to the
related party(ies) transaction.

The said policy has been displayed on the website of the Company at
https://www.orixindia.com/pdf/OLFS-policy/corporate-
governance/policy/Related%20Party%20Transaction%20Policy.pdf

Transactions with related parties, as per the requirements of Accounting Standard
18, are disclosed to the notes to accounts annexed to the financial statements.



Annexure-H

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 9 of the

(1

2

3)

4)

)

Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programs —The CSR Policy has been formulated in accordance
with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. Various projects are
within the framework of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013. The web link to
the CSR policy is at https://www.orixindia.com/pdf/OLFS-policy/corporate-
governance/policy/CSRPolicy.pdf

The Composition of the CSR Committee:

Mr. Kiyokazu Ishinabe - Director

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir —-Managing Director

Mr. Abhay Kakkar — Additional Director (Independent Director)

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: Rs. 441,374,563,
2016-2017,2017-2018 and 2018-2019)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above) —Rs.
8,827,492/-

Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year - Rs. 8,827,492/--
(b) Amount unspent, if any - None

(©) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed
below :



Sr. CSR project or Sector Location | Amount Amount Cumulat Amount
No. | activity identified outlay spent on the ive spent
(budget) | projects or | expendit through
Project programs | ure upto | implementi
Wise Direct the ng agency*
(Amount | expenditure | reportin
in Rs.) on projects | g period
or (Amount
programs in Rs.)
Overheads

(1) | Payment of college | Promoting | Kanchipur| 2,50,000 Direct 2,50,000 | Implementin
and education | am expenditure g Agency
Hostel Fees for District, on project (Rising Star
leprosy Tamil Outreach of
affected and below Nadu India)
poverty line
students at
Rising Star
Outreach of
India

(2) | Coaching program | Promoting | Nerul, 5,00,000 Direct 5,00,000 | Implementin
for Education | Navi expenditure g Agency
persons with and Mumbeai on project (Sujaya
disabilities at employme Foundation)
Matrumilan Vikas nt
Kendra. enhancing

vocation
skills.

(3) | Jan Mitra Nyas- Promoting | Varanasi £0,00,000 Direct 20,00,000 | Implementin
Varanasi for | Health care expenditure g Agency
reduction in | including on program (Child
maternal, infant and | preventive Rights
child deaths, | health care and You)
creation of health | and
care centres and sanitation
complete care of
children in the age
group of 0-18 years

(4) | Sponsor ‘Sets of Promoting | Zapwadi, [5,00,000 Direct 5,00,000 | Implementin
Benches & Desks’ | Education | Murbad expenditure g Agency
for residential tribal Taluka, on program (Social
school situated at Dist. Upliftment
Anudanit Thane,. and
Ashramshala Developmen
Zapwadi, Murbad t
Taluka, Dist. Thane, for Health
Mabharashtra. Action)

(5) | Supporting dialysis | Promoting | Kandivali 3,00,000 Direct 13,00,000 [Implementing
patients by utilising | Health care | , expenditure Agency
CSR  funds for Mumbai. on project (Shree
carrying out dialysis Kandivali

at their hospital




located Kandivali, Hithwardhak
Mumbeai. Mandal )

(6) | Helping many | Promoting | Kandivali {5,00,000 Direct 5,00,000 [Implementing
Underprivileged Education |, Mumbai expenditure Agency
students for their on project (Shiksha
Education at the Foundation)
school located at
Kandivali, Mumbai.

(7) | Bringing  holistic | Promoting | Chennai, | 7,17,000 Direct 7,17,000 [Implementing
Food and nutrition | Health care | Lucknow expenditure Agency
to underprivileged and on project (Cuddles
children  fighting Mumbai Foundation)
cancer through their
hospitals located at
Chennai, Lucknow
and Mumbai

(8) | Purchase of | Promoting | Mumbai 5,00,000 Direct 5,00,000 [mplementing
furniture and | Education expenditure Agency
Purchase of on project (Aseema
Surveillance Charitable
Equipments, Trust)
Mumbeai

(9) | Purchase of Medical | Promoting | Mumbai | 25,60,492 | Direct 25,60,492 [Implementing
Equipments for | Health expenditure Agency
cancer patients and | Care on project (Tata
financial aid for | including Memorial
treatment of | Preventive Centre)
children with | Health
Cancer Care.

Total 88,27,492 88,27,492

Digitally signed by SANDEEP
GAMBHIR
DN: c=IN, o=Personal,
postalCode=110087, st=Delhi,
2.54.20=4fafdb1a47b71fa3591c157d
135d20c602ffb1e57fa312b29c15afal
369b4368,
serialNumber=00e340e sbe78d8df82
9a9027b902b30cad27a4c0387c64fdb
a591¢878276c6a5, cn=SANDEEP
GAMBHIR

Date: 2020.07.07 19:42:19 +05'30'

Mr. Sandeep Gambhir
Managing Director
DIN:00083116

Digitally signed by RYOHEI
SUZUKI

RY H E I DN: c=JP, o=Personal,
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+05'30'

Mr. Ryohei Suzuki
Director
DIN: 08218888
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Chartered Accountants

5th Floor, Lodha Excelus, Telephone +91 (22) 4345 5300
) Apollo Mills Compound Fax +91 (22) 4345 5399
~y N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi
Mumbai - 400 011
India

Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Report on the audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020, the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 45 to the financial statements, in respect of accounts overdue but standard as at 29
February 2020 where moratorium benefit has been granted, the staging of those accounts at 31 March
2020 is based on the days past due status as at 29 February 2020 in accordance with the Reserve Bank
of India COVID-19 Regulatory Package.

As described in Note 48(ii) to the financial statements, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic
will impact the Company’s financial performance is dependent on future developments, which are
highly uncertain.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

B S R & Co (a partnership firm with Registered Office:
Registration No. BA61223) converted into 5th Floor, Lodha Excelus

B S R & Co. LLP {a Limited Liability, Partnership Apollo Mills Compound

with LLP Registration No. AAB-8181) N. M. Joshi Marg, Mahalaxmi

with effect from October 14, 2013 Mumbai - 400 011 .India

v



BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements ot the current year. 'I'hese matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

Transition date accounting policies due to adoption of Ind-AS
Refer to the accounting policies in the financial statements: Significant Accounting Policies- Basis of

preparation and Notes 54 to the financial statements.
The kev audit matter

Effective 1 April 2019, the Company adopted the Ind
AS notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with
the transition date of 1 April 2018.

The following are the major impact areas for the
Company upon transition:

e Classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities

Measurement of impairment loss allowance
Gain/ loss on assignment of loans

Accounting for loan fees and costs

Additional disclosures as per the requirements
of the new financial reporting framework

The migration to the new accounting framework (Ind
AS) is a complicated process involving multiple
decision points upon transition. Ind AS 101, First
Time Adoption prescribes choices and exemptions
for first time application of Ind AS principles at the
transition date.

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

How the matter was addressed in our audit

We performed the fotlowing key audit procedures:

e Assessed the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over management’s evaluation of transition
date choices and exemptions availed in line
with the principles under Ind-AS 101.

e Confirmed the approvals of policies made by
the Company for compliance/acceptability
under Ind-AS.

e Evaluated management’s transition date
choices and exemptions for compliance under
Ind-AS 101.

e Assessed the methodology implemented by
management to give impact on the transition.

e  Assessed the accuracy of the computations

o Assessed areas of significant estimates and
management judgment in line with principles
under Ind-AS.

Charge: Rs. 1,684 lakhs for year ended 31 March 2020

Provision: Rs. 4,782 lakhs at 31 March 2020

Refer to the accounting policies in “Note 1.9 to the Financial Statements: Impairment”, “Note 1.3 to the
Financial Statements: Significant Accounting Policies- use of estimates” and “Note 4 (o the Financial

Statements: Loans”

The kev audit matter

Recognition and measurement of impairment of loans
and advances involve significant management
judgement.

Under Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, allowance
for loan losses are determined using expected credit
loss (ECL) model. The Company’s impairment
allowance is derived from estimates including the
historical default and loss ratios. Management
exercises judgement in determining the quantum of
loss based on a range of factors.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
Our key audit procedures included:

Design / controls

e Evaluation of the appropriateness of the
impairment principles used by
management based on the requirements of
Ind AS 109, our business understanding
and industry practice.

e Understanding management’s  revised
processes, systems  and  controls
implemented in relation to impairment
allowance process, particularly in view of
COVID-19 regulatory package.



BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

The key audit matter
The most significant areas are:

- Segmentation of loan book

- Determination of exposure at default

- Loan staging criteria

- Calculation of probability of default / Loss
given default

- Consideration of probability weighted scenarios
and forward looking macro-economic factors

The application of ECL model requires several data

inputs. This increases the risk of complctencss and

accuracy of'the data that has been used to create

assumptions in the model. In some cases, data is

unavailable and reasonable alternatives have been

applied to allow calculations to be performed.

Impact of COVID-19

On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organisation
declared the WNovel Coronavirus (COVID-19)
outbreak to be a pandemic.

We have identified the impact of, and uncertainty
related to the COVID 19 pandemic as a key element
and consideration for recognition and measurement
of impairment of loans and advances on account of?

Short and long term macroeconomic effect on
businesses in the country and globally and its
consequential first order and cascading negative
impact on revenue and employment generation
opportunities;

impact of the pandemic on the Company’s
customers and their ability to repay dues; and

application of regulatory package announced by
the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) on asset
classification and provisioning.

Management has conducted a qualitative assessment
of significant increase in credit risk (SICR) of the
loan portfolio with respect to the moratorium benefit
to borrowers prescribed by the RBI and considered
updated macroeconomic scenarios and the use of
management overlays to reflect potential impact of
COVID-19 on expected credit losses on its loan
portfolio.

How the matter was addressed In our audit

Evaluating management’s controls over
collation of relevant information used for
determining estimates for management
overlays on account of COVID-19.

e Testing the controls over ‘Governance
Framework’ in line with the RBI guidance.

e Assessing the design and implementation
of key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used (o calculale the
impairment charge.

e Using specialists to test the model
methodology and reasonableness  of
assumptions used, including management
overlays.

e Testing of review controls over
measurement of impairment allowances
and disclosures in financial statements.

Substantive tests

e Assessing the  appropriateness  of
management rationale for determination of
criteria for SICR considering both: adverse
effects of COVID-19 and mitigants in the
form of the RBI / Government financial
relief package.

e Assessing the appropriateness of changes
made in macroeconomic factors and
management overlays to calibrate the risks
that are not yet fully captured by the
existing model.

Corroborate through independent check
and enquiries the reasonableness of
management’s assessment of grading of
severity of impact of COVID-19 on
segments of its loan portfolio and the
resultant impairment provision computed.

o Focus on appropriate application of
accounting principles, validating
completeness and accuracy of the data and
reasonableness of assumptions used in the
model.



BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Impairment of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed In our audit

Information Technology - IT Systems and Controls
The key audit matter

The Company’s key financial accounting and
reporting processes are dependent on the automated
controls in information systems, such that there exists
a risk that gaps in the IT control environment could
result in the financial accounting and reporting
records being misstated.

Due to the large transaction volumes and the
increasing challenge to protect the integrity of the
Company’s systems and data, controls around IT
Systems have become more significant.

We have focused on user access management,
program change management, segregation of duties
and system application controls over key financial
accounting and reporting systems.

e Test of details over of calculation of
impairment allowance for assessing the
completeness, accuracy and relevance of
data.

e Model calculations testing through re-
performance where possible.

e The appropriateness of management’s
judgments was also independently
reconsidered in respect of calculation
methodologies, segmentation, economic
factors, the period of historical loss rates
used and the valuation of recovery assets
and collateral.

e Assessing the factual accuracy and
appropriateness of the additional financial
statements disclosures made by the
Company regarding impact of COVID-19.

How the matter was addressed in our audit
We performed the following key audit procedures:

We tested a sample of key controls operating
over the information technology in relation to
financial accounting and reporting systems,
including system access and system change
management, program development and
computer operations.

We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of key controls over user access
management which includes granting access
right, new user creation, removal of user rights
and preventative controls designed to enforce
segregation of duties.

For a selected group of key controls over
financial ~and  reporting  system, we
independently  performed  procedures  to
determine that these controls remained
unchanged during the year or were changed
following the standard change management
process.

Evaluated the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of the significant.
accounts-related IT automated controls which
are relevant to the accuracy of system
calculation, and the consistency of data
transmission.



BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the intformation included in the Director’s report and management
discussion & analysis report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the financial statements

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

L\

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the }/financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.



BSR&Co.LLP

Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial ngices India Limited
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the audit of the A]ancial statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
protessional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures in the financial statements made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

5%
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”™) issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 (A) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2020 and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2020 on
its financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35.1 to the financial
statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The
Company did not have any derivative contracts during the year. - Refer Note 35.3 to
the financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

The disclosures in the financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in
specified bank notes during the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016
have not been made in these financial statements since they do not pertain to the
financial year ended 31 March 2020.

W)
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (Continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid / provided by the company to its directors during the current year is in
accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any
director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry
of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are
required to be commented upon by us.

For BSR & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 101248W/W-100022

Pﬁr\”c, VAN M:

Ajit Viswanath
Mumbai Partner
7 July 2020 Membership No: 067114

ICAI UDIN: 200671 14AAAABB1651



BSR&Co.LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Qther Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, includin
p P g
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its fixed assets by
which all the fixed assets are verified in a phased manner over a period of two years. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the
size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are
held in the name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such physical verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

1 According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books and records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the
register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

v According (o the information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of
the books and records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans to any director or
any person in whom director is interested in terms of Section 185 of the Act. Further, Section 186
of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

v According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books and records of the Company, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public as per the directives issued by Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to
76 or other relevant provisions of the Act and rules framed there under. Accordingly, paragraph
3 (v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

vi According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books and records of the Company, the Central Government has not prescribed the
maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Act, for any of the
activities conducted / services rendered by the Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(vi) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

Vil (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the book and records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other material
statutory dues have been generally regularly deposited during the year by the Company
with the appropriate authorities. As explained to us, the Company does not have any
dues on account of sales tax, value added tax, service tax, duty of customs and duty
of excise.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable. N /
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020 (Continued)

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the following statutory dues have not been
deposited by the Company on account of disputes:

\2111

1X

xI.

xii.

Name of the Nature of AmountRs, Period to which Forum where dispute is pending

Statute Dues amount relates

Income  Tax Income Tax 18,211,940 AY 2012-13 Commissioner of Income Tax (appeals)
Act, 1961 Mumbai

Income  Tax Income Tax 2,482,110 AY 2013-14 Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 (appeals) Mumbai

Income Tax Income Tax 8,999,596 AY 2014-15 Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 (appeals) Mumbai

Income Tax Income Tax 23,813,398 AY 2017-18 Assistant Commissioner of Income Tax
Act, 1961 (appeals) Mumbai

Value Added VAT 38,559,650 AY 2012-13 and Joint Commissioner of sales Tax, Delhi
Tax Act AY 2013-14

Value Added VAT 2,458,111 AY 2011-12 Joint Commissioner of sales Tax,
Tax Act Maharashtra

Value Added VAT 410,072 AY 2013-14 Appellate Deputy Commissioner CT, West
Tax Act Bengal

Value Added VAT 3,898 AY 2013-14 Appellate Deputy Commissioner CT, West
Tax Act Bengal

Value Added VAT 5,926,885 AY 2012-13 Joint  Commissioner of Sales Tax,
Tax Act Mabharashtra

Goods and TRAN-1 26,848,810 AY 2018-19 Deputy Commissioner of Sales Tax,
Service Tax ITC Mabharashtra

Acl reversal

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of outstanding dues to financial
institution, bank or debenture holder during the year. The Company did not have any
borrowings from the government during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer. According to the information and explanations given to us, the term loans taken by
the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud
by the Company or any material instance of fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by
management.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
books and records of the Company, the Company has paid/provided for managerial remuneration
in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with
Schedule V of the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
not a Nidhi Company as per the Act. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report on the Financial Statements
of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020 (Continued)

xiii.  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

xiv.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

XV. According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into any material non-cash transactions
with directors or person connected with them. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

xvi.  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records, the Company has registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934,

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

Aj{t Vi v

Ajit Viswanath
Mumbai Partner
7 July 2020 Membership No: 067114

ICAI UDIN: 20067114AAAABB1651
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements
of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

(Referred to in paragraph A(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ORIX Leasing &
Financial Services India Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2020, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (“the Guidance Note™)

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Emphasis of Matter paragraph of our report to the financial statements, the extent to
which the COVID-19 pandemic will have an impact on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements is dependent on future developments, which are highly uncertain. Our
opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as “the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. N
i g
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements
of ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020 (Continued)

Auditors’ Responsibility (Continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the
risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequale
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

AJX\ - \{\sw oo In

Ajit Viswanath
Mumbai Partner
7 July 2020 Membership No: 067114

ICAI UDIN: 20067114AAAABB1651



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

(All amounts sre in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Particulars
ASSETS

1 Financlal assets
(a) Cash and cash squivalanis
(b} Bank balances other then {a) above
e}  Loans
{d) Trads recsivable
(o) Olher financial assals

Total Financiat assets

(a) {nvenlories

(b} Current tex assels (nat)

(c) Deferred tax assels (nel)

(d) Property, plant and equipment
(o) Right-of-usa assets

] Intangible assets

(9)  Other non-inancial assets

Total non-financlel assets

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES
Financial lablikias
(a) Trade Payables
(i) Trade payabies
- Total outstanding dues of Micro and Smak Enterprises
- Total outslanding dues of Creditors other than Micro and Small
Enlerprises
(b) Debt Securilles
(c) Borrowings (Olher Ihan debl securilies)
{d) Lease liabillies
(8) Deposits
(0] Other financial liabilties

Total Financial llablifties

2
{a)  Cument tax liabiiias (net)
(b)  Provision for Employess' Retirement Benefits
{c) Provisions
(d)  Other non-finencial liablitias
Total Non-Financ!al llabliities
3 Equity
(1) Equity shara capital
()] QOlher equily

Total Equity

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Stgniticant accounting policies

Thae accompanying notes are an iregral part cf these Financial Statemants

our

ForBSR&Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm’ Reglstration No: 101248W/W-100022

MOV 1S W ool

Al Viswanath
Panner
Mambership No: 067114

Notes

Managing Director

Vivek Wadhera

CFO

e w

10
1
12
13

15
16
18
17
18

19
20
21

23
24

000831

A at A at As at
31 March 2020 31 Mareh 3018 01 April 2018

3,766 1,374 448

88 74 72

2,44,684 253,381 1,62 883

660 280 100

3128 2488 524

2,862,323 2,857,677 1.94.027

19 55 12

1428 957 183

5.454 7,055 7,318

2,484 2,938 1,820

308 423 551

66 "1 156

4,941 5,854 2,896

13.014

2.67.013 2,07.041
1" 15

2,095 2,790 101

20,000 52,000 52,000

1,683,344 161,722 1,02,827

348 a52 561

1,249 1,305 623

2,127 2,474 1,562

2,059,174 2,20,848 1,567,804

1186 3% 143

141 164 123

16 9 2

471 460 307

oov [14]

10,094 10,094 10,094

47,001 43,378 39,708

o7,u30 03,473 50,0VE

£07,U13 2,{0,U70 LyUFum |

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

ot

Ryohe! Suzukl
Direciar
(DIN - 08218888)

Meota Sanghvl
Company Secralory



ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services India Limited
Statement of profit and lose for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Particulars

Revsnue from operations

(1} Interest income

(Il) Fees and commission income
(ili) Net gain on fair value changes
Total Revenue from operations

Other Income
| Total income (I + )

v Expenses
(i) FInance cost
(il) Impairment on financial instruments
{iil) Employee benefit expense
(iv) Depreciation, amorisation and impairment
(v} Other expensas

Total expensas {IV)

v Profit before tax (I-1v)
Vi Tax Expenses
Current tax

Tax expenses relating to prior years

Deferred tax
Vil Profit for the year
Vil Other Comprehensive Income
A Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurements of post-employemant benefit obligation
Income tax related o items that wil not be reclassified to profit or loss

Others Comprehensive Income for the year

X Total Comprehensive Income for the year

X Earn equity share (Face value ¥ 10 per share)
[():] ees)
(i) Diluted (Rupees)
Significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
ForBSR & Co,LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Repistration No: 101248W/W-100022

AJit Viswanath
Partner
Membership No: 067114

Mumbal
07 July 2020

Year endad
Notas 31 Maroh 2020

26 31,628
26 424
27 72
32,124
28 2,680
34,804
28 17,972
30 1,807
3 3,401
a2 927
33 3,110
21,217
7,587
2,321
18
1,608
3640
24
5
18
3622

34
350
359

Year ended
31 March 2019

28,857
450

71
20,378

2,659
32,038
16,101

1,614

3,926

a1

3,007
25,369

6,879

1632
83
279

4,705

52
18

4.671

4.63
483

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors
ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services Indla Limited

Y

Gambhir

Managing Director
(DIN -

Vivek Wadhera
CFO

Director
(DIN - 08218888)

Mesota Sanghvl
Company Secretary



ORIX Leasing & Financisl Services India Limited
Statement of Changss In Equity (SOCIE)
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, oxcept as slated)

Note {a) : Equity share capital
Balance al the beginning of the raporting ysar Bajance

Chanpes in equily share capital during the year
Balance at the end of the reparting year

Total
Particulars Statutory Reserve Securitles premium  Rstained esmings
1405 30,503 4,380 38,088
2824 2,624
23 (4)
2620 2820
518 (518)
1.923 30.200 6482 3a 708
. Total
Particulars Statutory Reserve  Securities pmmium  Retsined eamings
ati 1923 38.708
for the year 4,705 4,705
comprehansive income for the year 134y {34}
comprehensive Income for tha year 4671 4,071
on Equity Shares issued during the year
lo Staulory Reserve 874 (874)
2797 0,393 10.27¢ 43.379
i " . . N Total
Particulars Statutory Resorve Securitias premium Relained earnings
Baance at 1 Apnl, 2019 2787 30303 10279
Profit for ths year 3,840 3,640
Other comprehensive income lor the year 18 [¢L:]]
Total comprehensive income for he year aa22

Expanses on Equity Shares Issued during the year
Transfer to Siatutory Reserve 71 (731)

Balance at 31 March, 2020 30303 13170
1n equuy should be accompanying notes

ForBSR& Co. LLP For and on behalt of the Board of Directors

Chartersd Accountants DRIX Leasing & Financtsl Sarvices india Limited
Firm's Registration No: 101248W/W-100022 CIN:
/s“ L Visw oo N /
Ajit Viswanath Gambhir Ryohei Suzuki
Partner Director Dirctor
Msmbership No: 067114 (DIN - 00083116) (DIN - DB218888)
-

Vivek Wadhera Meata Sanghvi

CFo Company Secrefary
Mumbai

07 July 2020



ORIX Leasing & Flnanclal Services India Limited
Caeh flow statement

for Ihe year ended 31 March 2020

{All amounts are In INR Lakhs, except as stated )

Year ended Yoar ended

31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit Before Tax 7,687 6,679
Adjustments for working capital changes:
Dapraciation and amortisation expenses 927 811
Prafit on sale of fixed assels 1 -
Other Comprehensive Income (25) {52)
Loss Allowance ECL 1,884 1,319
Sundry belances writlen off 24 -
Bad debts written off 99 -
Sundry balancas written back (243) (103)
Expenses for shorl lerm {sases 200 208
Net operating cash flow before working capltal changes T 10.254 8,083
Adjustmentst:
I /(D ) in Loan and Ad 8,577 (74,561)
Increase / (Decrease) in irade / oiher payables (2,690) 4,924
Increass / (Decreasa) In other liablities & provisions (21,420) 6,202
Proceeds from Loans assigned : 8,041
Not cash usad In operating activitles befors taxes (5,279) (45,630)
Less: Taxes pald (nat of refunds) {2,700) {2,835}
Cash flows used In operating activities -A [7.679) {48, 285)
Cash flow from Investing activilies
Purchase of fixed assets (390) {1,681)
Proceeds fram sale of fixed assats 96 4
Invesiment In fixed deposite (80) (134)
Redemption in fixed deposiis 73 129
Net cash flows (used In)/from Investing activides -B (301} (1,662)




ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Cash flow statement (Conlinuad)
for the year ended 31 Mateh 2020

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

Cash flow from financing activities

Year ended
31 March 2020

Year ended
31 March 2018

Proceeds from Processing Fees 27 (32)
Praceeds from long-term borrowings 85,000 1,00,000
Proceeds from short-larm hormowings 3,26,308 32,000
Rapayment of long term borrowings (85,451) (37.817)
Repaymaeni of short term borrowings (3,15,108) (43,200)
Increase / (Decreass) in Leasa Liabilty on principal component (101) 13
Incesass / (Decrease) In Lease liabiity Intereat portion {3) 38
Net cash flows generated from finencing activities - G 10672 50,852
Net Increaue / (Decroase) in cash & cash squlvalents (A«B+E) 2,392 926
Cash & cash squivalents as at (he beginning of the year 1,374 448
Cash and cash cquivalents as at the end of the year (Refer Note 2 (a)) 1,768 1,974

The accompanying noles (orm an Integral part of these financlal siatements

As per our repart of even date attached
The above stalement of cesh flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows'

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
QRIX Laasing & Financlal Services Indla Limited
CIN : UT4800MH2006PLC 163937

AN SR G

Allt Viswanath Sandesp Gambhir Ryohel Suzukl
Pariner Managing Director Oirector

ForBSR& Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reglstration No: 101248W/W-100022
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ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

Company Overview and Significant Accounting policies

Company Overview

a ted nd
n 45 of
n Co rat
The Company provides financial services such as Finance Leasing of Passenger Cars, installment loans for Commercial Vehicles
ainst Property ("LAP") in In he company has its listed on Nationa! Stock ("NSE").
stered office is at Plotno .94, 1Co. op. industrial , Andheri-kurla road, An Mumbai-400 059,

1.2 Statement of compliance and basis of preparation & prescntation

(a) Stalement of compliance

been in accor with the Ac ing Standards rred
Com ct, 2013 Acl") rea Co ics (Indian Ac ting
The Company’s cial st cnts and for ( r ended 31 March were prepared in ce with the Gen
Accepted Accou Princ inl (IGAAP) the historical cost ention as a going and on accrual
ar
1
si
cash flow of the pany is provided in 54,
or separate fina statemcnts werg ap d by the Company’s Board of Direclors and authorised for issue on

(b) Basis of preparation

These separate financial statcments have been prepared in Indian Rupee (') which is the functional currency of the Company All

ren the Company has considered an operating cycle of 12 months. The statement of cash flows have been prepared under
ind ethod.

Accounting pol have consistently appl  cxcept wherea  ly issued nling standard is initially adopted or a revision
lo ancxistinga  nting ard requiresa ch ¢ in the accoun  policy hi in use.

The Balan eL, the Statement of Changes in ty Statement of Profit 1 ented forma  seri
undet Div TolSchedule U1 of the Act, as de ime to lime, for No n ial Co es ("N s’)

arc required to comply with Ind-AS. The Statement of Cash Flows has been presented as per the requirements of Ind-AS 7 Statement
of Cash Flows.

Standards Issued but not Effective Yet
As at 31 March 2020, there are no standards which are issued but not effective.
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1.3 Use of estimates

‘The preparation of the separalc financial statcments in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires
management to make eslimales, judgments and assumptions. Thesc cstimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent asscts and liabilities at the date
of the separale financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting
policics that require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions in these
separate financial statements have been disclosed in the relevant disclosures Accounting estimates could change from period to
period Actual resulls could differ from those estimates Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management hecomes aware
of changes in circumstances surrounding the cstimates Changes in estimates are reflected in the separate financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the separate tinancial statements,

This note provides an overview of (he arcas thal involved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more
likely to be materially adjusted due to estimates and assumplions tuming oul to be different than those originally assessed. Dctailed
information aboul each of thesc eslimales and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of
cateulalion for cach affected line item in the separate financial statemcents.

Critical cstimates and judgements
Thc arcas involving critical cstimates or judgements are:

[stimated useful fifc of property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible asset - useful life of PPE and Intangible assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation - Key actuarial assumptions including salary escalation rate, discount rate, mortality ratc,
atlcition rate,

Recognition of deferred tax assels on availability of future taxable income - availability of future taxable profil

Impairment of trade receivables and financial assets - The measurement of impairment losses on loan assets and commitments and
trade receivables, requircs judgement, in estimating the amount and timing of futurc cash flows and recoverability of coliateral values
while determining the impairment losscs and assessing a significant incrcasc in credit risk.

‘The Company’s Expecled Credit Loss (ECL) calculation is the output of a complex model with a number ol underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencics Elements of the ECL model that are considered accounting
judgements and estimates include:

- The Company’s critcria for assessing if therc has been a significant increase in credit risk

- The segmentalion of financial assels when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

- Development ol ECL model, including the various formulae and the choice of inputs

- Selection of forward-looking mucrocconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic inputs into the
ECL model

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its model in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary

The COVID-19 pandemic and the long-drawn lock-down has resuited in a significant decrease in the economic activities globally as
well as across our country. The extent of impact of COVID-19 on economic growth of the country is difficult to predict and will
mainly depend on the future developments in containment of COVID-19 and the actions laken for resumption of operations, which
is highly uncertain.

The extent to which Lhe global pandemic will impact the Company's assessment and resullant loss provisions is uncertain The
Company has asscssed the polential impact of COVID-19 on the carrying value of its assets based on relevant intemal and external
lactors / information available at the time of making these judgements. In relation to COVIN-19, crilical cstimates and judgements
include the extent and duration of the pandemic, the markets and industry in which it operales, ils customer’s ability to continue in
businessand | rt pro vernmenl, assumptions 1s such us growth rates and changes in working capital
balances, liqu y sis, di , credit-spread/ counter it risk, etc

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that may have a (inancial impact on the Company and that arc belicved to be reasonable under the circumstances

1.4 Revenue Recognition

The Company eams revenue primacily from providing passenger vehicles on Finunce Lease, Finance installment loans for
Commercial Vehicles and Loan against Property

Income from operations Is recognized on accrual basis

W~ .



Finance lease:

Finance income is apportioned over the period ol primary lease at the Intemnal Rate of Return and in respect of Loans.
In respect of Maintenance Linked Lease ("MLL"), [ease rentals are segregated between recovery for asset financed and maintenance

ges. The Finance income is ed over the pri lease at [ntemal Rate of Retum Method. The maintenance costs are
gnised and accounted for as as and when in d.

In  ear outofmodi  ion in Fin eis ise n the recoverab ft me is asc

In Dir ost which in  es increm loye for is amortised as se the lease

Loan against hypothccation and Loan npainst property

Initigh di cost including urigination fecs, brokerage expenses, is amortised as income/expense on effective interest rate basis over
the loan od.

In direct cost including inc employee cost credit cval as cxpense over the leasc pe

In e arising out of delayed tin Loansis re  1ised when le and when il is not unreas le to
expect their ultimate collection

Operating lcase income

Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the Statement ol profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

a Property, plant and cquipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any Cost comprises of cost of
acquisition, cost of improvements and any attributable cost of bringing the assels (o its working condition for intended use

b. The cost of fixed assets not rcady for their intended use at the balance sheet date is disclosed under capital work in progress.

c. d and Buildings arc taken on a long-term composite e ‘The Company has assessed the lease of land and building scparately

concluded that both of thesc leases are financelea  n naturc.

Assets given by the Compuny under operaling lease are included in fixed assets

¢ PPE is derecognised on disposal or when no futurc cconomic benefits are expecled from its use Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (caculated as the difference betwoen the net disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount of the

t .
f. 1er stalutory cosls that do ase

3 r. Any change in these e are
accounted as change in accounting estimates.

1.5.1 Depreciation / Amortisation:

ciation / A on inc method at the rales presc  d under part “C” of Sc e Il to the

anies Act, ets. ful life of the asset is the per  over which the asset is cled to be
ble for the

Asset Type Useful life
4-7 years
4 vears
6 vears
a iat the month of pur  se is calculaled in the criod from the date of purchase and depreciation for the
of calculated inthe  portionate period till t

b.Fixed assets costing less than INR 5,000 are charged 1o the Statement of profit and loss

16 Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less ncoumulatod amortisation and impairment,
Intangiblcs arc ¢ alised  ost of acquisit including cost alttibutable lo rea g he assel for use.

Intangible assets  amorl  Jover theirres  tive individual cstimated uscful!  ona straight-line basis, from the date that they
arc available for use

Amortis  nm  dand uscful lives are wed periodically i gat financial year end
Support  ma  ance payable annuall charged to the sta of p and loss

N/ v/ /



! 7 Financial instruments

| 7.1 Initial Recognition

The Company recoguizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument  All financial assets and liabilities are 1ecognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which
arc initially measured at transaction price Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial linbilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss are added to the fair value on initial recognition. Regular way
purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at trade date

1.7.2 De-recognition of financial instruments

The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial assel expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the tiansfer qualifies for de-recognition under Ind AS 109, A financial liability is derecognised
when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference between Lhe carrying value of the original
financia! fiability and the consideration paid is recogniscd in the statement of profit and loss.

1.7.3 Subsequent measurement
a Non-derivative financial instrumcnts

i. Financial assets carried al amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset
in order (o collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

1i. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the conlractual lerms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest the principal amount
outstanding

iii. Financial assets al (air value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is nol classified in any of the above categorics arc subscquently fair valued through profit or loss.

iv Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carricd ut amortized cost using the efective interest method For trade and other payables
maturing within onc year [rom the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these
instruments

b. Share Capital

Ordinary Shares

Ordinary shares are classificd as equity. Incremental costs dircctly altributable to the issvance of new ordinary sharcs and share
options are recognized as a deduction from equily, net of any tax ¢ ffects.

1.8 FFair value of financial instrumcnts

A number of Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the incasurement of fair values, for both financial and non-

financial assets and liabilitics.
In detcrmining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uscs a variety of methods and assumptions that are based on

ist The methods used to determine inclu is d flow
ke All methods of assessing lair v ting al xi  onof
er

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets tor identica) assets and liabilitics

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indircctly
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobset vable inputs)

1.9 Impairment

a. Financial assets

izes | i expe
or lo ises |
since enth i

N oL W



instrament has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to 12 month ECL. If the credit risk is increased significantly, life time allowance is measured

The assessment of whether ¢ ECl. should be recogniscd is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a defaui;
occurring since inilial recog

a has i0
id and 4
ta tativ is

For trade receivables, Company mecasures loss allowances using simplificd approach.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured al amoilised cost are deducted [i oin Lthe gross canying amount of the assets,

The of expe it losscs (or re ) that is requ o adjust the Joss allowance at the reporting date to the amount
that cd to be ed as an impai gain or loss i fitor loss.

b Non-financial assets

Intangiblc assets and property, plant and cquipment

In <} plan Is or n mslances
in n unts he re a t(ic.the
hi 1 st to basis ¢ does not

generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for
the Cash Gencrating Unit (o which the asset belongs.

IT'such assets are considered to be impaircd, the impainment to be recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss is measured by the
amount by which the currying value of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the asset, An impairment loss is

sed nt of profit and loss i has been a am (3

ing assct is increased to sed recove the 3
amount d been determined (net of any accum ent n
recogniz as 1 prior years,

.10 Provisions, Contingent liability and Contingent assets
[+
a w
t
1

n
the reporting period, laking into accounl the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash llows at a pre-tax rale that reflects current market assessinents of the time value of money and
the risks specific (o the liability,

When there is ible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no
provision or di re is made.
Contingent Assels are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements

1.11 Foreign currency transactions

Initial recognition
curr ran ns are recorded in the ng cy, by a ng to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate
the ing ncy and the foreign cu at e of the action,

Subsequent measurement

Attheend ofe portin od, mon items de ated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-mon items d at the alue that nomin in gn currencics t ted at t tesp ng
at the date when the lue was dete d Non- items are  suredinterms t cost in eigh cy
are not relransiated. ifference on ation is o the Statement of profit and loss account,

[.12 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease , as defined under IND AS |16, is based on whether fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the usc of a specific asset and the arrangement conveys a right o use the asset, even if that right is not
explicitly specificd in an arrangement.

Company as a Lessor
£s where the lessor tr subslantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are classified as finance

1 and other leascs are ¢ d as operating lease.



Company as a fessee:

The Company at the commencement of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and corresponding lease
liability, except for leases with term of less than twelve months (short lerm leases) and Jlow-value assels For these short term and
low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operaling expense

1.13 Assct retircment obligations (*ARQ’)

ARO is initially measured al the present value of expected cost Lo settle Uhe obligation and accounted for in the books if found
material

1.14 Retirement and other employee benefits:

1. Short term cmployee benefits

Short-term employee benefits arc expensed as the related service is provided at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expecled to
be paid in exchange for that service A liability is recognised for the amount expected 1o be paid if the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation to pay this amounl as a result of past service provided by the employec and the obligation can be estimated
reliably

fi. Post-Employment Benefits
Define contribulion plans

The Company has taken group gratuity- cum -life assurance schemne of Life [nsurance Corporalion of India for gratuity payable
to the employecs and incremental liability based on actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit mcthod as at the
reporting dale, is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Define benefit plans

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is defined benefit plan. The Company's nct obligation in respect of a defincd bencfit plan is
calculated by cstimating the amount of future bencfit that employecs have earned in retum for their service in the custent and priar
periods; that bencfit is discounted to determing its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and Lhe fair value of any plan
assets are deducted. The caloulation of the Compuny's obligation under cach of the two plans is performed annually by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The Company's net obligalion in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employces have eamed in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair valuc of
any plan assets

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified acluary using the projected unit credil method.
When the calculation results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognised assel is limiled to the present value of economic
benefits available in the form of uny future refunds ffom the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan,

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan asscts (¢xcluding
interest) and the effcct of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in OCI. Net interest expense
(income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability
(asset), to the net defined liability (assel) al the start of the financial year afler taking into account any changes as a result of
contribution and benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the
gain or loss on curtaitment is recognised immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company recognises gains and Josses on
(he settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs,

Leave encashment

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilised accrued leave encashment and utilise it in future service periods or
receive cash compensation on termination of cmployment, Since the leave encashment do not fall due wholly within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employecs render the related service and are also not expected to be utilised wholly within
twelve months after the cnd of such period, the benefit is classificd as a long-term employce benefit, The Company records an
obligation for such leave encashment in the period in which the employee renders the services that increuse this entitlement. The
obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valualion using the projected unil credit method

o), =



1.15 Taxation:

Income tax expenses represents the sum of the tax curvently payable and deferred tax,

Current Tax ’
1 an in re t d in accordance with
c an he ta . ompany’s current tax
ul rat cled

Deferred lax
Deferred tax is recognised on lemporary differences between Ui vl ying aimount of assets and labilitles in the sepatate financial

e nd ation of’ . en ed

t e generall d he

it ilable a d be

utilised. Such de ax assel aren  cognised i the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a busines ination) abilit  1airansaclion that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred Lax assets is reviewed at Lhe end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thal it is no
longer probable that sufficicnt taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assets (o be recovered

Deferred tax liabilities and asscts are measured at (he tax ratcs that are expecled to apply in the period in which the liability is scttled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and 1ax Jaws) that have been enacted or substantively enacled by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred ax liabilities and assets reflect the lax conscquences that would follow from the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, (o recaver or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferrcd tax assets and deferred (ax liabilitics arc offset as the Company has legally enforceable right to set off current tax asscts
against current tax liabilities,

Current and deferred tax for the year

in statement of profit and foss, except they relate lo items that are cd in other
uity, in which case, the current and dc tax arc also rccognised in o prehensive
y.

1.16 Segment 1eporting:

Operaling segments are reported in a manncr consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker

The of dir s ol the Com has CEO, who assesses the ncial performance and tion e Co
and strate ecisions of al ion Hence, CEO hasbeeni ified as being the chiel atin ision

Entity shall repont separately information about operating segment that meets crileria as per IND AS 108,
1.17 Assignment

Assigned assets are derecognised only if the Company loses control of the contractual rights that comprise the corresponding pool

tl ts
[ po
u as
S in

in subscquent years due to change in interest rates, prepayments etc are recognized in the statement of Profit and Loss Account in
the year it occurs.

1.18 Earnings per share

ab old cd
be out he
it, spl of
shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources
For the of lati earnings per the net prolit or loss for the pe attributable sha ers and
the wei era mb s outstanding g the year are adjusted forthee s ofall dilut tial shares.

™
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1.19 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash cquivalents includes cash in hand and as imprest, demand deposits with banks and other shot-term highly liquid
investments wilh original malurities of three months or less.

1.20 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs (other than those that are altributable lo the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets) are chared
to the statement of profit and loss account in the period in which Lhey are incurred.

[.21 First-time adoption of Ind AS

The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of Ist April 2018 (“the transition date”) by recognising all
assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, whereas items of asscts or liabilitics which are not permitted by Ind
AS are not recognised,

Items are reclassified from Previous GAAP 10 Ind AS as required under lnd AS, by applying [nd AS measurement principals whilc
recognizing assets and liabilitics,

However, this principle is subject to certain mandatory exceptions and optional cxemptions availed by the Company as mentioned
below:

e De-recopnition of inancial assels and liabilitics

As per tnd AS 101, an entity should apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments, prospectively for
transactions occurring on or afler the date of transition to Ind AS. However, an entity may apply (he derecognilion requirements
reirospeclively from a date chosen by it if the information needed to apply [nd AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities
derecognised as a result of past transactions was obtained at the time of initial accounting for those transactions.

The Company has elected to apply the derecognition principles of Ind AS 109 retrospectively as reliable information was available
at the time of initially accounting for these transactions

o Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilitics

Ind AS 101 requires an entily to assess classification of financial assets and liabilities on the basis of facts and circumstances existing
as on the date of transition. Further, the standard permits measurement of financial assets and liabilitics accounted al amortised cost
based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if retrospective application is impracticable

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets and liabilities based on facts and circumstances that
exist on the date of transition. Measurement of the financial assets and liabilities accounted at amorlised cost has becn done
retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

e Decemed cost
Asper Ind AS 101 an entity inay elect to:
(i) measure an item of property, plant and equipment at the datc of transition at its fair valuc and use that fair value as its deemed
cost at that date
(i) use a previous GAAP revaluation of an item of property, plant and cquipment at or before the date of transition as deemed cost
at the date of the revaluation, provided the revaluation was, at the date of the revaluation, broadly comparable to;
— fair value;
— or cost or depreciated cost undel Ind AS adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or specific price index
The elections under (i) and (ii) above are also available for intangible asscts that meets the recognition criteria in Ind AS 38, Intangible
Assets, (including reliable measurement of original cost); and criteria in Ind AS 38 for revaluation (including the existence of an
aclive markct)
(iii) use valu property, plant and L, intangible and invesiment prope he date of tra to
Ind AS ¢ eme din accordince with GAAPondn oking ndjnstments reln t mmissioning ies
prescribed under Ind AS 101) if there has been no change in its tunctional currency on the date of transition.
As permitted by Ind AS 101, the Company has elected 1o continue with the carrying values under previous GAAP for all the itemns
ofproperty, plant and cquipment. The same election has been made in respect of intangible assels
Estimates
Asper Ind AS 101, an entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS at the end of the comparative
period presented in the entity’s first Ind AS financial stalements, as the case may be, should be consisient with estimates made for
the same date in accordance with the previous GAAP unless there is objective evidence that those cstimates were in error However,
the estimales should be adjusted to reflect any differences in accounting policies.
As per Tnd AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entily (o make certain estimates that were not required under previous
GAAP, those estimates should be made to reflect conditions that existed at the date of transition (for preparing opening Ind AS

hect) or at the end of the comparative period (for presc co  rative informa  as per

pany’s estimales under Ind AS are consistent with the er rcment. Keye  ates co in preparation of the
financial statements that were not required under the previous GAAP are listed below:
- of financial assets based on the expected credit loss el
- on of the discounted value for financial instruments ed at amortized cost.
- Discounted value of liability for retiral obligations.
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ORIX Lsasing & Finsnctial Services Indla Limited
Notes to audited Mnancial statements for the year ended 31 Marah 2020
(All amounts 8ro in INR Lakhs, excepi as stated )

Asat As at An at
Particulers 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2018

Note 2
Cash and bank balances
(A)Cash and cash equivalenls

Balance with Banks

On current accounts 3,761 1,388 444

Cash on hand 5 A 4

3T 1374 — 44
Note 3
Bank balances othar than () above
(B) Bartc palincas other (han cash & cash wquivalants
Deposit with arigina! maturity of mare than 3 months bul residual maturity of [ess than
12 months* i3] 74 72
([} 74 72

*The bark deposits have been kept a8 @ securlty far reglatration with the VAT
authorlles of vanous states
Note 4
Loans
Loan against Hypothacation of vehicle 36,268 56,673 81,860
Loan against Property 1,68,451 1,56,218 90,201
Finance Leases 46,881 43,520 3,477
Leas: Impairmaent loss allowance 4,687 -3,048 -1,774
Total LN P B TIEmy
Loans at amortisnd cost
A
Term loans 2,02,710 2,12,889 1,641,180
Finance Lease 46,661 43,620 33,477
Gross Total A 2,49,371 2,586,408 1,684,657
Less: Impairmant Loas allowance -4.607 ~3,048 1,774
Net Total A pXIRIT] TES AT 1
B
Secured by langible assels 2,49371 2,568,400 1,94,857
Secured by Intangible assets . - o
Covered by Bank/Government Guaranteas - E
Unsecured . . -
Gross Total B 2,490,371 2,566,409 1,94,657
Less: impairment Loss aliowance A, 587 -3,048 1,774
Net Total B TR THS50Y +
[+
Loans In Indie 2,48,371 2,566,400 184,857
Public Sector .
Others
Gross Tolal . .
Less: Impalrment loss allowance 4,887 -3,048 1,774
Net 2,44,684 2,63,361 1,02,883
Loans outside indla . . .
Less: Impalrment ioss allowance . .
Net - + .
Net Total C AN LI LA AL




As at An ot As at
Particulars 31 March 2620 31 March 2019 0t April 2018
Note 6
Trade recelvable
Raceivablas considered good Secured 110 54 28
Racelvahiss conaidered good unsecured - - 5
Recaivabing whiich have slgnificen Incraass In credil sk 108 142 28
Recsivable credit Impaired 505 101 49
Loss: Losa Allowance for Trade receivable 61 -7 -5
Total [ b o0
Note 6
Other financlat sssels
Sacurity deposits Premises 34 k2 22
Sundry Deposits ] 304 250
Relainad Intersst on Loan Assigned 5683 706 -
Advances to suppliers of goods and services 116 158 208
Olher Deposils 10 22 5
Loans and advances to empicyees 7 9 4
Bank Deposits malurlty more than 12 monthe N 8 k]
Other Advances 23rz 1,186 34
Loss: Loss Allowance for Out of pocket expsnses -18 -25 .
Total 3,128 2,488 524
Note 7
Inventories
Slock-in=rade 1 53 12
10 (13 12
Note 8
Current tax ansets (net)
Advance tax (net of provisions) 1.4% o7 163
{Nel of provision of 2020 €40 694/, 2019 ¥ 8,558/- and 2018 © 6,824/-)
Total 1,438 [ 183
Note #
Deforred tax assets (net)
Deferred Tax Asast 5454 7.056 7.318
Total A% 7,088 7,918
Note 13
Other non-financlal assets
Prepaid Expenses 419 27 208
Balance with governmenl authorlles
- Vat cradit recelvable 53 48 a7
- GST credH receivabla 3731 4,862 2,188
Other asseis - 0 20
Advancas to suppllars of goods and services 302 110 90
Sales Tax Refund 58 56 57
Capilal Advances 360 375 189
TOTAL a5 5854 259
Note 14
Trads Paysbles
Total outstanding dues of Micro and Smail Enterprises 11 16 M
Tolal oulstanding dues of Credilors other than Micro and Small Enterprises 2005 2,790 101
TOTAL 2,106 2805 To1
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Y3 As Rt As at
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 01 April 2016

Nate 15
Dabt Securities
Non-convertible Dabeniures 20,000 62,000 52,000
YOTAL zn!m 52,000 52,000

At Amoriined Gost |
Liabillly component of compound financial Insirumants - .
Others (Bonds/ Debenture etc.) 20,000 52,000 52,000
Total (A) 20,000 k4050 0
Debt securities in India 20,000 52,000

Debt securities outside India
Total (B) to tally with (A)

Note 18

Borrowings (Other than debt securities)
Tern Loan

- From Banks

- Masala Bond

- ECB Bomrowing from Bank
Cash Credits
Overdraft faciites
Loans and advances from relaled party
Interest accrued but nol due on borowings

TOTYAL

Sscurity Terms for all the above secured facilty ere common and they read as under

1} Unencumbered owned assels
Il} Receivabies under operating lease with underlying assets.
iil) Recelvabies from the Company’s olher business acilvitiss

(a)Term loans
{Irom banks
{Ihfrorn olher parties
(b)Deferred payment llablitles
(c)Loans from related parties
(d) Finance lease obligations
(e)LIability component of compound financlal insiruments
(NLoany repayable an demand
(l)from banks
{D)from other pariies
(g} Othar loans (specify nature)

Total (A}

Bormowings in Indla
Borrowings outside India

Total (@) to tally with (A)
Note 17

Deposits
Security deposlts from lesseas

52,000

. - I 7

1,563,468 1,20,690 60,739
10,000 10,000 10.000
17.500 7.500 7,500

198 7,436 10741
7 12471 1,203
673 052 741
1,500 2673 2,00
1,03,044 181722 02821
e At Amoriised Cost =]
1,680,086 1.38,190 87,239
& 8s2 T41
208 19,607 11,844
1T AT VIIE

1,54,344 141,249 62,425
27,500 17,500 17,500

T 130740 L X

1,240 1395 823
1,040 TN L




As at As at As at
Particulsrs 31 March 2020 31 March 201¢ 01 Aprfl 2018

Hite 18

Other financial liabllities

Other Payables to Empioyses 218 328 232
Payable In raspect of joans assigned 83 207 -
Other Payables 321 245 363
Advance lom customen 1,505 1,800 77
Leasa llabitities 348 452 651
TOTAL g?l_ ﬁl_ﬂ 113
Nate 19

Current tax Habliities (Net)

Provision for income tax (net of edvance lax) 118 36 143
(Net of TDS and advance tex for 2020 ¥ 4813/-, 2019 2 4,491/- and 2018 - € 4,322/-)

118 36 143

Note 20

Provision for Employees* it Benefits

Provision for Compensaled absances 135 163 123
- Provislon for Gratuity 8 21 -
TOTAL 141 134 123

ote 21
Provistons
- Other provisions 16 8 2
3 s 2

Note 22
Other non-financlal llabllitles

Deferrad Incoma-Securilies deposit 325 301 114
Statutory remittances {Contributions to PF, withnolding taxes, GST, TDS, sic) 148 150 193
TOTAL 471 480 307
Note 23

Authorised

15,00,000,00 equity shares of T 10 each 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,00,00,000 1,50,00,00,000
Issued

100,835,901 equily sharas of ¥ 10 each fuily peid up 1,00,93,59,010 1,00,93,59,010 1,00,93,59,010
TOTAL 1,00,93,69.010 1,00.93.60.010 1,wiuallo1n
Note 24

Other aquity

Statulory Reserve

Cpaning balance 2,797 1,623 1,405
Add : Additions during the year 7 874 318
Balance at the end of the year 3,528 2,797 1,623
Securities premlum account 30,303 30,303 30,303
Retalned Eamings

Balercs al Ihe beginning of the year 10,371 6,540 4,434
Profit for the year 3,640 4,705 2,624
Less: Transfer to stalutory reserve 731 674 510
Balarce al tha ond of th yoir 13,280 10,371 8,540
Other Comprehensive incoms :

Balance at the beginning of the year -92 -58 -54
Transactions during the year -1a -34 4
Balance 2l ths end of (he year -110 2 58
TOTAL 47,001 43370 M(708

1) Securities premium is used for racording the premium on issua of sharas The reserve is ulllised i accordance wilh the provisions of section 52 of the Companies Act,

2013

il) Statutory resarve reprasents reserve fund created pursuant to Saectlon 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934 through Iransfer of speciiad percentage of niet profit every year
before any dividend is declared, The reserve fund can ba wtlilsed only for limited purposes as apecified by RBI from time to time and every such wtilisation shall be

raported lo {he RB) within epecified period of time from tha dale of such ulilisation

i) Retalned aarnings or accumulated surphus represents lotel of all profits retained since Compeny's Inception Retsined eamings are cradiled with current year profits,
reduced by (0sses, if any, transfers to General reserve or any such other appropiiations 1o specific reserves

Iv) Actugriel gaine and losses on dofined benefit plans are r in othar compr

Incoms, net of laxes,

W “w &



ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services Indla Limited
Notes to audited financlal stataments for the yesr ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are In INR Lakhs, excep! as siated )

Year anded Yoar ended
EARTICUATRS 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Note 26
Revenue from operations
tnterest on Loans 31,568 28 783
Penai Imerest Income 24 4
Bank Deposits 5 ]
tnterst on Loan to staft 1 1
Other Interest 10 64
TOTAL 31,628 28,867
On Financlal Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on Loana 31,880 28,783
iriarast incoma from inasimants .
irterest on deposile with Banks 5 ]
Ofher Interest Income kL3 69
Total 31,626 28 857
Note 26
Euge and cummission lpgome
Origination and Processing Fees 424 460
TOTAL 4% 460
Note 27
Not galn on fair value changes
Securttios-Lesses kal (]
Sacuritles-Premises 1 2
TOTAL T ) 71
Note 28
Other income
Discount Recelved From Dealers 102 ]
Termination / Rescheduling charges - Hypothacation 278 250
Income on pre tarmination of lease 81 39
Fleed Managoman Sorvices 188 172
Laase rantal on Cperating Lease 78 81§
Liabifillas / provisions no longer raquired writien back 243 103
Bad debls recovered 32 38
Galin on Loan transfar Transactions - 708
Misceilaneous Income 812 438
TOTAL i 2,860 2,869
Note 26
Finance Cost
Interest 17 632 15,760
Qther borrowing cosis 305 2683
Intarest on leese llabillty 35 38
TOTAL 17,972 18,907
On Financlal Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest on deposita
interast on borrowings 15,082 11,681
Inlorast an dabil securilies 2,550 4,108
Interest on eubordinated liebilkies B -
Qlher interest expense 340 21
Total 7972 16,101
Nota 30
Impairment on financial Instrumants
Loss Allowance ECL 1,684 1318
Bad dabts 123 195
1,807 1,644

W,



Year endsd Year ended
PARTICUALRS 31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Note 31
Employes banefll sxpenses
Salorles and wages 3,089 3,026
Contrihution to provident and other funds 218 189
Staff waifare sxpsnses 88 101
TOTAL ﬁwl 3,928
Note 32
Dep and p
Depraciation on tangible fixed assels 738 838
Depreclatian on Right-of-use assets 148 128
Amortization on Intangitle fixed assels 45 45
TOTAL 027 811
Note 33
Other expenses
Powsr and fuet 87 84
Rent 200 208
Reapairs and maintenance 70 66
Ineurance 380 206
Rales and laxes 257 160
Sub-contract charges 167 120
Communicetion axpenses B 42
Legal and professional fees 367 400
Corp soclal responsiblity exp {Rater Note (i) below) 88 84
Computer maintenance and Software 79 59
Travelfing and convayance 213 257
Diracior's aliting fees 9 10
Paymanis to Auditors (Refer Note () below) 49 46
Loss on foreclosurs of commercial vehicle loan 485 478
Management Fasa 258 260
Rulalnad Intaras! Racalvalie Adjusiment 68
Miscellnnsous expensea 27 A5)
TOTAL EREC. a0ar
Notes :
(1) Compt Sociel Responsibliity Expandilure (CSR) :
1. Gross amount required to be apent by Company on CSR is T 88 (P Y T 84) and the same is spant during the ysar
2. Amount spent during (he year on:
Amount Spent
Particulars
1 Construction/acquisition of any asset - .
2 On purposes other than (1) above 88 684
Total [ 64
Stalutory audii fees 44 40
Cther services 5 5
Profeasional fees includes payments to cost audilors for cost audit
Total 49 45
Nate 34
Eamings per aquity shara
Profit aRer tax attributable to aquity sharehaldera {A) 3,822 4,671
Calcuation of weighted average number of equily sharess
Number of equity shares at the beginning of the yeer 10,06,36,801 10,08,36,801
Numbear of equity sharss oulstanding at the end of 1he year 10,00,35,901 10,08,35,801
Weighted average number of squily shares outsianding during the yser (B) 10,00,35,801 10,09,35,801
Basic and diluled eamings per share (7) (A!B) 3.89 4.83
Face value per share {t) 10.00 1000

N
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ORIX Logsing and Financlal Services India Limited

Notes to the (Ce
88 431 March 2020

(All amounls are In INR Lakhs, except as stafed )

10. Property, Planl & Equipmeni {Continued)

Particulars Butldings wz’;m:’\:: Fumiture and fliures Vehicles D"":':;""“:'r:‘:
Gross carrying amount

As At Apri] 01, 2017 at 22 2 129 74
Additions 27 11 47 23
Dlsposals 0 1 2
As 8t March 31, 2010 - o 4 2 178 95
As At Aprli 01, 2018 4 T 24 176 96
Additlons 19 19 6 30
Crisposals L]

As at Maroh 31, 2019 7] 1) [3) 237 124
As At April 01, 2019 o T at o0 53 T 184
Additions ) ) 124 18
Oisposals - 1 73 0
As at March 31, 2020 “ 77 " eo 288 N wo
Accumulated Dapreciation / amortization and

impalrment :

As At April 01, 2017 1 3 3 2 23
Additions 0 ] 8 4 29
Dilsposals < 0 1 1
As st March 31, 2018 1 1 9 70 1
As At April 01, 2018 ) 1 8 70 51
Addiflons 1 13 8 59 31
Disposals s

As at Maroh 31, 2018 z 24 7 126 82
As At April 01, 2019 - 2 24 17 126 82
Additiona 1 15 1 70 M
Disposals 1 55 Q
Aa at March 3, 2020 3 ) 7 140 13
Net carrying

As at March 31, 2018 © ) 2 108 “
As at Maroh 31, 2019 % “ » 12 52
As st March 31, 2020 T T 38 »n 145 a7

W,



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financlal statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2020

{All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

11. Right of use Assets (Continued)

Particulars Right to use Total
Gross carrying amount
As At April 01, 2018 551 551
Addltions = -
As at March 31, 2019 551 551
As At April 01, 2019 551 5§51
Additions 31 N
As at March 31, 2020 582 582
Accumulated Depreciation / amortization and impairment ;
As At April 01, 2018 - -
Additions 128 128
As at March 31, 2019 128 128
As At April 01, 2018 128 128
Additions 146 146
As at March 31, 2020 274 274
Nat carrying
As at March 31, 2019 423 423
308 308

As at March 31, 2020

. 0



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited
Notes to the financlal statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )

12. Intanglble Agnets (Continued)

Particulars Software Total
Gross carrying amount

As At Aprll 01, 2017 236 238
Additions -
As at March 31, 2018 236 236
As At April 01, 2018 236 236
Additions -

As at March 31, 2019 238 236
As At April 01, 2019 238 238
Additions ]
As at March 31, 2020 236 236
Accumulated Depreciation / amortization and impalrment :

As At April 01, 2017 k1 38
Addltions 45 46
As at March 31, 2018 80 B0
As At April 01, 2018 80 80
Additions 45 46
As at March 31, 2019 125 128
As At April 01, 2019 125 126
Additions 45 45
As at March 31, 2020 170 170
Net carrying

As at March 31, 2018 168 156
As at March 31, 2019 11 m
As at March 31, 2020 86 B8

'S \J)



ORIX Leasing & Finznclal Services ndis Limited
Notes & B0 frmpnainl sivetants (Domitwed
- 530 Mare 200

(A mwounie are kv INR Laddhe, axoopl ee sisted )

a4 Share oupiint :
Pomeviais A ol 31 March 920 ot 31 March 2010 Aa w3 e KON
Numbac Numbeor Ampunt Nusnbme
A vt
Equity ihares of 210 anch 15,00.90,000 1,90,00,00,000 15,00,00,000 1.80,00,00,000 15.00,00,000 1,60,00,00,000
13 8% prafwrercs sherss of fa 10 sech
LEe)
Mgty Brmsn of 710 euch 10,09,35,801 1,00,83,58,010 10,00,93,901 1,00,03,38,010 10,08,35,001 1.00,83,30,010
Bubsarioed & Auty pald
Equily Ghares of T10 each 10,00.95.901 1,00,63,60,010 10,98,38,001 1,00,83,54,010 10,09,98,001 1,00,93,56,010
oo —ERER  URBSER, wese SEEew _ OEnE SRS
(8 Recensiis¥ion ol tm mumber af sheses and smount cutsianding at e baginring and ¢1 e ehd of ha repering perisd:
| Perteulars Asat 3 Merch 220 As ot 3t March 2019 Asat 31 March 3018
Number Amount Number Nembay Amoun|
Hrores mamtandong o e beghnting of Pe year 10,08.96,001 1,00,54,60,010 10,00,35,00% 1,00,03,50.010 3,08.96.001 60,03,80,010
Mo il duwg B ) e - . . - 1.20,00,000 12,00,10,000
Bivares pastecsdg of o end of e pamr 10,08 36,808 1,00,83,38,010 10,09,95,001 1,00,19,58,010 10,00.95.001 1.00,92,50,010
[ Tha Company has anly one clams of equily shaien heving 5 pr vehuw of T10 per ahwse Esch haldar of sqully shares le anilleti i ane vols per shar
I itw evant of quidaiien of he Campary, the heiters of equily iharse wikba enilbed 10 recelve remaining samata of tha Compeny. afmr of ameuda The witeln
preparien to e number of equily shares heid by ihe sharsheiden
s 10,00,35,601 (P Y_ 10,00,36,001) Equity Zherwe are halwl by ORIX Aule Infrasiruoiure  esviass Limitad, the haiding company end ke remieen.
d, Dullain ot stwrvhekism holding mase Sun B% shares in the Compary! y Pecir aklag compamy and fm e .

Namte of Shasehotdet

RN Autn Winmrucars Services Unthesl snd He nominmes

Ha 31 Mareh 3030

No of e fdif

10,0038 )

% ol nlting

As ul 31 Muren W9

No OF aPsind hii

10,08 38 021

% of hoiting

TOOW,

A w31 March 2018

Noofsheres held % of hoiding

10,00,36,901

0o,

N




ORIX Leasing and Financial Services Indla Limited

Notes to the tat (Continued)
for the year snded 31 March 2020

(Al amounts &re in INR Lakhs, excepl as sialed)
Note - 35
35.1 Contingent liabliities (to the extent not providad for):

1} Clalms against the Company nol acknowledged as debts

Part cu sre 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
tax 545 297 545
tax 755 563 820
3
pending against the Company 20 4 44
Total 1,020 897 1,218
is considerad Y

Tha Company belleves it is most likely [ succeed in the abave casas and hence no p

i1} Commitments:

amount of r ining o be executed and not provided for
Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
3,408 79 1,866

36.2  Expenditure In forelgn currency on accrual basis:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
guarantes feas & Charges 161 123 82
Chargos 10 7 104
on Masala bond 749 747 714
of salary 20 42
026 908 922

363 Detalls of dues to Micro and Smail Entarprises
by lhe Company Irom the suppliess during ihe year regarding Lhelr status under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Bas dto t of the in on
the auditors, there are no amounts due fo MSME as at 31 March 2020

Dev Act, MED Acl) led
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March

Principat amount duc and remaining unpaid to suppliem as at the year cnd 15
b) Interest accrued and due 1o supphiers on Lhe above amount as at tha yoar cnd
[nierest paid to supplicrs in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act

Paymen to supplers 1) beyon ted day, Juring the year
Interest supplicrs (o 6 ofthe )
0 duc and pplicrs fo aready rmade (for the penod of delay, it any)

accrued g unpaid end
h) Further interest duc and payable even 1n Lhe succeeding yoars, until such dalc when the mierest due as above are

352 Forslgn curmency sxposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as follows:
31 Mwech 2008

31 March 2020
Amount In arigiaal Amount In INR Amount in original Amount in INR Amaount in erginal Amount in INR
currency currency currency
paysble for Bank Guarsnice 1 ad 1 1 a3
{USD)
payable for Reimbursement 48 a8 42
(YEN)
porable for Globel Fees 0 2
reccivable for 3 204 2 110
{UsD)

ped s are rm resesable losses Althe year en Company h ewed and en that

any r mat abl on such long {emm contracts has made in the of accounts

tive

There has besn no olher avents afer the reporting date that require disclosure in these financlal statamant

wherae there and the probabilily of recovery is doubttul.

Based on man s assessment, v
Y 709 78)

As on 31 Marc there are 79 (P s axposure of

W



ORIX Leasing snd Financial Setrvices Indla Limited

Notas b thy PR

far the year endad 31 Mereh 2020

(A4 srrouris are in INR Luihe, arcept »3 Waied)

Note:« 28
As per RBI Master Direction DMBR. PD. 008/03.10.198/2018-(7 Sepiamber 01, 2019 .
3.t Capllal:
The Camparty dstarmines the #mount of capimi required on tha baels of copiai and stralagc piarm The capliel struciute I monitored on the beuls of nel debt b edulty

ond maturdly prafle of oversil debl portiodio of the Oroup

The Campany ls subjedt 10 the capiial edequacy requiremants of Uve Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Under RBr'e captial edequacy guidelnes, [he Campany is required to malntain a cephal sdsquesy (el
consieting ¢f Tler | and Ties {1 Caplis! The tolal of Tier i Capitsl ot arw point of ¥me, shull not exoeed 10D percent of Ter | Caphal Tha minkmum caphsl relio s prescribed by RBI guidsinee and applicsble
@ e Company, consisting of Tier | snd Tiar ([ capital, shall not e less {hen 15 petcaat of ks aporegete ek weighted assets on-belence shas( and of riak sdiualed valus of ofl-beisnce sheel

The Compeny hes compbed with all seguisiory requiremenia relsied 1 capiial and capiivl adequacy rriios ae plescrbred by R, datads of wiich 870 ghven below -

Patiociars 31 Maroh 200 31 Marah 2019 31 Masch 3018
Hopeistory cepitsl

D Tier | Cagitsl (%) 10 30% 17 18% 20 3%
G Ter 1| Caplial (W) oM 0 58% (8,
Tutw Cupllal 20.22% 1L.74% 20 b

302 Asvet Lishillly Management Maturity pmttecn of aertsin ilems of Assets and Llablifties :
A2 1131 Mafth 2020

Particularn Upto 3001 Oxys Over 1 Mosth  Over 2 Month Ovet 3 Month Ovard Month Over 1 Year Over 3 Year Ovat & Year Tetal}
Upde T Mamin  Upis 3 Moy Upto 8 Monih Upto 1 Year Upio J Year Upto § Yaar

]

] 11,800 2,500 3,581 10,365 19202 34,602 21,928 120472 249370
(e ] . i ¥

Bourowegan 3.301 548 3421 42,189 37,360 54,037 12,833 201172
Farsign Corrency sarts

Fatugn Curiency linbites

As o1 31 Muarch 2010

Partigusises Up o 30731 Days  Qver 1 Noalh  Ovaer 2 Month Qver 3 Manth QOvar § Month Ovar 1 Yaar Over 3 Vear Over 8 Year Tota
Upio 2 Monlh  Upio 3 Month Uplo 8 Monlh Upta 1 Yeur Upia 3 Yair Upto § Yesr

Depoams . . . .

Advances 10,520 2,700 37 112604 20,831 58,515 2,501 1,24 374 2,58.400
Bariouings 18,008 8318 4324 31% 2,220 90,304 8,337 2,00.767
Forelg Culrency

Forsign Currency (fablifbes.

As nld$ March 2018

Partisutars Lplo 30031 Days Ovet 1Moath Over 2Month  Ovar 3Month  Over 8 Month Ovar i Yot Qvet 3 Yesr Over 5 Year Totay
Upio 2 Month  Uplo 3 Month Uplo 8 Month Uplo 1 Yaar Upia 3 Year Upto § Yemr

Advence 11,930 3352 3,357 9,037 1344 2,192 19,330 76522 1,04.857

Investmants - -

Boriowings 20,02 5043 478 5708 11,502 60,209 15,212 151,184

Forelgn Currency sesets . - - . .

[Forelgn Cuttency HabiWes - = = -

m p o Te— T e ey e

383 Exzposurn to Real Eslale Seclof :

Catsgory 31 Mscoh 3000 I March 2218 3 Maeh 21|
IDitmet Edpotiing
1l Residential Mortgmges -
Lending fully secuied by mortgages on residantisl proparty that e of Wil be
oczupind by 1he borrower of that is ranied

i) Commmiciel Resl Extste - 1,028 1,078 1453
Lending sscursd by mortgages on commetcis! isal ssiates (office buldnge,
rotml apace, Mul¥: puIposs commedcied remises, Mulb fam iy rmidenial
bulkdings, mul-teraniad commerclel pramisss, induetrial of warshouse
wpace, holdy, fend scquision, ond otc) Exposurs
vrould aiso Include non:fund besed linm.

(] n Bached
(MBS) and tiher securieat! axpcentas -
s Residende!
b Commerdl Real Esteta

Totl EXT sory 'Q

T i e SIDOS LTS 13 ki Fuvlg Lo e, i Bolien, 1 (5 sialal |1 e A

34 Delails of Single Borrower Limit (3GL) / Group Borrower Limit {3BL) sxceeded by [he NBFG ;

The Company has nal @mendad Ika Pridentst Exposure Limiw fof any Single! Group Batrawei,

Y/ &S\A 2(\7 L 7



Notez- 38 (Continusd)
0.5 Raiings assigned by credit reling agencies and migralion of ratings duting (he yesr

Tre Campmny has recorsed revised ming on 13 May 2018 ot Indss Ratnga & Ressarch (Fich group) Lid as follows
.

Previous
Particuiars. Cuwirwst Rating Ratisg
Long Term IND AAA IND AAA
Shost Tum IND Al IND At+

3.0 Provisions and Contingencins :

To laclitwis sany reading of Ihe finenciel wietementy and o make th on all prove d svailable st ana place, NBFCs aie required o dacioss in
the Notes 1o fnencisl atntem anis the (oBowing (nfarrnation:

Braak up of 'Provisions end Contingencies® ahown undat the head Expenditure 31 Moreh 2020 31 Marvh 2004
In Profit end Losa Acoount
o o N
Provislon wwerde NPA 1,40 L)
[Panimny b Lwn O icoee 1044 1074
Dther Provision and Contingeacies " 19|
Pravision Jer Standard Assete 264 4%
3T Eencantision Adusnoes
F 31 Morch 2020 1 March 2018 M Mageen 3098
Tolsl Advznzen 16 fwenty largest borrowei 19,522 18,651 ALEE ]
Parcininge of Advances 1o Wenly laspest borrowen to Tatul Advances of Ihe NBFC " ™ 1o
M8 Consentisiion of Exposiies :
Pariicailare 31 March 2000 1 WWaroh 2010 1 Mersh 2010
[k wamyirn b bvanty Largeet Doftowers / cusiomaels 19322 10.681 16853
Piteaniagn of o dwaniy lapeet / o Tom) Expasure "N L Vi,
OF tra NBFC an botrowsre / cinlomara
18 Conoenhistion of Wik |
Feriiulan 31 Merch 2020 1 March 2019 31 Mevoh 2014
Tots mrgnsin 4 10p lou) NPA sccounin I3 1,184 o
MAD Eeclorwrme WP
;‘l’- Beclor Purconlage of NPAS to Total Advences in (hal sesior
31 March 2026 31 March 2018 3t Matsh H018
1 Agdoulure & stied aceviies 2
2 MSME 2% 267% 130w,
3 Cotparste bosiowars I 1IT% 1
4 Sandces -
S Unastuied petsanal lonpe .
B Autalome 226/% $59% 1 Wi
7  Other pesacnal ioans -

"



Note:- 33 (Condnued)

i

»12

My

=

3.4

8

.18

R8T

821

w22

Mervermani of NPAs :

Parpeuters 31 March 2020 31 Maseh 2018 41 March B8
(D Net NPAR lo Nat Advancas (%) 523% 24T% 37N
1) Movement of NPAa (Gross)

#) Openiag belance 7,843 2919 W7
o) Aedaar 5y he paa 10,455 5554 2,031
¢} Reducdon dusing tha year {2,528 (830) 2508
d) Clowing be'ence 18,770 7.043 2010
(8} Mervmmast of Nal K"k
) Opening balanes 0280 2,081 2579
h) Addidons dating he yasr 2452 4543 1478
©) Reduclom during the ysa: (1.847) (235) (1are
d) Cosing belance 12,004 6,200 2,08
M Movernani of provisions for NPAa (sxciuding provisions oh standard sesets)
u) Opsning belance 1,554 832 (1)
b} Provimons made chuing Bw yeal 2,003 1011 853
&) Wike-off ) wils-beck of excase pfovisions (081) (288) [Li5 1)
dj Closing baimnce 2070 1,554 Lx )

B of .

Paroulers 31 March 2020 31 Warch 2010 21 Maioh 018
& No, of compieints pending at Lhe beginning of 1he yesr 1 1 .
b No of compix’nie received during the yeer )] z 21
¢ No of compiairie redrassed during the year M 2 )
d No of comple'nts pending at the end of the year - 1 ]

Dty of OFf Tininnrs Gha ! A sy -

The Company has provided bank guaraniaes amounting to T 88 {P.Y € 88) Lo var'ous VAT authorkise

Encumbrancas of fxed deposits held by Company :

The Compeny haa lsn marked leed depasiie weh Beak smountng to T 88 lor obmining shove guarsees

Roglstration obtained from othar financial aactor seguistors

The Company ia not regisiered whh any ciker finandal asctor feguimtor,

Poraliina impoand by 1B apd ctner mguiatars

R8I and other regulaior hes not Impoasd sny penalbes on the Company duing current snd previdus yaar

Financing of parent company pioduct

The Company has not inanced sy pe!snt company product during culrant and previous yoar

Invastmants

The Compeny has nol made sny Invaelm ents during cutrent and provioua year

Darivative

The Compsny s nol enlered Inio any derivaiive banwacion during cur/ent and revious yeer

Ssauritisation

The Campseny has nol anlced inlo any or el during currenl year

[Partndes. Clatoand pre Mo yei

Pt 0 sccoume . [

s vuiua 1l of Erovene) of BLCountY sakd i s

L Aapragase conlderalon - LR

Aciinens ceeresiis st Fastaa] ) respect of acoount tanesired in .

AgkEagate Daifv 10as Over 26t DOOK value k]

F ot selilmg of Non P aanetn

The Compenr hse nol purchamed o woid any non perforaving Minancal sssst during current and previous year

Exposure fo oaptiel market

The Compuny does nat have sfy exposuis tn cepiia markal during cuitent and plevious yess

Overssas assats

The Compary does not have any oversess easels during cwreni and praviou year

O Balancy Bl BPVs

The Company dows ol have sty off Belence Sheel SPVs during current end previous year

Detnileof Frusid |

During ihe year, he Company haa rsportsd rauds € Nil  (Previous your : € 75,41,000) based on reporting o nsk and to the RBI through prescribed retums,

! v



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limfted

Notes 10 the fl
for W year anded 11 March 2020

(A¥ smounis eve k1 INR Lakhs, excepl 8s sfaled)

Note:- 57 As per Ind As 24 - Relatsd parties

A Narne of ralsted partiss by whom control ts execcised

Particulars Type Pinee of Incorporation 31-M|:;t; # mm::u"_“ $1-Mar-18
DRIX Aulo Infraskudura Servicex (mmediate hoiding indle $0.0000% 99.9000% L]
Lirnfat compeny
ORIX Corporabnn Uimate holding Jepan 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
company
Lossing And Financie! Fellow Subsidary Incia 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
|Seivicos Lid
(8)  Key mansgamant personnsl
Harukazy Yamagushi - Directors
Sandesp Gambhir - Menaging Director
taio Nakamura - Direclars
Wiyokaru tehinaba - Dloctars
Ryohs] Suzuld - Directors
Vivek Wedhera - CFO
Abhay Kakkar - Directors
Nagesh Dubey - Directors
Rejoev Bath - Direciors
Gourl Bawant - Dirsolors.
Datalis of related party transaction during the year am plven below: {Gontinuad)
Particulars immadiate holding Ultimats Holding ~ Key Fellow ¥
|Mansgament Gharges ase - - -
(269) ¢ (3} (3]
Interest Exponses 17 - . J
(74) ¢ © il
lirtarest Expanass on ECB - 548 - o
0] 0] Q] b3
Bank guaraniae fesa - 101 - -
o] (129) ©) )
Ralmburssmuant of Balwry - - o =
o] 29) [¢] (V]
Rem Expanss R . - -
(134 © © (%]
Ralmb of R 188 . "
(o] (162) 3] I
ECn borfowing 10,000 . P
©) ) (8]
Commilment Gherges 12 . 3
. 0] 0]
Vinante lease aascls 402 = - -
(348} S] 3] %]
Interens Income an Fingnce Lense 46 - . 5
20 %] 2] (3]
Cosl reimbursement pald to 23 - . 4
24 (3] © &)
Adavance glven for Saftware cost 10 - - .
5] 3] © )
|Adavance recaive for Software cost 4% . . .
(3} ¢) ) (]
Olmeter gitting foes - - ] 7
V] © (19 (4]
Remunaration 10 KNP . - 18 o
(] [$] (88 )
Loans & recelvables (Net aff ECL) B - . 4
(3} ¢ 5] (38
Income teom financs lease . - . 1
3} (3] © i

Figuras i brackers rowls (0 pryiaus year

\
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Nots:- 37 (Continued)
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ECB borrowing
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Leasing And Financial Services Ltd

yonr,

lmmediete holding

Ultimate Holding  Key managament Fellow
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ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services India Limited
Notas to the tinaneinl slatemants (Continued)

far lhe year ended 31 Mujch 2020
{All @mounts are in INR Lakhs, excwpl as sisted )

Notw:- 38

Employee baneti

T o3 (o the following post-amployment defined banefit plans in India.

[{} n Plans;

The © ™ bene for qualiying amploysas
Under

The C Profita s

The centributions payabls to thwse plans by the Company are 8! rales spacifiad In iha 1Wlas of the schamea

The Company racognised € 153 (previous year € 153) for hung In tha of Profit mnd Loss,

{ll) Definad Banefit Plan;

A. makes ennual cantibullona to Iha Group Gralully cum Life Assurance Schames administered by the HDFC, a funded dofined benafil plan for qualllying smployess The
" for paymonl as under:

fon nt /7 withdrewal / res
the ( Gratuity Acl, 1972 ting peitod of 5 years of sorvice
As pet tho piovisions of tha Payment of Gratuily Acl, 1872 wilhout any vesting period
Th Lrooent ectusna plan end the ofi to fo ore cariied out as al March 21, 2020 The presenl value of the defined
bo bligstlons and th et s coat end 1] w f Credit Method
the lal veluallon obixined In [his respect, Ihe following tadia sels out the lalus of Ihe giatuity plan and the amounts Inthe C s Ananctal ss el
heat
Defined benefit obligalion 348 310 243

Falr value of plan assets

Nel dafined benoflt {obligation)/asssts.

Non-curret

Cutrent 29

The following table shows e reconciialion from the opening balances io the closing halonces for nwl defined benefil (aasal) liabity and its components

Definad bunefil obNgation

Opening belance 310 24) 201
Cutrent sarvics cosl 53 38 R
Interesi coat incoms)

Included in OC!

Financlal assumplions 35 (7

Experience sdjusiment

Other
Conlribytions paid by (he empioyor
Closing belsnce

Falr valua of pisp sssal
Opening balence 280 272
Intesosi incoame

Included in OCt

Remeasurement galn (loss);

Demograghic sssumpilons

Return on plan assets excluding Intesest Incame

Other

Contribulions paid by the employer -} a8
Banefits paid

Closing balence

Represanled by

Nel doned bonaM Babillly

C. Plan ssseta
Plan sssets comprice Lho foliawing :



Note:- 38 (Continuad)

D Datined benetit obiigatians
{. Actunrisl sxsumpilons

The (ollowing were the principal actusrial sssumplions sf the reporting

Dlecount rete
Expacied rele of relum on plan essete
Saiary secalstion

Mortality posl refirernent

Employes iumover rate {for difsrent sge groups)

6B9%
700%

indizn Assured
Liven Mortality
(2008-08)
(moxdlfied)
Uimate

573N 4 2%

794%
700%

Indian Amsured
Lives Mortaity
(2008 08)
{modifisd)
Uhirrrale

STI%L %

808%
7 00%

Incien Assured
Lives Mortslity
(2006-D8)
(modiBed)
UKimela

573% 8 2%

The overnll sxpecied rate of relum on assets I3 dalarminad based on (he meskat prices pravailing on |hel dale applicable 1o he perod over which (he ablgation le lo be seflied

E R Mation of mel L
Gratulty Narch 2020 March 2019 Werch 2018
Opening Balance
B R inlhe of Peofit of
oo 55 37 34
inOCt H 52 s
30
Warch 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
for
Sevice Cosl 53 » 32
2 2
as At s 8l Rs ot
11 March 2020 31 March 2019 )1 March 2018
E in the Oiher C
Income {OC) for Curtant Period
Actusrial (Gelns)ALosses on Obligadon For ha Period ] 51 3
Ratun on Plan Asests, Excluding Iniereal incoms 15 1 2
Net Income)/Expamse For lho Perlod Recognized in 24 52
ocCi
At Bt
Gratuty 3 March 2020 March 2018 Merch 2018
Dipening Baiance 58 54
Aciurien lossea during Ihe year 18 34 4
Balance 2 of the venr 110 58
{. Other Datslls
As at As at As at
31 March 2020 |31 March 2019 31 March 2048
Proactibed conlribulion for next ysem (12 monlhs) .2} 74 [
As at As at A
31 March 2020 31 March 2010 31 March 2018
Projected benefils paysbia In future years lrom (he dele
of reparing
1ai following Year 8 17 22
2md lallowing Year Q 7 14
3rd lgtiowing Year 10 ] a
4 foliawing Year 25 10 7
5th loflowing Yesr il 24 18
Sum of yesrs 8 to 10 3 138 10
K. Sensillvity anafysis
11 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2018
incsease Decresse Increasa Decrasss Incrasse Decranss
Gialuly T o Tnaludy
Discounl rats (1% movemenl) 3% 39 (28) 33 @1 24
Future salery growth (1% movement) 38 (37 n {20 b2} 1)
Mortality posl tellrament @ 2 0 ¢} 1 (1)
Although the anatysis does not Lake account af the full distibution of cash flows axpecled under Ihe plan, it does provice an tion of the ivity of Ihe shown,

IH. Othsr long term amployee benelits.

Compenssied absances are peysble to smployses The cherge lowaide compensaled sbaences (of the yesr ended 31 Muich 2020 bassd on aclusilsl valualion using the projecied accued

bensfit method s ¥.135 53 (previous ysar T 183 05),

\J

&/



ORIX

Holes to siiements (Continued)
for the yaar ended 31 Mavch 2020

(A amayrete are in INR Lakha, sxcept ee sleted )

Note:- 3%
ot ansels and Uabiilien [
Within 12 Aftar 12 monthe Total Within 12 Aftet 12 months Tatal Within 12 After 12 monthe Total
monihe monthe monthe.
and bank belanose 788 708 13974 1,374 440 440
Deposin ) [ ] L} n ] 7 3 s
45,420 1.00.264 2,44,604 44,800 208871 259,981 44,050 1.48.032 1,852,883
recelvable 880 1] 0 20 100 100
Promives 34 » - ko) M 2 22
Inlerest an Loan Assigned 583 563 - 708 8 . v
Depoeiie » 10 " 304 2 18 2% 6 233
and advances to employwes 7 7 ] - 1] 4 4
to suppliers of goods #nd sefvices 418 418 2 . 200 200 k]
Advanoes 1,008 1300 2358 404 878 1,160 ] 34
® ] 55 85 12 . 12
peymants!  proviions . 1438 1438 - wr W7 - 183 183
Tax Asael - 5,454 5454 - 7085 7,088 - 78 8
Expsnsss 182 a7 o 220 52 2n 189 w7 28
Gavernmem suthohiiss. d708 (=] 3839 5,040 4 5.008 2245 » 2201
380 1 300 s a6 100 189
- 0 0 » %
plant and equipmant 2404 2484 2030 2.938 - 1,020 1.%0
308 08 423 2 - 551
(R L] ] 11 11 158 168
2108 2,106 2,005 2808 101 0
20000 20,000 32,000 20,000 $2,000 52,000 52,000
72123 11,224 1,83,344 7,158 85,564 181,722 ez 43,686 1.02,827
deposiia from lewesas o7 "2 1.249 a7 1,138 1,386 105 518 [-<]
Paysbles to Empioyees 218 218 kr k-] e 2
In respact of losns aealigned 8 B3 27 27 . .
321 321 245 245 a5 k)
Irom cusioonarm. 1.%05 1,505 16803 1,803 a7 977
linbHiities 147 201 4 128 24 452 .
iNey 116 - 10 » . k- 143 143
for Campansated sbeences 12 120 142 3 151 184 1 12 122
16 - 1 [ B ® 2 2
- [ 1] 0 0
Income-Secutiilas deposil o5 s 01 01 114 14
Sawlory o PF, “e 146 150 150 1w 13




ORIX LeasIng & Financial Services indla Limited
Notes fo the financial slatements (Continued)

for the yosr ended 31 March 2020

(AR armounts are in INR Lekhs, sxcep! ax steled )

Note:- 4
Concantration of Cradit Risk
Comparny’s loan portfolio Ia p| to Ainsnce ial vahicia loans, loan againsl property and Leasing of vehicies . The C: of riak prf
by geagraphica) region in Indla. The foowing tahies shaw the gsograp cor of rade ond loans:
Condantration by Geographical reglon In Indla:

at I East Wost Harth South Total
Loan aganal Hypothecation of Vatickes - 5452 2T 438 2388 30,280
Loan agelnet Property 74768 51,803 65,834 51,628 1,86,451
Finance Lease Recelvables 1203 9577 12,708 23115 46,601
Total 8,379 67,832 98,038 722 248,374
Ax at March 31, 2019 East West North South Tota!
Loan against Hypothecation of Vehicies - 8,777 Q77 4179 58,873
Loan ngainat Prapedy 4,380 49,427 54,908 47,405 1,608,218
Fience Laaas Recelvablas 4,485 12,050 10,698 16,877 43,620
Total 8,881 70,254 108,623 07,651 2,688,408
As at March 31, 2018 East West North South Total
Loan ageinst Hypothecation of Vehicios 7 7.738 48,879 5465 1,880
Lezn againel Property . 31,802 37,380 30,300 93,201
Finance Leass Receivables 217 2,273 4,140 26047 39,477
Total 274 41,013 00,208 m2,M2 1,834,067

e~



ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services Indla Limited

Notes la} (Continued)
for tha 3 ]

(A4 amounts aro in INR Lakhs, except as steted }
Note:- §1

Maximum Exposure to cradlt Riek

The maximum sxpoawre [0 cradit risk of advances s thelr canying amount Tha

Narvative Dascriplion of Golaleral

is before

i the effectof

through

Collaterst primarfly Inciude vehicles for Commearcial Vehicle Loana and Finsace Lease; whareas for Loan agsinst property co¥iateral Includes praperty.

Quantilativa Information of Collateral
The value of the rul for
The valus of (he ral for
The vale of the el for

spainat Hypothscatian of Vehicies 38,260
agelnst Property 1,868,451
Recelvables 46,681

240,371

above {abls includes advances and outstanding

at March 31, 2019 Exposure 1o the risk
Hypothecation of Vehices 58,673
158,216
43,620
2,868,409

bove lable Inciudas advances and oulstanding,

at Mareh 31, 2018 Exposure to the rlsk
agsins! Hypothecation of Vehiclas 61,080
sgainet Proparty 99,201
Laasa Recetvables N477
1.64,857

above table Includes advances end autslanding

40,835

40,033
95,000

Vehiclos
76,265

30,748
1,07,011

Vehlcles
80,800

13,046
83,748

tanby p.& on straight-line besls,
p.aon -line bads,

49,808
4,38,354 4,38,354
1,249 47,202
4,30,354 1,249 5,38,271
Land & Bullding  Deposits from Lessess  Total Collateral
78,286
4,05210 403210
1,985 82,141
4,09,210 1,395 513818
Land & Buliding  Daposits from Lessess  Total Collatersi
80,698
2,25,426 2,26.425
623 13,671
2,25428 6823 3,198,794

+13,378
-2,74,903
021
-2.06,900

Net Exposure ECL
10,592
<2,40,004
11,379
-2,5T7,207

Net Exposure EGL
-18,809
-1,26,134
19,808
1,286,187

f



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Notes to the financlal statements (Conlnued)

for the year snded 31 March 2020

{All smounts are In INR Lakhs, axcept as staled )

Note:- 42

Credit quality of ioans
The Company reviews tha credit quality of lta [oans based on the ageing of the loan,

The ageing of tha loan le segregated In three stages. These stages are mentloned in Inputs considered in the ECL model.

Stage 1
Losn apainst Hypothecalon of Veh! 24,212
Loan agains! Property 1,34,902
Finance Lease Recelvables 33,850
Trade receivable 11
Tatat 1,93,076
Tho above table includes ad and outstanding

Stage 1
Lonn against Hypothecalion of Vehicl 40,887
Lomn agsinet Property 147,780
Financo Lease Recalvables 30,335
Tradn rerelvable 54
Total 2,36,058
The above lable Includes advances and outstanding.

Stage 1
Loen against Hypoth lon of Vehiel 58,555
Loar against Property 95,764
Finance Lease Recoivabies 18,524
Trada receivable 28
Toul 1,72,801

As at March 31, 2020

Stage 2 Stage 3
4,362 7,605
24,015 7,534
11,335 1,476

108 505

30,808 17,210

An at March 31, 2019

Stage 2 Stage 3
3,080 3,007
4,205 4,141
3,549 836
142 101
11,078 7,978
As at March 31, 2018
Stage 2 Stage 3
2,162 1172
2,141 1,366
12,234 2,718
28 49
18,668 5,208

Total
38,289
1,066,461
48,801
722
2,850,093

Total
86,073
1,588,216
43,520
207
2,868,706

Total
81,889
09,201
3477

108
1,94,762

The above table Includes ad and outstand|

! .
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ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Alt amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Note:- 43
The Company has made use of the following practical expedients available in Ind AS 116

a) The Company will not reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease Accordingly, the definition of lease in accordance with Ind
AS 17 will continue to be applied to lease contracts entered by the Company or modified by the Company before April 1, 2018,

b) The ny has ied a si discoun to a portfolio of le r assets in e ic environ

Conse the Co  ny has rded its liability using the of remaini e nts, disco using the
barro i ication and the righ  use at its carrying amount as if the standard had been
e the £l , but discounted us he i ontal borrowing rate at the date of initial

application,

c) The Company does not recognize RolU assets and lease liabilities for leases with less than twelve months of lease term and low
value assets on the date of initial application.

The Company had taken office premises under cancellable and non-canceliable operating lease agreements that were renewable on a
dic bas the of the ! and the heo ing ements p to a maximum of nine years
their re tive of tion ome of t eag ent escalat

IND AS 118 disclosure

Asg at As at
Particular 2 s 31 2019

ROU 146 128
Interest expenses on lease liability 35 38
Expenses for short term leases 200 209
Expenses for low value leases - -
Cash outflow of leases during the year 169 137
additions to ROU during the year 30 551
Carrying amount of ROU as at 308 423
Maturity analysis of lease liability
Less than 6 months 74 81
6-12 months 73 87
1-2 years 77 140
2-5 years 110 155
More than 5 years 14 29
Total 348 452

%Wk LY



ORIX Lassing and Fin nclal Services Indla Limited
Notes to ihe Minancial statements {Continued)

for the yeor ended 31 March 2020

(AN amounis are in INR Lakns, except a5 staled)

Note:- 44
Discloaure 2 Provielon as norma & lossas  ind AB 108
Lose Allowances bty Ind
Assat classiicason as Grose Cartying {Provisions) as quired s
perind AS 108 Amounrt as per ind A8 required under Ind A8 Nat Carying Amount per IRACP narme A8 101 provisions and
100 IRACP norms
3] [} 4 {Er=E-4) ®) ) = (4)-08)
Glage 1 1.82,707 821 1,602,088 1,817 “
Stage 2 40,452 1104 30,281 195 -1
2,03,188 1,012 2,931,347 3,012
Slsge 3 10,523 1,938 8,507 (2] 1,000
up to 1 year Slage 3 3412 805 2,807 052
0 3 yosrs Stage 3 1,400 223 1177 48
More than 3 years Slage 3 128 3 [1] %
for doubtful 4918 1) 4,07 1,498
Stge 3 308 o1 228 212
08 ] 228 12 (¢ 1]
such as guarenises, lban commiments, Stage 1 0047 34 8013 19
which i Iho n0ope of ind AS 10U bod aot 8
ourent Income Recogniiion, Assel Baga 2 10 0 1o 0
Provisioning (IRACP) norms Slage 3 505 (1] s L1}
Bubtolal (X1} ™ 0,888 L2
Staga 1 1,08,754 055 1,908,099 1,817 1
Slage 2 40,558 1,191 39,307 195 990
Slaga 3 18,278 203 1303 2843 203
Total 4,782 2,850,808 4,008 12r

Stnce the total Impalrmant allowances under Ind AS 108 Is higher than tha total provisioning required under (RACP (Including stendard assel provisioning) as at 31 March 2020, no amount
Is required to be transferred to ‘impalrment Reserve’, The grass carrying amount of asset as per Ind AS 109 and Loss alf {Pr ) thereon Includes Interest eccrual on nat
carrylng value of stage - 3 assets a1 parmitted under Ind AS 109, While, the provisions required as per IRACP norms does not Include any such Interest »s [ntecest accrual on NPAs Is not
permitted under IRACP norms.




ORIX Lea Iing and Financial Services India Limited
Notes lo the financial statements (Continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Al amounts ars in INR Lakhs, oxcapt as stated)

Note:- 48

As ot Classifioation and Provistoning

um
on
moralorium perlod and In the absence of other credit risk (ndicalors, the granting of @ moratorium does not resull In
© 2 or Stage 3 classification oriterla.
The RB tag 23, has Rted al ke, N othe al ons um for an addiionat period of 3 monihs on payment
of Instal fall e, and 8t 21, .The has to Isto
Ag per RBI Ci N 1 19-20, ns In ult but star erg fic fit is axtended, lending Instiiutions shall
meke ganeral of 1 ofihe such unils, to ba ove rs
{1} Quarter ended March 31, 2020 ~ nat less than 5 per cent
{li) Quarter anding June 30, 2020 - nol iess than 5 per cent
Below table showa the exposure where moratorium was granted and provision as mentioned abovs on the same for quarter endad March 31,2020
i 2020
¢ tlo
a 0.1 3,
2

\)%V‘\M/ﬁ



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services Indla Limited
Notes ta the finsnclal (c

far the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounis are In INR Lakhs, excep! a3 steled)

Note:- 46

The Compary has givan veh cles on linanze Ieun Thase hlns have a primary paricd ranging from 2 1o 5 years , which is fixed and cannot be terminated withou!
consent of both tho parfies Thera are no p / in Iha lease it The reconcilialion {he lolal gross i ntholease al
1he balance sheel date and Ihe presenl value of minimum lsase paymenls raceivable at the balance sheal are ns folows

Risk management an ihe residual inierest of lhe leasing porifolio happens througn (he process of RY commiles RV commitiee mesis on a periodic basis and dele/mines
tha RV that are offerad for each modsi, In case of Finance lease transaction , there is a commitmeni by (ha lessoe / uaor and guaranteed residual value is included in
lasse payment recaivable The smme is feclored lease rental calculation and hence RV rlak is faken care of

As at As at As at
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Finance lease Incoma 8,561 5,265 4441
44,215 41575 29.722
Calagory af Ipasa
As at Asat As at
Vehice
Equipment 6,393 8,897 1523
Two Wheeler 112
Fumliure & Fulure
As at As at As at
Opening balance 41,575 29,722 34,002
Net addition
Nel closing of nal invesiment in fnance lesase
Gross invesiment in leaso and present vaius
Asat As st At at
31 March, 2020 31 Maroh, 2019 31 March, 2018
N ftm"“ Net presant I G'rau( R Net present valus  Gross inveatment Nel presant vaius
invemtmentin - \yue ormLp  MVEMIMeRtin of MLP in lease of MLP
laage lease
Leas thun one year 22,846 17,201 20,432 15,376 14,610 11,127
Betweeon one and five years 31,820 27.006 31,239 20414 21,871 18,598

More than five yaars

The Company gves vahicles under operating lease, Thess tsasas have an avarage primary period of 2 to 4 years wnich is fixed 8nd cannal be iaminated withoy! tha
consent af both the paries No purchase oplions are given lo the leasees during or al the end of tha lease term On retirement of vehiclas from (he renlal business i e
when a vehicle is nol actively let out on a lease for more than o year, the vehicla bncomc: hald for sale and reclassified to invaniory No vehicles wore relired during the
yeat. Any conlingeni renl is nol considered as part of MLP as (hey are not r d at lhe cor of the laase and recognired in profit and loss as
incoma whon recewved.

Risk management on the resiual interest of the leasing ponfolio happens through the grocoss of RV commilles RV commitiee meets on a pariodic basis and delarmines
the RV ihal aro offered for each model

In case of Op ing lease I ion RV i dacides Lhe rasidual value of 8ach assel class The Company has adequale axpariise, dala and resources to
estimate the RVs at ibe incaplon of lease and manage the sete process al ihe and of iease lenor

Operaling lsases renlal:

Operaling Wases ranial

Total
The fuluwre minimum lesss pay under nor ble op g leases aro as follows
Asmt A Asat
31 March, 2020 31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

Less Ihan one year 817 948 534
Betwosn one and five years 707 1.581 1,286
More than ive years

Total 1,704 2,821 1,020

b, &0



ORIX Lesaing and Financla! Services Indls Limited
Notes to the fl }

for the year ended 31 March 2020

(ANl amounts are in INR Lakhs, excep! as stated)

Note - Note:- 47
Segmant Reporting

The Chiaf Executlye Cfficer (CEQ) baen identiied as the Chisf Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CEO regularly raviews tha performance reporta end meke
declsiona abaul allocstion of

Anop 1y segment is a comp of he company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenus and incur expanses, for which discrate financia)
Ieifnrmation is availaole

This Company provides flnancial ssrvices such es Finance Laasing of Passenger Cars, install ment loans for Commarclal Vehicles (*CV) and
Lonn‘against Praparty ("LAR") in India

In tha apinice of the CODM, the Company has 'Lsxing’ as (he only busingss sagmart. Also, Iha Company operates only in india and It perceives
that thard fs rio sighifican) difasence in s risks and retums in operaling fram diffarent geographi areas wifhin India

The Campary doss net dise! i @ ntormation as Iho reparting irformation provided in thase rofiects intorhial managament
informaticn. THub it assets and resull o Ihe sagmeant can ba delormined by refarance to e Batance Sheat and Statomant of Profl and Loss for yoar respoctively,

Information about major customers

N revenus from transaction with a single customer amounded to 10% or more of the Company's total revenue In the year sndad 31st March 2020 or 31st March 2019 or

W
i\ 4 W

v



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India L

Notes to the fl |

for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounis are in INR Lakhs, except slaied)

Note:- 48

t. Financial instruments - Falr vaiuas and risk management

A. Accounting cla sification and falr vaiues

Camrying amounts and fait valuss of financial assels and Habillties, including Lheir lavels in 1he fair value hierarchy, ars presented below.
Falr value

March 31, 2020

Loans

Cash and cash equivalents

Loan against Hypothscalion of vehicle
Loan against Property

Finance Lessas

Tradsa receivable

Sacurily deaposits Premises

Sundry Deposits

Retalned Interest on Loan Assigned
Advances to suppliers of goods and ssrvices
Olher Deposils

Loans and advances to employses
Olher Advancas

Aranotal labilkies

Trade payables
Non-convertibie Dabanlures
Term Loan

Masala Bond

ECB Borrowing from Bank
Cash Credtt

Overdraft facililies

Inlerest accrued bul not due on borrowings
Securily Deposils From Lessees

Other Payables io Employses

Fayable in respect of loans assignsd
Olher payables

Lease liabilllies

Warch 31, 2019

Non Current

Loans

Cash and cash equivalents

Loan against Hypothecation of vehicle

Loan against Proparty

Financa Leasas

Trade recaivable

Security deposits Premises

Security Deposits

Relained Interast on Loan Assigned
Advances o suppllers of goods and services
Other Deposits

Loans and advances lo employaes

Bank Deposils maturily more than 12 months
Othar Advances

Financial llabitities

Trade paysbles
Non-converible Debenlures
Term Loan

Masala Bond

ECB Bomowing from Bank
Cash Cradil

Overdraht tacililiss

Interast accrued bul nat due on borrowings
Security Deposile From Lessaes

Other Payables lo Employess

Paysble In raspect of loans assigned
Other Payables

Advance from cuslomers

Lease listilities

Carrying value

3,854
33,994
1,64,752
48,937

a8
563
118
10

2,358

2106
20,000
1.53.466
10,600
17.500
198

673

1,249

Carrying value

1,448
55,597
155,389
42,375
2680

304
708
156

22

1,760

2,805
§2,000
1,20,690
10,000
7,500
7,436
12471
852
2,973
1,395

287
245
1,603
452

Lovel

3854
31,967
1,64,752
41,716
660
34
38
593
116
10

2,356

2,106
20,000
1.35,541
10,000
17,500
198

873
1,500
1,249

218

83

321
1,505

48

Fair value

Level 1 Lavel

1,448

2,805

111,396
10,000
7,500
7,436
1217

2,973
1,385

24¢
245
1,603

Level 3 V-

3,854
31,967
1,64,752
41718
880

34

a9

583

116

10

2356

2,106
20,000
1,35541
10,000
12,500
168

7

873
1,500
1,249
218

a3

321
1,508
348

Leval 3 101N

1448
54,195
1,55,380
34,116
280

394
706
158

1.160

2,805
49,401
1,11,396
10,000

7436
12174

2973
1,385
29
207
245
1,603



Note:- 48 (Continued) Falr value
maren 3, zos Carrying value Lovel 1 Lovel 2 LoVl 3 rowmi
L Assots ud at A tsed Cost
Cash and cash equivaisnts 520 520 520
Losn against Hypothecation of vehicie 81,268 60,468 80,468
Loan sgainst Proparty 96,877 90,877 98,877
Finance Lauses 32,748 24,704 24,704
Trade recaivable 100 100 100
Sacurity deposils Premisas » 22 22
Sundry Depostis 250 250 250
Advances lo suppliers of goods and services 208 208 208
Cther Deposita 5 5 5
Lo ns and edvances (c employees 4 4 4
Bank Depostis maturtty more than 12 montha 3 3 3
Other Advances 34 kL] 34
Qther Current Financiel Asasts
Total
F Uabilities at Amortisad Cost
Trade payabiss 101 101 101
Non-convartibie Debentures 52,000 49,401 49,401
Temn Loan 89,738 49,323 49,323
Masaia Bond 10,000 10,000 10,000
ECB Borrowing from Bank 7,500 7,500 7.800
Cash Credit 10,741 10,741 10,741
Overdrafl facitties 1,203 1,203 1,203
Loans from Related Parlies T4 741 741
Inleres! accrued but not dus an borrowings 2,003 2,003 2,003
Sscurily Dsposits From Lessees 623 623 623
Other Payables to Employses 232 232 232
Other pay bie 353 353 353
Advance from customers ot 1244 077
Leaso llabliities 554 561 551
Total
(1) Asasls that ar seots (such as d sic.), In¢
(2) In this table, the dizgclosed ths 1T} and ] ina ay thal parmila tha Information to be compared with thelr

camying amounts In addition, it has reconclied he assets and llabiiles to the different catagories of financial instruments as defined in ind AS 109 This presentalion mathod is
opllonal and s diffarent prasentalion method may be mors appropriste, dep g on 1ces

B. Measursment of fair values
Valuation techriques and significant unobservabla Inputs

8 Falr value of cash and denk halances, trads payables, other current financial asssts and abilties, appraximate their camying amounls [argely due o short term maeturities of
Ihegs instrumsnts

b Tha foliowing tables show ths veluation techniques used in messuring Level 2 and Lavel 3 fair vaiues, as wel as the slgnificant unobservabie inpute used.

Fi al | d tfalr value

Type Vaiuation techniqus

FIX80 rares 1ong (6t DOTowINgs The vaiuailon modesl considers pressni
vatus of expected payments diacounted

ueing an appropriate discounting rate.

Sacurity Doposils
value of expecied paymenis discounted
using an appropriate dlscouniing rate,
Loans ne valusiion mosel

considars pesanl
vaiue of expecied payments discounted
using an appropriate discounting rats,

&\ g



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limlted

Notes to tha fi {
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs,

Financlal instruments — Fair v

as slated)
nd risk management {continued)

The Company has to the foliowing riska ariging from financial instruments:
- Markel Risk {inte risk)

= Credit risk ;

= Liquidity riak ; and

» Currency fisk

I, Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overail ponsibiily for Lhe and ighl of the Company’s risk managemanl framework

The and he

and navi ang

Ihro sto con

and

il. Interst risk menegement framework

(nierest raie dsk Is thal irva fulura ca lins because of changas in marke! interesi rales Ths Company's exposure lo
the risk of chenges ofin rate arly o th nps raies

Exposure to interast rate risk

Company's
Company is

Fixed mte borrowinga

Nan-converible Debenluras

Term Loan

Securily Doposils

Total

Variable rate borrowings

Term Loan

Cash Cradit

Overdran Faclllles

ngs
Totai

Interest beasing financial assets
Fixed rale assets
inal malurlly of more than 3 manthg hut
of fess than 12 monins
Loan againsi Hypothecalion of vehicle
Finance Leases
Trade receivable
Bank Deposils malurity more than 12 months
Loana and advances lo emplayses
Securily Depoaits
Olher Deposits
Yota)
Varlabla rais assets
Loan agains| Proparty
Total

Falr value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments.

The no
dale lp 5
Gash flow sensitlvity ysis for ate I

e risk artses from borrowings The interest rale profila of the Company's intereal-bearing financlal instruments as reported (o the managemonl of ihe

NR
20,000 52,000 52,000
63,000 36,155 35,814
117.966 1,02,035 51,425
168 7436 10,741
7 12,171 1,203
673 952 741
88 74 72
33,99 55,597 61,258
45,936 42,375 32,748
660 280 30
3 3

—~
©
»

for any fixed-rale flnancia) assets or financial liabifilles at fair value through profit or loss  Thersfore, a changa in inlerssl rales al the reporing

A ressonably possible change of 100 basls poinis In inlsresl rales ai the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit ar [0ss by lhe amounts shown below

Profit or {loss)
Variable-rale insirumenis 444 (444)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 444 (444)
INR
208 (290)

Cash Now seneitivity (net)

The risk eslimates providad assume a parailel shift of 100 basis poirs interest rate across all yield curves The sansilivity has been catculatad assuming the Inleresl bearing
assel and Usbilities oulstanding af (he reporling date have been outslanding for the entine ¢+ porting period

\E



ORIX Leasing and Financlal Sarvices India Limited
Noles in the financial statements (continusd)

{AX @mounis are in INR takhs, excopt s alsiad)

Financlal Inattumenta - Fair values and risik management [continued)

11 Credii rish

Credil nak s the ek af hnancial loss o the Campany if a cuslomer or y 1o 2 knancial fails |0 musl Hs | obirgati and anwes from the Company’s tecarvables

The maximum exposute lo tha credit sk at the reporing asle s plimailly from loans against hypotnecalon of venicle loans aganat properly snd finance leases a3 mentisned below

The Company & exposure 1o credil ask 1s inlluenced manty by (he Incrvidual characievisucs of pach cuslomer

Amounts arleing from ECL
[N

and used (or eati Impai on Loans againsl hypathecation of vehicies, Loans against properly and Flnance Lease recelvables
Inputs considared in the ECL model
When d k of detaull on a hnancial insirument hes ircressed significanlly since initial Ihe Company and Inat s relevam
and ava of elfont This includes balh and i i ioh and analysis besed on Ihe Comparty's hislofcal axpenence, expert credrt assesament and neluding

farward

In assessing the imparmen! of kan ansets upder Expected Credit Loss {ECL) Model, Ine loams have been segmsnied into lhsee slages based on the nsk peotiles The three slages refieci {he general

T ance Lease Commercial Vahicle Loan and Loan agalnst properly assels Irlo slages based on iha days pasi due slatus

+ Slage 2 31- 90 days pasi due
Blage 2 Mora Ihan 90 daye pasl dus

Assumplion coneideied in the ECL model
N iz ebligationa in the future

N PI08S carnyIng 2Mount i case of the flinancial assuls heid by Iha Company

Esumabion lechniques

The lollawing rak parameter have been assesaed 10 svaluate Ihe ECL

- The probabilily of delaull is assessed based an Lho low of recewables fiowing (hraugh succesave DPD buckal based on pest panlodo parfermance

+ Loas glven defaull is assessed based on laclors such as pasl recovaties, applicable t elc

-Gwen @ economic sceneno, an sddilional LGD of 3% has been factored i for Loans 100 of vehides

- For assam which ate in Slage 1 » 12 monm ECL 1s assesned For Slage 7 and stage 3 assels a hielime ECL 1 avsessed

-Exposurp al defaul s arrived al after factoning in piepayments which are eslimaled based on past parifolio performance Thess hava bean adjusled 10 [aclof In the sXualion ansing out of COVID 19

Forwara looking information

Impact of Covid-19
The COMID 19 pandemic and Ihe long<drawn lock-down has resuled in a Kigniicant Cecrease in ihe ecanamic acuviiies globaily as well 28 across our counky The exlent of smpact of COVID-19 on

BCORIMIGC courty e dificLdl 10 predect and will mawvy depend an the fulure conlainmenl of COVIO-13 and Lhe actians Laken (of resurption of opealions which Is highly
unceniain Bank of India a8 a part of (& measuies 1o bupport and Loost the it atificaliona (tied "GOV ID-19 Reguiatory Package’ daled 27 March, 2020 and 17 Apri)
. NBFC Lo giant mo:alorum of Ihree monihs on he paymen of alt insis‘'merts apoicabie (o all eligdl
m plan therinformation avarsble up Lo the date of sppraval of Inese finenzial the Company sssess ot an iy wesets,
s loan Assel Liablity Management {*ALM") pomlion

aQainsi (he polentiad impacl of COVIO -19 The aggregae pioviiony ars adaquale vit-A-vis
ni of India. and
able Jguicily 0ultook across all malurlly buckels and has adequale Laquadity posiion masamed in form of mgh-qualily quid asseis and

Tha tinal impard af the glokal heallh pandemic i vary uncerdain and tha aclual impact may be déferenl Inan that salirnated bacad on prevanhng am al the dale of appioval cf thesa hnancial
resuitsiaiements The managemenl wmik continue o clos ely monilor the malesial changes (n (he macro-economic factors Impactng t of the Ccmpany
Prabablily assigned -Loan Agairal Praperty 21 20% 47 00% 31 60%
Probabhity sasigned -Loans agams! Ity mllietatron ut 21 20% 36 40% 42 0%
vehicles
2020 (%) T
2021 (%) 7
222 %) 7
2023 %) T
2024 %) 14
2025 %} ]
2026 W) L]
Subsequenlyears % []
nagement
i Sector

Delinitien of defaull
A defauk 18 when ihe counlerparty falis {o make the conractual Payments wilnir: 90 days of when Ihey fali due Thas defintion of default is delesmined by considering ihe businest envitonment in which

Ihe comnany operaies and olher micto-economic factory

N



Foiley for writo-off of jouny assein
No wrile olfe hava bean done by the management during Ihe periods fer consideralion

1) Exposurs at detauil snd Loss
Tha tolowing table showa the exposure at dofault and lous allowance far tha same
Loan against Property
Slage 2 24,534 656 434 20 2163 113
Stage 3 6,945 873 4,14 578 1377 280
Total 185914 1800 136,714 821 99,052 M
Stage 2 4408 23 115 180 67
Stage 3 7348 1,605 3118 836 1184 483
Totai 30,198 2,285 50,370 a7e 61,774 631
Finance Leaset
Slage 2 11451 304 1410 265 9293 305
Siage 3 1,478 108 562 140 75
Total 40,047 124 42,110 1144 3N 729
Trada recalvable st March 2020 J1st March 2019 Jtai March 2018
20MD
150 0PD 10 54 28
61-80 DPD 106 142 28
90+ DPD S05 101 1w
Towl T2t 297 105
Loss Allowance 27 L] 5
The fe g lablo shows ftom the opening to the closing balance of gross sxposute
Batance v at Aped 1 2017 9,040 2,018 807 41865
Tramsfer to stage one 312 {483) 0n
Transfer (o slage two {1.602) 1.602
Teansfer io stage throe {278) (108) a8
Nal remeasurameant of loss siowance (12,131} (790} (114) {13,035)
New financle! assets orginaled or puichased 36,029 170 138 39,135
2l 243¢ts |hat have baen darecognised (5.163) (17} (214) (6,194
olfs
29,407 1104
Transfor o slags one 125 [125)
Transter (o slage o 4,101 4191
Transfer (o stags ihree (1,688) T60 2.457
{15,735) 1408} (412) {17,845y
ets azlgin 19,969 638 167 20774
hal have {1547} (697) {278) (8,522)
Transfer to slage one 379 [354) (25)
Transle! Lo slage wo {3.726) 3,741 {16} [4)]
Trancier ta slage three (2.9 (1547) 4938
Het ronmaureings of lose atiomance (14,350) {802) (13) {16,165}
New financlai sssets originated or purchased 1,882 iF) 150 2344
Financial sasett (hat have baen darecognice (5 750) {804) (308) (7.380)
Balance 33 al Apn) 1. 34,514 930 207 35651
Trarwler lo slage one 241 (24%) -
Transfer (o stage two (1,019) 1.011 -
Transfer (o stage \hree 519) (245) 765 1
Nol tamedsirartsnd of log allowance ki] 5 [0 164
New linanclel assets originaled ar purchas ed 70,521 748 315 71,582
Flnmacisl asets hat have been derecognised 8273) (79 16,346)
Wirite - ofs R
Traneler to stage one 390 {390)
Ttansfet 1o slage two (3,293) 3290
Translef 1o slage three 11.811) (855) 2667 1
Nel remsasurement of o3 3llowanca {11,439) 130 o (11,210
New linancial assets originaled or purchased 83,824 01,824
Financlal asuats thal hava been derecognised {16,953) (15.953)
Transfer lo stage one 903 {769} {140}
Transfat 1o slage two {18 884) 10,340 (477) m
Tramsfor o slage hree {2.973) {976) 3949
Nel remeaswrement of loss aliowance 2.743) {173 243 {3,873)
35.854 321 34,805
Finsncial 28sets Ihal have been derecognised (R.779) (460) 73 {25.011)

¥ W



Transtar io siage one

Transler lo siage twa

Tranmfer lo siage hiee

Net remessirement of loss allowsnce

New linancial asseta onginated o purchsaed
Finahoal meets thal have been derecagnised

Transéer (o stage one
Tiamuler 1o slage two
Trans{e: o slage (hrwe

New financlei sesels originated of purchased
Financial asaets ihat have bean derecognised

The abla shows

Balsnce a8 ot Aprik 1, 2017
Tranefer lo 12 month ECL
Tranafer lo Litalvne ECL nol credt impaired

Nel remesssurement of (oss miowence
ongn u
have )

Translef to 12 manih ECL,

Trenslor to Ldeime ECL not et ted
Trans(es to Lifelime ECL craan

Net (emessurament of loss allowance

New linancisl assets anginated or purchesed
Financial assets 1hal have bean derecognmed

Tiansler to Lilslime ECL paired
Transler to Liletime ECL ed
Nel rmmaswement of iowe siovence

New financial assels onginated or puichased
Financisi ssse's that heve been detecognines

Wrils Offs - Loan ngalnet Hypothecation of Vehicies

tecoversbia

Balance as 8l 1,
Tranafer to 12 month ECL

Transferto 12

Tianmfer 1o Litelime ECL no! ¢ eod
Tranetes 1o Lifetwme ECL credi

Nel |emamurament of ioes alowance

New linancial assess onginated or purchamed
Fieenclal sssem (hal have been deracognised

12 monih ECL
Tramutet lo Lilstime ECL not credd Impaired
Transler lo Lifetme ECL credil Impalyed

New ttnancis) aseels orlginaled o purchased
Financial asets thal have been detecognised

Wilts Ofts . Loen agsinet Propaity

7.509
(183}
(69)

14,839
(8.855)

264
(6.110)
(885)
2241)
4.591
(643}

from the opening to 1he ciosing batance of tha foas ellowancas and wrils ofte:

12.manth ECL

()
(4}

14)

(189)
1834}
1125
16
(19)

12-month ECL

£

(1)
(N
&)

{446)
(362)
916

(&}

(862}
6,122
(111
{491)
3,599
(218)

59
2)

()

22

127)
m
20

23)

{5}
150
£
312

(20}

Lirstime ECL nat creait-

Y]

40
{1

(40)
149

(20)

{2}
121}

18
(30

)

242
142

151)

486

51
114
1153)

LNetime ECL oredit.

Lhl

. Bs

(51

[l
{35)
483

21

1Ty

1,046
16,536
10.242)

(2719)
8,322
(896)

Towl

612

21
187
(190)

Vogal

2814

m

405

(28

1019

{208)



Balance as al Apt 1, 2017

Transfar lo 12 month ECL

Transfer to Lifetime ECL nol credil impaued
Tranafer to Litelime ECL credil impsired

Net rameasuremert of loss slowancs

New linancial as9ets origin o
Financial assets ihal have ved

Tramsfar to 12 monih ECL

Transler (o Lifetime ECL no! credit impaired
Tranaler 1o Lifetime ECL credil impaired

New financial asssls onginaled of puichased
Financis) sses thal have been At ACopTe)

Teansier 10 12 monih ECL

Transfer lo Lifelime ECL nol credi| anpaired
Transler to Lieume ECL credit impaired

Net remeasutemen of loas allowance

New financial asaets onginated or purchased

Wrila Ofa - Financa Laase Receivabies.

recaverable

Secuilly Deposits, GV lease and other advances

Opaning balance
Nel Impairmen loas recopnimed
Balance witen back

ECLrale
EAD

st Maich 2019
ECL rale

I1st Wareh 2018

ECL changes on Financlal Instruments recorded in P&L
Year endad 31 March 2020

Loan agaiat
Finance Lease

Yaas onded 31 March 2019

Loan agaiwmt Properly
Finbnes Lease Aeasivaties

pandesnic

12-month EOL

17
30

200
102

216
{9
(25)

77
ip)]

~148
321)
29

15)

larms of 30-90 days

0% 0%
110 55

2 o ECL Witetima ECL not cradh

48 a2
817 29

12.month BCL Lielime ECL not credit

145
o) 40

Thare s no malenal concentralion of loss allowance al any paricular geographic atea

Liletims ECL not aredit- Litetime ECL credil-

100

210)
(8)

126
(2)

[{:]]
148
(11)
181)
12
(2)

1%
§1

Litelime ECL cradit.

Lifatime ECL credit-

Simpiitied

8imphlied

370
an

30
47
19}

(6)
7
a5
65
46)

2)
1
9

1%

Total

Tatail

Total

3ar

102
249
£}

[}

467
121

628)
154
47)

138

722
81

872
421

414
416



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services Indla Limited

Notes to the fi

(Al amounls are in INR Lakhs, except as staled)

Financisl Instruments — Fair valuss snd risk msnagemant {canlinued)

Hi. Liquldity risk

that
appr
loss

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of inancial assels and liabililies at the raparling dala The amourts ara gross and

paymanls,

INR actuals

Non-derivative financisl assels
Loans
Caeh and cash aquivalenis
Loan agans| Hypathecalion of vehicle
Loan against Properly
Finance Leases
Trade receivable
Security deposils Premises
Sundry Deposits
Retained Interest on Loan Assigned

Advances lo suppliers of goods and services

Other Deposits
Loans and advances lo employees
Ofher Advances

Non-derivativa financial llabllities
Non-convertible Debentures
Term Loans from Banks matunty
Masela Bond
ECB Bortowing from Bank
Security deposits from [essees
Cash Credils Facililies
Overdrali faciliies
Losns and advances from related party
Trade Payabie
Other Payables
Leasa liablliles
Other Payables lo Employees
Payable in respect of loans assignad
Advance from customers

Commitment

Total

NR artimaln

Loans

Cash and cash squivaients

Loan against Hypothacatlon of vehicle
Loan against Property

Finance Leases

Trade recsivaoie

Securily deposils Premises

Sundry Deposils

Ratained Inlaresi on Loan Assigned

Advances to suppliers of goods and sarvices

Other Deposits
employees

Bank Deposits maturily more than 12 monlhs

Other Advances

Non-dettvailve financlal (labititles
Nor-convertibla Debeniures
Tenm Loans from Banks malurity
Masaila Bond
ECB Borrowing from Bank
Securlly deposits from lessaes
Cash Credits Facilitios
Overdraf facililies
Loans and advances from relaleo party
Trade Payable
Cther Payables
Leass liabll(ties
Other Payables lo Employess
Payable in respoct of loans assigned
Advance from customers

Commitment

Total

Carrylng amount

Carrylng amount

1,448
55,597
1.55,389
42,375
260

394
707

22

1,160
257,577

52,000
1.20,090
10,000

1,395

1,603
2,873
718

2 21.567

ligations associatad with ils financlel ilabililies that ars setiled by delivering cash or another financial
liquidity to mael its ligbilitias whaen they are due, under bolh normal and stressed condltions, without

Total

3,854
33.994
164,752
45,937
860

39

116
10

2,358

20,619
1,84,900
11,114
8,148
1,661
198

873
2,108
321
348
218
a
1,505
1,500
3,408

Total

1,448
55,597
1,55,389
42375
280

34

394

707

156

22

1,180

57,749
1,.24.921
12,117
0,870
1,782
10737
1,211
952
2,805
245
452
329
297
1803
2,978
719

than 8
manthx

3,854
9,801
2,850
10877
660

38

116

1,098

20,619
37512
210
1,120
57

108

673
2108
a1
a4da
218
83
1,505

3,408

mnniiva

1448
13,711
3,803
8648
280

394
707
158

464

25404
37,006
85
268
62
10,737
1214
952
2,805
245
452
329
297
1,803
2073
719

d and include intarast
6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years
8.101 11,086 4,888
2917 6,407 152,578
8,124 13,716 13,421
34
10
1,280
40318 40,148 83 922
ase 10,518 .
20896 3977 955
306 470 828
6-12 months 1-2ynars 2-5 yaurs
11,029 17,494 13,363
2,374 5,184 143,528
7,227 12,558 13,844
34
22
078
10,795 21,550
23555 43193 31,077
385 770 10,577
28¢ 3,338 4,938
258 359 1,103

o G Wy



Conlmciual cash Nows

N

3

.

_:&E:hcti r:ﬂlll Carvying amount Total I'.'i:‘::;‘_ 8.12 months 1-2 yoars 2.5 yoarn
Non-dertvstive financizl sssets
Loans
Cash and cash equivaisnis 520 520 520 . .
Loan against Hypolhecation of vehicls 01,286 61,258 16,471 14,380 17,082 18,645
Loan against Property 808,877 88,877 2,535 4,833 4,000 90,500
Finance Leases 32,740 32,748 8,786 6,235 9,221 9,607
Trade recsivable 100 100 100 . - -
Sacurity daposits Framises 22 22 . 2
Sundry Deposits 250 250 250 . .
Advances to suppliers of goods and sarvices 208 200 208 .
Other Deposits 6 5 . 5
Loans and advances o smploysas 4 4 4 - .
Bani Deposits maturity more than 42 monihe 3 3 L]
Other Advances 4 34 34
Nen-derlvative financial liabllities
Non-convartitle Dabentures 62,000 67,733 36,187 21,548
Yerm Loans from Banke maturity 09,730 76,140 13,445 12,044 24,248 27,613
Masale Bond 10,000 12,110 i . 187 11,343
ECB Borrowing from Bank 7.500 8,875 . - 822 8.263
Security deposiis rom [essees 623 805 62 105 169 489
Cash Credits Facilliles 10,741 10,741 10,741 . 3
Ovardraft faciities 1,203 1,203 1,208
Loans and advances from relatad party T4 4 741
Trade Payable 101 101 101
Other Payablas 352 353 353
Lease liabiliina 551 551 551
Other Piysbles to Employess 232 232 232
Advance fram customers ere o768 078
Interest Accrued but not due 2,803 2,603 2,803
Commitment 1,805 1,885 1,685
1,590,329
The groes inflows/{outflows) disclosed In the above table rep it tha al cash flows relating to the inanclal tabillies
'



ORIX Leasing and Financlal Services Indla Limited
Notea to the financlal st (continusd)

Financlal instruments = Falr values and risk management {continued)

Iv. Market risk
Markel risk is the risk that changas In market prices — such as foreign axchange rates, interest rates and squity prices — will affect the Company's incoms or the value of lis hokdings of
financial Instruments. Market risk 1 attributabie to all market risk aemsilive financial Ingtrumante including forsign currency racelvabies and payablas and long term debt

Currency risk
The Company has lle revenuss and other transactions In lis funclionsl curmency i.e INR excapt immaterial expsnditure in forelgn currency. Accordingly Lhe Company has no matertal
axposura to currency risk as on 318t March 2020

W 1



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited
Notes to the financla| statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Note:- 49
Capital Management
The Company's objectives when managing capital are to {a) maximise shareholders value and provide benefit to the stakeholders and (b) maintain an optimal capital

siructure to reduce the cost of capltal.

The Company monitors capital using a ralio of “adjusted nel debi* to “adjusted aquity” For this purpose, adjusled net debt is defined as total liabilities, comprising
interest bearing loans and barowings less cash and cash aguivalents Equity comprises all components of equity

INR Lakhs
As at March 31,  As at March 31, 2018  As at March 31, 2018
2020
Borrowings 2,04,593 215,117 1,55,450
Gross Debt 2,04,583 2,16117 1,866,460
Less - Cash and Cash Equivalents (3,854} (1.448) (5?0}
AdJusted Net debt = 2,00,739 _ 2,13,809 _ 1,84,030
Totat equity 57,095 53,473 48,802
Adjusted Nat debt to equity ratio 3.52 400 317

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of oparations, capital expenditure and siralegic investment plans The capital structure is
monitored on the besis of net debt to equity and maturity profile of overall debi portfolio of the Group.

The Company is subject to the capilal adequacy requirements of the Reserve Bank of indla (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy guidelines, the Company is required to
maintain a capitat adequacy ratio consisting of Tier | and Tiar || Capital The total of Tier Il Capital at any point of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier | Capltal. The
minimum capilal ratio as prescribed by RBI guidelines and applicable to the Company, conslsting of Tier 1 and Tier Il capltal, shall not be less than 15 percent of its
aggregate risk welghted assets on-balance sheet and of risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet

The Company has complied wilh all regulatory requirements related to capital and capital adequacy ratios as prescribed by RBIi as per clrcular number
DOR(NBFC) CC.PD NO.109/22 10 106/2019-20 dated 13 March 2020

Partlculars 31-03-2020 31-03-2019 31.03-2018
Ragulatory capital

i) Tier | Capital (%) 19.50% 17.16% 20,38%
li) Tier Il Capitai (%) 072% 0 58% 0,48%
Total Capltal 20.22% 17.74% 20.88%,




ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the financi | statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs. except as staled)

Note:- §0

Repnyment schedule af long term borrowing :
Loan as on 31 March 2020 sre repayable ag st (ed blow

Interest Rate 1-2 vears

Floating

Monthly B 0% -9 60%
Quarterly 765%-920%

Bullet Payment 725%-906%

Fixed

Monthly

Quanerly 8 80%

Bullet Payment 747% -8 85%

Toint

Loan as on 31 March 2019 are repayable as stated blaw

Interest Rate 1-2 years

Floating
Monthly 810%-975%
Quartarly 765%-920%
Fixed
Monlthly
Quarterly 945%
Bullet Payment 745% -8 95%

otal

Loan as on 31 March 2018 are repayable as staled blow

Inlerest Rate 1-2 veors

Flosting

Monthly 8 30% -4 55%

Quarterly 765% - 8 40%

Fixed

Monihly 950%

Quarterly 945%

Bullel Payment 747%-870%

Talnl

16,975
12917

2,500
16,000

48392

19,350
9417

3,000
27,000

58.767

7,356
9,810

729
625
32,000

£0.518

Ve % w

1.3 vears

2-3 venrs

-3 vears

8,725
5,521
32,000

4,000

15,142
6,146

23.788

3375
3,583
2813
20,000

2097

3.5 years

30 years

3.3 years

133
2,500

10,000

12,633

7,150
15,937

23,087

625

4,688
10,000

15313

Total

Total

Total

25,833
20,938
32,000

2,500
30,000

1,11.271

41,642
31,500

5,500
27,000

1.05.641

11,354
13,393

8,230
625
62,000

TN607



ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services India Limited

Notas to th cla 8 (continuad)
for the year KL
(Al emounts ara in INR Lakhs, except as slated)

Note -51

{d) Movement in deferred tax batances

assel

Leasn rentals and tax deprecialion
Provisian for Non-Performing Assels
Expected Cradil Losses

Provision for Leave Encashment & Gratuity

Ind AS Ad]ustments
Lease rental Siraight lining
Effaciive imarest rate on Borrowings
Effactive Mtarest rate on Loang and Aavances
Employee Banefits PNL
Employee Banefits OCI
Discounting of secunity deposits pald ses
Discounting of security deposils reca lessees

Tax asssts (Liabilitles)
Set off tax
Net tax nsests

Leasa rentals and lax depracialion
Provislon for Non-Performing Assets
Expeacted Credit Losses
n for hment & Gratuity
ance ve
Ind AS Adjustments
Lease rental Straight lining
Effeclive interesi rate an Borrowings
Effective Gain on Loan Iransier Transactons
Effeclive inferest rale on Loane and Advancas
Employee Banafils PNL
Employea Banefils OC|
Di: 9 of sacurlty deposits paid for
Discounting of security deposits received from lessees

Tax assets (Liabllites)
Setoff lax
Nel tax assets

Deferrad tax asset
Laass rentals and tax depreciation
Provision for Non-Performing Assats
Expecled Credit Losass
Frovision for Leave Encashment & Graluity
Mainienanea Linkad Rosarva

Ind AS Adjustments

lining

on Borrowings

Effectiva Galn on Loan transter Transaclions

EMactiva Interest rate on Loans and Advances

Employee Benefits PNL

Employae Benefits OCI

Discounting of securily deposits se3
Oiscounting of sscurlty deposits lossees

Tax assets {Liabilitiss)
Sel off tax
Not tax asests

2017

6008
203

51

a1
12
12

3

1, 2018

6812
411
33

a3
39

6)
14
14

(6)

Net balance
Agril 1, 2019

6,431
58
107

04
43

1
22

(247)
7

(32)
a2
(24)

]

or loss

604
120
(20)
(18)
@7

(0)

5
)

(&)

n
orloss

(381)
247
74
ki
4

1
22

(247)
13

(18)

(24)
(1

inOCl

g in
prodit or loss

(1823
82
9
(28
(22)

18

3
()

(18)
[}

In OCI

6812
41

33
39

(6)
(14)
14

(©)

8,431
859
107

43

(247)
7
(32)
32
24)
M

4,808
720
11e

21

(247)
10
(38)

(42)
n

asset

6812
111
33

39

Deferrad tax
ussot

8434
658
107

64
43

32

31-M r-20
sgset

4808
720
110

38
21

Habllity

(®)
(14)

®

(247
(2;2)

(24)
&}

Tisbility

(247)
(39)

(42)
[¢4]



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Notes to the flnancial statements {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Note - 52
Tax expense

Excess Provision for previous years

Deferred income tax liabllity / {asaet), net

Decrease in deferred tax liabililies

Increase in deferred tax assets

Increase in deferred tax liabliiies due to Ind AS Adjustments
Deferred tax expense

Tax expense for the year

Incoma

plans

tax
Tax using the Company's domestic tax rate 25.168%
Reduction in tax rate

Tax ct of amounts which are not deductible In calculating taxable

Inco
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure
Others

Actuarial losses passed through OC| rectassified to Profit & Loss

Bad debts written off

Interest on SA Tax paid

Difference due lo change in tax rates
Difference due lo tax audit edjustment

(Excess) / Short provision of 1ax for earlier years

an corporate statutory tax rate fo ar
y. The decreass ii the corporale 1y

reh 31,
25 168

March 31, 2020
INR

18
2,339

1,602

Tax
benefit

year
March 31, 2020

1909

22
(0)
(6)

2013
(18)

18

March 31, 2019

63
1,695

25

(expense)
benefit

year
March 31, 2019

1945

©
(18)
24

(13)
(59)

83

nd March 31, 2018 is 25,168% and
ngeyueil (L chanyges iade i e



ORIX Leasing & Financlal Services Indla Limited
Notes to the ments (continued)
for the year e 2020

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated)

Note - 53

Change In llabllities arlsing from financing activities

Particulars
Long term borrowing
Short term borrowing
ECB Borrowing
Non Convertible Debenture
Masala Bond
Lease clpal component
Lease portion
Total
Particulars

term borrowing
term borrowing
Borrowing
Non Convertible Debenture
Masala Bond
Lease Uabllity on principal component
liablity Interest portion

01 April 2019

1,11,390
9,300
7,500

52,000
10,000
414

38
1,90,842

01 April 2018

49,238
20,600
7,600
52,000
10,000
551

1,39,790

Ca h Flows

21,578

11,200

10,000
(32,000)

(101)

()
10,672

Cash Flows

62,151
{11.200)

(137)
38

31 March 2020

1,32,966
20,500
17,600
20,000
10,000

313
36
2,01,314

31 March 2019

1,11,390
9,300
7,600

62,000
10,000
414

38
1.80.642

Other column includes the effect of accrued but not pald interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees etc.

W

oV



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services Indla Limited

Notes to the financlal statementa {continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounis are in INR Lakhs, except as siated)

Note - 54
First-time adoption of Ind AS

A. Transition to Ind AS

As stated in Note 1, these financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2020, are the first the Company has prepared in accordance
with Ind AS. For periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with accounting standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (IGAAP). Accordingly, the Company has preparad financial stalements which comply with Ind AS applicable for
periods ending on March 31, 2020, tagether with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2019, as described in
the summary of significant accounting policies In preparing these finanicial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared
as at April 01, 2018, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS This note explains the principal adjustments made by the Company in
restating its IGAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as al April 01, 2018 and the financial statements as at and for the year
ended March 31, 2019 and how the transilion from IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company's financial position, financial performance.

SrNo. Particulars

dat worth/ loss as per IGAAP

Ind AS Adjustments
Net Impairment allowances
Interest income on non parferming asset
impact on Loans and Advances
Iv Fair value on Security Deposits
Interest and depreciation on Right of use Assets
3ain on Loan lransfer Transactions
Jeftered Tax on IND AS adiustments

< £ <

Net worth/ loss as per Ind AS

Total Equity as at
316t March 2019

53,212
(841)
533
23
(29)
708
(140)

53.473



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited
Ind AS 107 requires an enitly |
(A€ amounts are in INR Lakhs
Partioulats

» ASoCID

1 Financlal aasels

@ Cash and cash equivalenis ]
b

(¢} Loans 1

{d) Trade receivable 18
(d} Olher financial aisels 19

Toial Flnmnclal sapets

2 Nondinsnciat assets
(a) Inventones
{b) Curteni (ax assels (net)

(c) Defeired Lax assais (net) 4
(d) Proparty, plant and equipment
{®) Righl ol-use assets 7

{N Oiherintanpible 23sats
(p) Otner non-tinancia) aesels

1. Finencis{ ilabiliiiaa

(a) Payabiea
(i) Trade payables

- Tolal outslarding dues of Micto a all Enterpises

- Total outslanding dues of Gredilo f than Micra and Siall Enlerprises.
(b} Deti Becunties
{¢) Bomrowings (Othes than deth secuninas) 9
(d) Leaso liablities 7
(o) Deposity as
(D Olher hnancial ilabiblies ]

Tolal Finsacisl lisbiliies

2 NonJ Inanctal labiUtes

(8) Current (ax [rabilies (net)

(b) Provision lor Empioyees' Relirement Benafils
{c} Provisions

(d) Other non.financial habidres

Tata) Non-Financial lablabes
3 Equity
(a) Equity share capiial
{b) Other equaty 69

Tolal Equity

Parlculers Notes to

Reconcliiatian

N} (nterest income 5
(4] Fees and oommesian Incame
(M) Ngt gain on ralr value changes 8
Il Olhet income
110, Total tncome {1 + 4}

IV, Expenses
(i) Fmance cost
n irruments
(i) rae
(iv) O il I snd
(v) Other expenses
Tolal axpenses {(V)

V. Profifioas) belere axcaptonsl Ilams and tax (ii-1V)

V. Tex expenee:
Current lax
Pses felating lo priot years
1 4

VI Piofit for the yoar

VIN Other comprehansive income

A will not be of losa
emenis of nefit

by 3

Income lax reiated 10 items that Wil nol be reclsssified 1o prafit of loss.

Tolst Oliwts Cumprehensiva (ncoms for the yanr

IX. Tolal Compiehansive Income lor the peilod

indlan

1374
253,512
2,858
2,498,043
54

97
7,186
2,938

m
9,729

21,028

15

2.790
52,000
181,722

1.720
4,002

2,22,260

%

184
2,975
1,202
3,507
10054
43118

53,212

Indlan GAAP
20 265
450

1953
31688

Adjusiments

(181)
§5
(370}

[488]

(141}
a
{3 875)

.6a1)

452
(325)
{1.538)

(1,410}

12,186,
(742,

(2,008|

261

Adjustments

(408)

7
708
00

100
1.319
(92)
120
1,643
{147

510

181

52

02

Ind AS

Ind AS

58
97

7,058

2,90
423
114
5854

17,43

15
2,790
52,000
161,722
452
1,395
2474

2,20,848

-

H

10,094
43379

347

28 857
450

7
2,659
32,037

16,101
1514
1,920

B11
2,007
25950

6,878

1632
5
2

4708

52

19y

4,871

Inaun HAAK

461

n
1,93,016
104

526

194,180
12

163
1294
1.920

156
5908

15,454

101
52,000
1,02,840

751
2,530

1,58,223

142
122
1664
605

2,558
10,094
3,749

48,842

nd lolal comprenensive income for prior parisds The following tables represent lhe reconailations fiom previous GAAR lo Ind AS

Adjusiments

134
(133
2

163y

2
559
(3010)

(2,43}

113}
551
(130}
{977)

(s69)

(1663)
{297)

11.980)

(an)

49

Ind AS

13,014

101

S2 000
102,827
551

623
1,562

1,57,864

143
123

2
KliT)

575

10,094
38,708

45,801



Raconcillation batween Ind AE and previous GAAP for profit of loss are given under
a) Proflt reconciliation

Particulars Notes o Yaar ended 31al
Reconctilarion March 2019
Sroht sfer lax as reooned uikier previous GALE L1
resulling i in proll after ¢ an reperied under pravious GAAP
1] taret inoome 30 non persting samel 5 o
(i) Net gain on falr valua changas on deposil . ®
(7%} Gawn an loan kemtered tarseGon ¥ 706
(iv) Net Impalimant aliowances 1 53
{v) Finance cosl and deprecaniion on Aighl of une assats ? 2
{vi) Actuarisl gain & foss 1 L)
|wii) Tax impact on above adjusiments 4 181
Pohil efter inx a9 reporied under Ind AS 4,705
Other Comprahensive Incoma / {tosa ) (net of lux) ] H
Erhae Carrrigenbininisis Ineomn £ [afes Lax) o9 eoiomea under ind AS 4571
el o the of cash Miowws Sor the fpmer sfideit 31 March 2019
Previniz GAAP Adjusiments Ind AS
el comh N o Spmraling sctinles [Lafe aon [y 285
Nel cash lowe Wom invesling acivies (1.651) i {1,082)
1 At Towa flam Lhanring stiviies 59,924 19.0r) 50,852
Nel increpva/{decrease) in cash and cash squvalents 925 o 20
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of ihe year 448 o 448
Coantt it ey orpurcul s 4 1708 20 o) fha pess 1,574 o 1074

Nates o Iha rsooniciisiin:

impairment Alowance for expected credit loss .

Undar Previogn GAAR, WONAg (i orvmidle 260nbe st 00 pal managemar| exlimiies. Sutyect L (he minimum wriswition requite se fe1 Waele; Directiasi. 42 [lBnking Financia) Campany -
Syuteituilely bmoodant Noo Depost Livkeg Comrpany and Dirpond Takmg Comparny [Revarve Bank| Cvractiors, 2018 Linga! (nd AS, WPESVmNT sowance m calzu/sted as par expacted cied] lote
it

Impact on derecognlition of icans

Undpr Prvoous (AAF, inanciu) sesis were oereogeized ¥ the conliol crilena i met in accordance wilh celevant RBI Quikdetines Undar Ind AS, linancial sssels wie derecagniaed anly when tha Group
lraeatur suttanlatly all the ks 4x2 revwarrts (etaiadd [0 |He cath liows

Reclassification of actatla) Iows / [gain), sthuing out of employee Daneit schamas, Lo Other Camprahensiva incomas (OC))

Under Pravious GAAF, Ivess wore recopnised in Sialemant of piofd and loss Aciuarial 08in and loases pre iecognined i olher compienensive income under ind AS

Dafetsed lox sdhstimanta

Dalerrad tax sffect of all adjusiments has been recognised on irenaton daie and dunng tha year ended 31 March 2019

Interest income on non parforming ssseta

Lisda! Previous GAAP, interest income on non perfoming asaets l1e loane (hat ara B0 days pest due) was not accrued Under (nd AS interest income on such loana are recognmsed on thei het carrying
ot

8 Gain o lomn tranafer dan

Under Previous GAAP_ gain on loan iransle: iransackon was recogmsed over the tenure of he ioans ransterred Undes IND AS, such g@n Is recogrused uptron!

»

“

"

7 Rightof use assels
Unde! Pigisus CAAD, jearmnes lakan o0 fang lerm naes wats considrved ws ceiited plamises and rent pail was charged fa the Statament al peodil and loss Under IND AS | prarrars lskien 31 long term
leane ta sapiabant s fight of Uae anasls |ROU) and & habilly s gly D i 2 REU and Interest on lease kaksly # charged to the Stalemant of gealil #nd kxs

8 Oeponita

Under Previous GAAP deposis given lor premises and secunly deposila lrom losees were recopnised al Lheir carrrying amount Under ING AS, such deosits are rucognised basis et value
$ ReclasaMcalion
Flgures are recisasifiad from Previous GAAP |o meet Ihe preaentalion principles se par IND AS

: ), &



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited
Notas to the financial (contl

Firsi-time adoption of Ind AS

C. Exemptions and exceptlons avaited
C.1 Ind AS mandatory exceptions
C.1.1 Estimates
As perind AS 101, an n accordance with Ind AS at the date of transillon to Ind AS at the end of the comparative nled in
the antity's firsl Ind AS ts, as the case may be, should be consisteri wilh eslimates made for the same dals in ac hthe
previous GAAP unless Inere is objective evidence (hat those eslimates wers in error However, (he estimales should be adjusled lo reflect any
ditferences in accounting policies
A8 per Ind AS 101, where application of Ind AS requires an entity {o make certain estimates that were not required under previous GAAP, those
eslimales should be made to reflact condilions that existed al the date of transliton (for preparing opening Ind AS bailance sheet) or al the end of the
AS)
requirement Key estimates considered in preparation of the financial
pelow’
- Impairment of financial assets based on the expected credil loss mode!
- Delermination of the discounled value for financial inslruments carried al amortised cost
- Discounted value of liability for relral obligalions

C.1.2 Derecognition of financial assets and liabllitles

Ins
me
ar

has e apply the derecognilion principles of Ind AS 108 ralrospactively as reliable information was avaitable at the time of initially

these fons.

C.1.3 Classification and measurement of financial assels
i financlal assets on Lhe basis of circumslances existing as on of tra
assels accounted at amorllsad d on facts and circumsiances al the ¥

I
Accardingly, the Company has determinad the classification of financial assets based on facls and circumstances (hat exist on the date of transilion
Measurement of tha financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been dane retrospectively axcepl whera the same is Impracticable

C.2Ind AS optional exemptions

C.2.1 Deemed cost

As per Ind AS 101 an entity may elect to:

(i) measure anilam of property, plant and equipment at the date of tcansillon at ils fair value and use (hal fair value as its desmad cost al that date
(ir) use a pravious GAAP revaluation of anilem of properly, planl and aquipment at or before 1he date of transifion as deemed cos! at the dale of the
ravaluation, provided the revaluation was, al Iha date of the revaluation, broadly comparabie to:

- fair value;

Is,

which ara

101) if
der previ s of proparty
properly of propery,

;0w



ORIX Leasing and Financial Services India Limited
Notes to the financlal statements [continuad)

far the year anded 31 March 2020

(All amounts are in INR Lakhs, except as stated}

Note:- §5
Public disclosura on fiquidity risk

Public disclosure on liquidity risk based on audited financial statement as at 31st March 2020 pursusnt to RBI nolification RBI/20:19-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD)
CC No 102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated Novembar 04, 2019 on Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companles and Core
Investment Companies

1) Funding Cancontration based on significant counterparty (both daposits and borrowings).

Sr. No. Amount % of Total deposits % Of Total Liabilities

Counternartiex
1 7 KEWILY NA 64%

not

2) Top 20 large depasits (amount in & crore and % of total deposite) - Not applicable The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
Non-Banking Financial Company registered wilh Reserve Bank of India does not accept public deposils

sr. o Particulars Amount % of totat borrowinas
1 Bank Term Laan 1.33.000 63%

ECB Loan 17.500 8t

22.800 1%
Masala Band 10.000 5%
5 NCD - Secured 20.000 10%

Sr.l o the instrument/product
L

Sr. o, Particulars NA
NA

Commercial Paoers to Tolal Liz i es NA

4 NA
§ NCD { Orininal Maturilv<1 vear (o Total Liabllitles 10%
NCD { Original Maturity<1 vear lo Total Assets 7%

7 Term NA
3 35%
uiner snhor 1erm Lisbilities to  gtal Assets 29%

does

2) Other short term liabilities exclude NCD <1 year as considerad in paint 4 to 6

6) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The compeny isti risk based on the policy for hiquidity risk managemant which incorporales the principles lald down by RBI in the liquidity risk
management for

The Compnny’s Board of Directors has overall responsibilities of inenagement of liquidity risk

The Company has a Risk Management Committee, which reports to (he Board and is responsible for evaluating overall risks faced by Company including
liquidity risk

Asset Liability Commiliez of company consisting Directors is responsible for ensuring adlicrence  to the risk tolerance limit and impleinenting the
liquidity risk management strategy of the Company

The Company  has also set up ALM support group

NA- Not Applic ble

W



ORIX Leasing & Financial Services India Limited

Note - 36 Disclosures required under Master Direction - N {ng Financlal Campsny - Sy y Imporiant Nen-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (Continued)
Schedute to the Balance Sheet of 8 non-depouit taking banking 1 ial pany
(All amounis are in INR Lakhs, except as stated )
Fartlcutars 31 Mareh 2020 N Marchi2ois |
Linbilitles slds ;
Ameunt Amount Amouat Amount
outrisnding overdue outsisnding overdue
m Loans and ady availed by the nonbanking linancial
campany inciusive of financial ini¢rest acerued thereon but not paid :
(8) Debentures : Sccured 20,000 = 52,000
: Unsecured
(ather than falling withio the meaning of pubilc deposits®)
(b) Deferred Credits - .
(¢) Term Loaw 1,81,172 . 1,57.797
(d) Inter-corp loans and b ng .

(#) Commercial Paper

() Other Loans (specify nature) Cash Credit & Subordinate Debt pursuant to scheme of
reorganisation

<Cash Credit & short term loans

-Subordinate Debt

* Please see note | below

T Tarticalars 31 March 2028 31 March 2019
Amount Amount
Assetapide ;

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
[other than those included in (3) below) :

(a) Secured
{b) Unsecured

) Break up of Leased Astols and stock on hire and other essets
counting towards AFC eclivities

(i) Lease pssets including lease rentale under sundry debtors

(2) Finuncia) leass (Net Stock of Finance Lesse + Sundry Debtors) (Net of Provision) 45,937 42,375
(b) Operating \ease (incl Sundry Debtors) 451 165

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors

{a) Assets on hire
{b) Repossessed Asseis

(ili) Other loans counting towards AFC activities

(8) Logns whore assels have been repossessed .
(b) Loans ather than (a) abova ingluding debioes (et nf Pravision) T 2,10,086

)
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25.26)

Disclosures required under Maater Direction - Non-Banking Fi 1a! Company - Sy lly Importanf Non-Depoalt taking Company and Deposlt taking Compsny
(Reserve Bank) Directlons, 2016 (Continued)

Seheduls 1o the Balaoce Sheet of & non-deposit teking

bankine Mesneiel y (Contlnued)

@

{v] Others {please wpecifly

Parilculars

Break-up of Invesmments
Current Investments :

1. Quoled :
(i) Shares : () Equity

(b) Preference
(i1} Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual funds
(v) Govemmient Securities
(v) Others (pleass specify)

2. Unquoted
(1) Shares : (a) Equity

() Proference
(1) Debentures and Bonds
(lil) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Govemment Securities
(v) Otherx (please specify)

Long Term investments
| Quoted :

(i) Shures : (a) Bquity

(v) Preference
(1) Debentures snd Boads
(i1 Units of mutwsl funds
{iv) Govemment Securities
(v) Others (ploase specify)

2 Unquoted :
() Shares (a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of mutual funds
(iv) Governmeni Securitiea

31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019
Amount Amount

di "

Particulary

Barrower group-wise o

of assets fi

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Amouni Amount

d ¢ in (2) and (3) above:

Please see Note 2 below
Category

1, Ralated Parties **
() Subsidlaries
(b) Companies in the same graup
(c) Other reluted partics

2. Other then relaied parties

Total

L] a5

L4130 253,491

145134 2,53,526

A5 WA



25 Dinclosures required under Master Direction - Nen-Banking Financisl Camp ny - Systamically Important Non-Deposit isking Company and Deposit taking Company
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (Continued)

25.26) Schedule ta the Bat nee Sheet of a non-deposlt teking non-banking finenclal y (Continued)

long
Inheres s d securities (both quoted and ungquoted)r
Please vee ngie 3 helow 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Macket Value / Bosk Value Marikel Value /
Break up or fair (Netof Brenk wp or falr Book Value (Net

Category valueor NAV  Provbloms)  valeorNAv  °f Provislons)
I. Related Parties *=
() Subsidiardes
) sams group
© et
2 Other then related parties
** Ag por Accounting Standard of ICA] (Please see note 3)
2020
Amount
(1) Othet information
Gross Non-Performing Assets
(8) Relsted purties
(0] (b) Other then relsted perties 15,770 7,843
Net Non-Performing Assets
(0} Related pastien
()] (b) Other than related parties 12,894 6,289
Note :
1 As defined in paragraph 2(1)(xi8) of the Non-Banking Finanolsl Companies Acceptarice of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1989
2 1 in finenclal assots is calculated as per Ind AS 109
3 idance No & bleincluding fo in N al on
of quoted d up / fair value / ot ot 14 am ed as
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on beh If of the Bosrd of Directors
Chartered Accountants ORIX Lensing & Financial Services Limited

Finm's registration No. 101248W/W-100022

) \ R ) /UL’
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AjitVisw n th

Partner Direcior
Mombership No: 067114
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